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== the uncommon drugstore

drugstore.com, inc. is a leading online provider of health,

beauty, vision and pharmacy products.

We offer health, beauty, sexual well—béing, household
and other over-the-counter products and prescription

medications through our website at www.drugstore.com.

We also offer prestige beauty products through our
website located at www.beauty.com; contact lenses
through our subsidiary Vision Direct’s websites located

at wwwwisiondirect.com, www.lensmart.com and

www lensquest.com; and customized nutritional supplement

programs through our subsidiary Custom Nutrition Services.

We offer our customers a wide selection of products at

competitive prices and a superior online shopping experience.




April 24, 2006

Dear Stockholders:

I'm proud of our successes in 2005 and our solid results. But | also recognize that we
have much more to do. In 2006 my goal is to get the company to a point where our

potential can be realized — specifically, to get us to EBITDA profitability.

When | joined drugstore.com over a year ago, the company was very focused on a top
line story: we were focused on getting profitable through attaining additional scale.
In order to get that scale, we felt we had to be competitive across as many markets

and as many products as possible,

We are still focused on our top line — make no mistake about that. But in addition

to growth, we have increased our focus on the profitability of each and every order,

and each and every partnership. That analysis has led us to refine our strategy, focusing
on our core profitable customers, making sure that we are charging adequately for
value-added services, and changing — or in some cases eliminating — some partnerships.
We have made, and will continue to make, important changes that may modestly impact
sales growth but should increase profitability and accelerate us toward our goal of driving
positive cash flow. These changes are very consistent with the strong value proposition

that our customers have come to expect from us.

Some of the specific changes that we have made include:

» Adjusting our shipping policies for hard-to-reach locations like Alaska, Hawaii,
and overseas

« Continuing to offer free shipping on orders of $49 or more, but eliminating
our free upgraded shipping on orders of $99 or greater

+ Terminating our wholesale OTC relationship with Amazon.com, allowing us
to focus our management attention and distribution center capacity on
drugstore.com customers

» Restructuring our partnership with Weil Lifestyles, allowing us to continue

to serve our customized vitamin customers profitably



» Implementing a surclhlarge on heavier orders so that we can continue toiserve
our customers who fike to place large orders when they shop with us, but serve
them profitably ‘

« Continuing to edit SKUs and refine prices — as many as 4,000 of our more than
25,000 SKUs were eliminated or price adjusted, providing a behefit to our
bottom line vvithout':a real impact on our product selection or value pro‘position

« Improving our pharmacy margins by implementing more targeted prom_otioné
for pharmacy customers, terminating unfavorable partnerships with thirld—party
benefit companies, and building more proﬁtéble relationships, such as dur

agreement with Medical Services Company

Throughout our history as a company, our dkugstore.conﬁ employees have continued to
be one of our greatest assets. | am very proud of our team — long-time employees have
told me they're re-energized and as confident as they've ever been, and new employees

continue to add fresh ideas and excitement. -

I would like to thank our employees, customers, and stockholders for their support.

| feel privileged to lead this company.

Dawn Lepore
CEQ and Chairman of the Board

drugstore.com, inc.
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ITEM 1. BUSINESS

This annual report on Form 10-K and the documents incorporated into this annual report by reference
contain forward-looking statements based on our expectations, estimates and projections as of the date of this
filing. Actual results may differ materially from those expressed in forward-looking statements. See the section
entitled “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Special
Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” in Part II, Item 7 of this annual report.

Overview

drugstore.com, inc. is a leading online provider of health, beauty, vision and pharmacy products. We offer
health, beauty, sexual well-being, household and other non-prescription products and prescription medications
through our website at www.drugstore.com. We also offer prestige beauty products through our website located
at www.beauty.com (which is also accessible through the drugstore.com website); contact lenses through our
wholly owned subsidiary International Vision Direct Corp. and its subsidiaries, collectively referred to as Vision
Direct, through websites located at www.visiondirect.com, www.lensmart.com and www.lensquest.com (which are
also accessible through the drugstore.com website); and customized nutritional supplement programs through our
wholly owned subsidiary, Custom Nutrition Services, Inc., or CNS. Our products are also available toll-free by
telephone at 1-800-DRUGSTORE and 1-800-VISIONDIRECT. Under the terms of an agreement with Rite Aid
Corporation, or Rite Aid, customers are also able to order refill prescriptions for pickup at any Rite Aid store. As
of January 1, 2006, our lifetime customer base was nearly 7.2 million customers worldwide.

We manage our business in four segments: over-the-counter, or OTC; mail-order pharmacy; local pick-up
pharmacy; and vision. Additional information regarding our business segments can be found in the section
entitled “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in Part II,
Item 7 of this annual report and in Note 13 of our consolidated financial statements included in Part IV, Item 15
of this annual report. In 2005, 2004 and 2003, approximately 99% of our net sales were made, and over 99% of
our assets were located, in the United States.

drugstore.com, inc. was incorporated in April 1998 in the state of Delaware. We launched our web store at
www.drugstore.com in February 1999 and completed our initial public offering in July 1999. Our common stock
is listed on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol “DSCM.” Our principal corporate offices are located
in Bellevue, Washington. As used in this annual report, “drugstore.com,” “we,” “our” and similar terms refer to
drugstore.com, inc. and its subsidiaries, unless the context indicates otherwise.

Business Strategy

Our business strategy is to offer our customers a wide selection of products at competitive prices and a
superior shopping online experience.

Convenience. Our online stores are available to consumers 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, and may be
reached through the Internet or by phone. We offer additional convenience to our customers through easy-to-use
websites, robust search technology and a variety of features such as Your List, a personal shopping list of the
customer’s previous purchases that allows for quick and easy re-ordering, even without browsing the site; Auto
Delivery, which enables customers to set up automatic shipments of frequently ordered products; the ability to
schedule e-mail reminders about previously purchased products that are scheduled to run out or are on sale; and
an automated flexible spending account, or FSA, manager that keeps track of FSA-eligible purchases and
provides customers with downloadable receipts to submit to their FSA administrator.

Selection. We are able to offer a significantly broader assortment of products, with greater depth in each
product category, because we do not have the shelf display space limitations of bricks-and-mortar drugstores.
With a single check-out, our customers are able to buy health, beauty and personal care products, prestige beauty
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brands, salon hair care, natural products, and other specialty items. In addition, we offer contact: lenses and
customized nutritional supplement programs through our subsidiary websites. ; !
Information We provide ‘a broad array of interactive tools and information on our websites to help
consumers make informed purchasing decisions. Our information services include detailed product information
pages; personahzed product recommendations; customer reviews and other editorial content; the eMedAlert
program, which alerts customers to safety issues such as FDA and product manufacturer recalls; and extensive _
health- and pharmacy-related information, including a drug information database, a drug price index, information
on generic drug alternatives, a drug interaction checker; and Ask Your Pharmacist, which is a database of our
pharmacists’ responses to over 800 frequently-asked questions. Qur customer care representatives and in-house
pharmacists are available by phohe or e-mail to provide personal guidance and answer customers’ _questions.

Przvacy When shopping at a bricks-and- mortar drugstore many consumers may feel embarrassed or
uncomfortable about buyrng items or asking questions that may reveal personally sensitive aspects of their health
or lifestyle to pharmacists, store personnel or other shoppers. Our customers avoid these problems by shopping
from the privacy of their home or office.

i

Value. Our goal is to offer shoppers a broad assortment of health, beauty, vision and pharmacy products
with competitive pricing. We strive to improve our operating efficiencies and to leverage our fixed costs so that
we can pass along the savings to our customers in the form of lower prices and exclus1ve deals. We also seek to
inform customers of additional cost savings opportunities when they become available. For example, in our
pharmacy, we inform our customers of quantity pnce breaks for buy1ng 90-day supplres of medrcatron rather
than 30- day supphes :

Business Segments

In 2005, our OTC segment accounted for 45% of our net sales, our mail-order pharmacy segment 19%, our
local pick-up pharmacy segment 24%, and our vision segment 12%. ) 1

;
oT1C
We stock over 25,000 non- prescnpuon health, beauty, personal care, household and other products We
offer OTC products in a variety of categories, including:

¢ Personal Care » Diet and Fitness-

¢ Beauty ; ¢ Household

* Hair Care ¢ Baby & Kids

»  Skin Care ‘ ‘ +  Food

* Men’s Grooming S * Pets

+ Health . ¢ Sexual Well-Being

» FSA Store » Natural Store

*  Vitamins ‘ : ' » Beauty.com (prestige beauty products, also
+ ‘GNC Live Well - : ' accessible through www. beaury com)

t

In addition, through our subsrdrary CNS, which we acquired in April 2003, we also provide personalized
nutrition services to consumers in the form of an online assessment of an individual’s specific nutritional
supplement needs, and deliver the personalized vitamins, minerals, herbs, and supplements in pharmaceutical-
grade, daily dose packages. We are the éxclusive online distributor of nutritional supplement programs for
Dr. Barry Sears at www.ZoneDiet.com and The Pritikin Longevity Center & Spa at www. Pritikin.com. In
addition, we act as the exclusive fulfillment provider for customized nutritional supplements sold through
www.DrWeilVitaminAdvisor.com, www.DrWeil.com and other Dr. Weil-related websites.

I




Mail-Order Pharmacy and Local Pick-Up Pharmacy

Our pharmacy product category is divided into two business segments: mail-order pharmacy and local
pick-up pharmacy. Our mail-order pharmacy segment covers the prescription drugs and supplies delivered to
customers through our mail-order facility, and our local pick-up pharmacy business segment covers the
prescriptions picked up by customers at Rite Aid stores. New prescriptions may be ordered on the drugstore.com
website for mail-order delivery. Refill prescriptions that have previously been filled through our mail-order
facility or at a Rite Aid store may be delivered by mail or picked up by the customer at any Rite Aid store.

We are a full-service pharmacy stocking over 4,000 prescription drugs. We employ licensed pharmacists
and are licensed to ship prescriptions to all 50 states in the United States. We have received Verified Internet
Pharmacy Practices Sites, or VIPPS, certification from the National Association of Boards of Pharmacy, or
NABP. The voluntary VIPPS program sets standards for Internet pharmacies and certifies those online
pharmacies that are fully licensed and in compliance with state pharmacy laws and the NABP’s stringent
pharmacy practice standards.

We serve both cash-paying pharmacy customers and customers with insurance coverage. In addition, we act
as an outsourced mail-order pharmacy service provider for pharmacy benefit managers, or PBMs, and third-party
benefits companies.

Vision
Through our subsidiary Vision Direct, which we acquired in December 2003, we offer a broad assortment of

contact lenses, in addition to reading glasses and contact lens cases. We believe that we offer these products at a
substantial price savings over eye care practitioners, national optical chains and many online competitors.

Our contact lens business is subject to the U.S. Fairness to Contact Lens Consumers Act, or FTCLCA, and
the related regulations of the Federal Trade Commission, or FTC, which establish a national uniform standard for
eye care practitioners and direct marketers with respect to the sale of contact lenses, including verification of
contact lens prescriptions. In accordance with these guidelines, we ask the patient’s eye care professional to
verify the prescription before we ship an order, and allow eight business hours for the eye care professional to
reply to our verification request. If the eye care professional approves the prescription, or does not respond to our
verification request within eight business hours, we ship the order to the customer as expressly permitted by the
FTCLCA and FTC.

Marketing and Promotions

Our marketing and promotion strategy is designed to build brand recognition, increase customer traffic to
our store, add new customers, build strong customer loyalty, maximize repeat purchases and develop incremental
revenue opportunities. Our online advertising campaigns are focused on search engines, frequently visited
Internet portals, health- and beauty-related websites, and direct-to-consumer e-mail marketing programs. We
further extend our online market presence through our affiliate program, through which we permit associated
websites to make our products and services available to their audiences through links to our websites. We also
advertise in offline marketing channels, including direct mail, catalogs and brochures in customer boxes,
magazines and newspapers (including freestanding inserts) and out-of-home advertising (such as transportation
billboards).

We also employ a variety of marketing programs and promotions, such as discounted and free shipping
promotions, dollar off and percentage discounts, free gifts with purchase, and the drugstore.com Dollars
program, a loyalty program in which customers automatically earn a five percent rebate to be used for future
non-prescription purchases.




Fulfillment and Customer Care
Order Fulfiliment ‘

We process all OTC orders and mail-order pharmacy orders from our primary distribution center in
Swedesboro, New Jersey, and all vision orders from our distribution center in Ferndale, Washington. When a
customer orders a refill prescription to be picked up at alocal Rite Aid store, we utilize Rite Aid as a fulfillment
partner. Due to the relatively short lead time requtred to fill orders for our products usually 24 to 48 hours order
backlog is not materral to our busrness ‘

- We ship OTC_and pharmacy products$ to U.S., U.S. Territory and APO/FPO military addresses. In addition,
through-an agreement with Comerxia, Inc., we offer international shipment of OTC health, beauty, and wellness
products to over 35 countries. V1s1on Direct ships contact lenses and other vision products worldwide, pnmanly
to the Un1ted States and Canada o ‘ :

Customer Care

Our customer care representatives operate from our call center in Halifax, Nova Scotia, Canada and, in some
cases; from our Bellevue, Washington headquarters and our pharmacy in New Jersey. Our customer care
specialists are available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week via e-mail or telephone to handle customer inquiries and,
assist customers in finding desired products. The Help section of our website outlines store policies and provides
answers to customers’ frequently asked questions. In addition, our pharmacists provide advice to customers about
medications and other health-related issues.

Technelogy

We have implemented a broad array of services and systems for site management, produet searching, :
customer interaction, transaction processing and order fulfillment functions. These services and systems use a
combmanon of our own proprietary technologies and commermally available, llcensed technologies. We focus
our internal development efforts on creating and enhancing the specialized, proprietary software that is unique to
our business. For example, our core merchandlse catalog, customer interaction, order collectlon fulfillment and
back-end systems are proprietary to drugstore com. Our systems are des1gned to provrde real- t1me connectivity to
the distribution center systems for both pharmacy and OTC products. They include an mventory tracking system,

a real-time order tracking system, an executive information system and an inventory replenishment system.

To enhance the online and offline experience for our pharmacy customers, we have integrated some of our
information and pharmacy systems with Rite Aid’s systems. Rite Aid has granted us a nonexclusive, fully paid
license to the Rite Aid systems that are integrated with our systems, subject to third-party rights to such
technology. We license database, operating system and hardware components fromithird parties.

In August 1998 we entered into a tén-year technology hcense and advertlsmg agreement ‘with Amazon.com,
under which we have the right fo license substantially all of Amazon.com’s technology for use in our busrness
and to receive certain technolog1cal and advertising support from Amazon.com, and Amazon:com has the r1ght to
license substantially all of our technology for use in itg business. Neither party may. use the other’s techinology to
compete against the other. Currently, nelther party has licensed any technology from the other under this
agreement. If we were to be acquired by a competitor of Amazon.com and Amazon.com did not vote in favor of
the transaction, we would lose our rights to use Amazon.com’s technology, if we are then usmg any. This .
agreement also restricts us from promoting on our website any company, other than drugstore.com, that seils
products or services competitive with those that Amazon.com; offers or is preparing to produce or market.
Relationship with Rite Aid

In June 1999, we entered into a ten-year strategic relationship with Rite Aid. Through our agreements with
Rite Aid, which expire in 2009, we have access to Rite Aid customers through the RiteAid.com website, which is

[
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powered by the drugstore.com website. All pharmacy orders processed through the drugstore.com website or the
RiteAid.com website can either be shipped to the customer from our distribution center or, in the case of refills of
existing drugstore.com or Rite Aid prescriptions, picked up by the customer at any Rite Aid store. Rite Aid
adjudicates and collects insurance reimbursement payments on our behalf.

In addition to providing for multi-channel delivery options, we and Rite Aid agreed to promote each other’s
services both online and offline. For example, Rite Aid includes the drugstore.com pharmacy logo in Rite Aid’s
own weekly circular advertisements, as well as on Rite Aid shopping bags, prescription vial caps, receipts,
in-store signs and links from the Rite Aid website to the drugstore.com website. As part of our relationship with
Rite Aid, we agreed to certain exclusivity provisions that limit our ability to promote, or affiliate with, any other
physical retail drugstore or to operate as a traditional physical drugstore, and Rite Aid agreed not to offer or sell
products or services on the Internet other than through our website.

We are required to purchase our pharmaceutical inventory through Rite Aid, unless we are able to obtain
better overall terms from another vendor. This arrangement enables us to take advantage of Rite Aid’s volume
discounts and favorable credit terms. To date, we have not been able to obtain more favorable overall terms from
any other supplier, and we currently expect that we will continue to purchase our pharmaceutical products
inventory through Rite Aid. As a result of this agreement, Rite Aid is one of our largest suppliers. We also
benefit from access to many of Rite Aid’s relationships with insurance companies and PBMs, which enables us
meet the needs of more customers because of the availability of insurance coverage to those customers.

We license Rite Aid information technology and pharmacy systems, which we currently use to adjudicate
and process local pharmacy orders.

Competition

The market for health, beauty, wellness, vision and pharmacy products is intensely competitive and highly
fragmented. Our competitors in the OTC segment include chain drugstores, mass market retailers, warehouse
clubs, supermarkets and, with respect to prestige beauty, health and spa products, specialty retailers and major
department stores. In our mail-order pharmacy and local pick-up pharmacy segments, we compete with chain
drugstores, PBMs, insurers and other health care providers, mail-order prescription drug providers and other
online pharmacies, both domestic and foreign. Foreign online pharmacies and “rogue” online pharmacies can
often sell drugs to American residents at a lower price because they do not comply with U.S. pharmacy
regulations, are not subject to U.S. regulatory oversight, or both. Our competitors in the vision segment include
other online providers of contact lenses, national optical chains, eye care professionals, and mass-market retailers
and warehouse clubs that provide prescription vision services. In addition, we compete with Internet portals and
online service providers that feature shopping services, and with other online or mail-order retailers that offer
products within one or more of our business segments.

We believe that the principal competitive factors in our market segments include brand awareness and
preference, company credibility, product selection and availability, convenience, price, actual or perceived value,
website features, functionality and performance, ease of purchasing, customer service, privacy, quality and
quantity of information supporting purchase decisions (such as product information and reviews), and reliability
and speed of order shipment.

Intellectual Property

We regard our intellectual property as critical to our future success and we rely on a combination of patent,
copyright, trademark, service mark and trade secret laws and contractual restrictions to establish and protect our
proprietary rights in products and services. We own a number of domain names, hold three patents and have
applied for seven others, have registered several trademarks, and have filed applications for the registration of a
number of our other trademarks and service marks in the United States and in some other countries. We have



licensed in the past, and expect that we may license in the future, some of our proprietary rights to third parties.
For example, Amazon.com has the right to license our technology and we have granted nonexclusive rights to
our trademarks and copyrighted material in connection with advertising and associate relationships.

Seasonality ‘ . o ‘
Our OTC business is subject to seasonal variations in demand. Historically, the fourth quarier of each year

has been our strongest quarter, primarily. because of increased online shopping and our greater marketing efforts

during the holiday season. We do not believe that our mail-order pharmacy, local prck-up pharmacy or vision

business segments are substannally affected by seasonality.

S Lo
i R

Employees

As of January 1, 2006, we had approximately 780 full-time employees. However, employment levels
fluctuate due to seasonal variations in our business, and we hire independent contractors and temporary
employees as needed to addressidemand. None of our employees is represented by a labor umon and we consider

our employee relations to be good. D |
‘ N e "

Avallable Informatlon ‘

We file with and furnish to the Securmes and Exchange Comm1ss1on or SEC periodic reports, proxy and
information statements and other information. We make available, free of charge, on our website at
www.drugstore.com (under Corporate Information) our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form
10-Q, and current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports, as soon as reasonably practicable after

we electronically file them with, or furnish them to, the SEC.

Executive Officers and Dlrectors

The following tables provrde information regarding our executive officers and dlrectors as of the date of this
annual report . ‘ - v . .

Executive Officers

. Name o Age ' . Position ’ ;Q

DawnG. Lepore .. ..... oo 51 Pre51dent Chlef Executlve Officer and Chairman of the Board

Robert A. Barton ............ 39 Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer

‘Luke T. Friang ........ e 35 . Vice President and Chief Information ‘Officer

Christopher G. Hauser . .-..... 55 Vice President, Operations -

Alesia L. Pinney ....... e 42 Vice President, Legal and Human Affarrs General Counsel
T P and Secretary i : T .

Matthew S. Stepka . ......... 40 Vice President, Pharmacy- ‘ ‘

Jonathan N. Tinter .......... 33 Vice President, Strategy and Chief Marketmg Ofﬁcer R

t

Dawn G. Lepore has served as President, Chlef Executlve Ofﬁcer and Charrman of the Board of
drugstore.com since October 2004. Ms. Lepore served as Vice Chairman—Active Trader, Technology,
Operations, Administration and Business Strategy of The Charles Schwab Corporation, or CSC, from August
2003 to October 2004. CSC, through Charles Schwab & Co., Inc., or Schwab, and its other operating = '
subsidiaries, is.a financial services firm. Ms. Lepore served as Vice Chairman—Technology, Active Trader,
Operations, and Administration of CSC and Schwab from May 2003 until August 2003, as Vice Chairman— -
Technology, Operations and Administration of CSC and Schwab from July 2002 until May 2003, as Vice
Chairman—Technology and Administration of CSC and-Schwab from 2001-to 2002, as VicevC;_hairman and
Chief Information Officer of CSC and Schwab from 1999 to 2001 and as Executive Vice President and Chief
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Information Officer of CSC and Schwab from 1993 to 1999. She joined Schwab in 1983, Ms. Lepore serves as a_
director of eBay Inc.

Robert A. Barton has served as Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of drugstore.com since January
2001. Mr. Barton also served as Acting Chief Executive Officer from June 2004 to October 2004. He has served
in various senior financial management and operational roles at drugstore.com since September 1998, including
Vice President and General Manager of Pharmacy from June 2000 to January 2001. From August 1995 to
September 1998, Mr. Barton served as the Director of Business Planning and also managed various accounting
and analysis groups for AT&T Wireless Services, Inc., a wireless service provider. From February 1989 to
August 1995, he served as an auditor with Deloitte & Touche LLP.

Luke T. Friang has served as Vice President and Chief Information Officer of drugstore.com since January
2006. From June 2001 to January 2006, Mr. Friang was senior director of e-commerce technologies at Costco
Wholesale, Inc., a wholesale retailer. From January 1997 to June 2001, he served in a variety of roles at the retail
company The Spiegel Group and its associated companies, including Eddie Bauer and The Spiegel Catalog. He
served as The Spiegel Group’s director of Internet technologies from January 2000 to June 2001, as Eddie
Bauer’s director of Internet technologies from January 1998 to January 2000, and as manager of Eddie Bauer’s
e-commerce and call center divisions from January 1997 to January 1998. From April 1994 to January 1997, he
served as manager of call center systems and operations for Progressive Media, Inc., a collegiate publishing and
marketing company.

Christopher G. Hauser has served as Vice President, Operations of drugstore.com since July 1999. Before
joining drugstore.com, Mr. Hauser served as Senior Vice President, Information Technologies and Operations for
Multiple Zones International, a reseller of brand-name computer products and services.

Alesia L. Pinney has served as Vice President, Legal and Human Affairs, Secretary and General Counsel of
drugstore.com since June 2005. Ms. Pinney served as Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary of
drugstore.com from October 2000 to June 2005 and as Assistant Secretary and Associate General Counsel of
drugstore.com from January 1999 to October 2000. Before joining drugstore.com, Ms. Pinney was an attorney
with the law firm Perkins Coie LLP.

Matthew S. Stepka has served as Vice President, Pharmacy of drugstore.com since May 2005. Mr. Stepka
served as Chief Operating Officer North America for WorldRes, Inc., an online hotel reservation network, from
October 2002 to May 2004, as Vice President Supply from January 2002 to September 2002, as Vice President
Marketing from April 2001 to December 2001, and as Vice President Strategy and Product Marketing from April
2000 to March 2001. He served as Engagement Manager of McKinsey & Company, Inc., a management
consultant firm, from January 1998 to March 2000, as Associate from June 1996 to December 1997, and as
Business Analyst from December 1990 to July 1992. Mr. Stepka served as a Systems Consultant with Price
Waterhouse, an accounting and auditing firm, from September 1988 to May 1990.

Jonathan N. Tinter has served as Vice President, Strategy and Chief Marketing Officer of drugstore.com
since July 2005. Mr. Tinter served as Vice President, Strategy of drugstore.com from May 2005 to June 2005,
From November 2004 to April 2005, he served as Vice President, e-Commerce at Cingular Wireless, a wireless
service provider. From June 2002 to November 2004, he served as Vice President, Marketing Strategy at AT&T
Wireless Services, Inc., a wireless service provider. From September 1999 to June 2002 he served in
progressively senior roles at Mercer Management Consulting, a corporate strategy consulting firm, most recently
as Principal.




_ Directors

Name ‘ _A_ge Position
Dawn G. Lepore ............ 51, President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board,
. ‘ drugstore.com, inc.
Melinda French Gates ....... 41. Co-Founder, Bill & Mehnda Gates Foundanon
Danlevitan ............... 48  Co-Founder and Managing Member, Maveron LLC
G. CharlesRoy,3rd ......... 41, Vice President of Amazon Services, Amazon.com, Inc.
William D. Savoy-........... 41 Consultant ‘ ‘
Gregory S. Stanger .......... 41  Venture Partner, Technology Crossover Ventures

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS "

An investment in our securztzes irnvolves a high degree of risk. Before dec:dzng to invest in our common
stock, you should carefully consider the risks described below, together with the other information included in or
incorporated by reference into this annual report. If any of the following risks actually occurs, our business,
financial condition or operating results could be materially adversely affected. This could cause the trading price
of our common stock to decline, and you could lose all or part of your investment. Some statements in this
prospectus (including some of the following risk factors) are forward-looking statements. See the section entitled
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Speaal Note
Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” in Part 11, Item 7 of this annual report.

We hdve a history of generatihg.signiﬁcant losses, and may never be proﬁtable.

We have incurred net losses of $737.3 million through January 1, 2006. To date, we have not become
profitable, and we may never achieve profitability. We expect to continue to incur net Josses for at least the next
year, and possibly longer. As a result, our stock price may dechne and investors may lose all or a part of their
investment in our common stock.

We may experience szgmﬁcant [fluctuations in our operatmg results and rate of growth.

Our limited operating hlstory, our evolving business model and the unpredictability of our industry make it
difficult for us to accurately forecast the level or source of our revenues and our.rate of growth. We believe that,
because of these factors, historical trends and quarter-to-quarter comparisons of our operating results are not .
necessarily meaningful and should not be relied on as an indicator of our future performance. In the past, our
operating results have sometimes been, -and it is likely that in some future quarter or quarters they will be, below
the expectations of investors and securities analysts. In that event, the price of our common stock may fall
substantially, and investors may lose all or a part of their investment. ‘

Our revenue growth and profitability depends on 'the continued growth of demandfor the products we offer.

Demand for many of our products, and, therefore, our business, is affected by changes in.consumer
preferences, general economic and business conditions, and world events. For example, threatened or actual
terrorist attacks or armed hostilities (or the resulting security concerns) or natural dlsasters could create economic
and consumer uncertainty and delays in and increased costs of product shipments to .and from us, which may
decrease demand. A softening of demand, for whatever reason, may result in decreased revenue or growth, which
could prevent us from achieving or sustaining profitability. Revenue growth or profitability may not be
sustainable and our company- wlde and by-segment percentage growth rates may decrease in the future.

Our revenues and operating results may vary significantly from quarter to quarter due to a number of
factors, including:

¢ our ability to retain and increase sales to existing customers, attract new customers and satlsfy our
customers’ demands;
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the frequency and size of customer orders and the quantity and mix of products our customers purchase;
changes in consumer acceptance and usage of the Internet, online services and e-commerce;

the price we charge for our products and for shipping those products, or changes in our pricing policies
or the pricing policies of our competitors;

the extent to which we offer free shipping or other promotional discounts to our customers;
our ability to acquire merchandise, manage inventory and fulfill orders;

technical difficulties, system downtime or interruptions;

timing and costs of upgrades and developments in our systems and infrastructure;

timing and costs of marketing and other investments;

disruptions in service by shipping carriers;

the introduction by our competitors of websites, products or services;

the extent of reimbursements available from third-party payors;

an increase in the prices of fuel and gasoline, which are used in the transportation of packages, or an
increase in the prices of other energy products, primarily natural gas and electricity, which are used in
our operating facilities;

changes in the mix of products purchased by our customers. For example, if customers purchase a
higher proportion of generic prescription drugs, which have lower prices and higher margins than
branded drugs, our net sales may decrease while our product margins increase. Moreover, if our OTC
net sales do not grow as much as we anticipate or the proportion of OTC net sales compared to net sales
in other segments is lower than we anticipate, our margins will be lower than we currently plan;

the effects of strategic alliances, potential acquisitions and other business combinations, and our ability
to successfully and timely integrate them into our business;

changes in government regulation; and

current economic conditions and world events.

In addition, our operating expenses are largely based on anticipated revenue trends and a high percentage of
our expenses are fixed in the short term. As a result, a delay in generating or recognizing revenue for any reason
could result in substantial additional operating losses. »

A portion of our revenues is also seasonal in nature. Traditional retail seasonality affects our
over-the-counter, or OTC, business, resulting in higher revenues in the fourth quarter of each year as compared to
other quarters. We may be unable to manage the increased sales effectively, and increases in inventory in
anticipation of holiday sales could negatively affect our cash flow. In addition, sales of some health and beauty
products are driven, to some extent, by seasonal purchasing patterns and seasonal product changes, such as diet
products, cold and flu medications and products with holiday-specific varieties. Consumer fads and other
changes in consumer trends may also cause shifts in purchasing patterns, resulting in significant fluctuations in
our operating results from one quarter to the next.

We face significant competition from both traditional and online retailers.

The market segments in which we compete are rapidly evolving and intensely competitive, and we have
many competitors in different industries, including both the retail and e-commerce services industries. These
competitors include chain drugstores, mass-market retailers, warehouse clubs, specialty retailers, major
department stores, PBMs, health care providers, mail-order pharmacies (legitimate and illegitimate), national
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optical chains, eye care professionals, Internet portals and online service providers that feature shopping services
and various online stores that offer products within one or more of our product categories. Many of our current
and potential competitors have longer operating histories, larger customer bases, greater brand recognition and
significantly greater financial, marketing and other resources than we have. They may be able to secure
merchandise from vendors on more favorable terms, operate with a lower cost structure, adopt more aggressive
pricing policies or devote more resources to technology development and marketing than we do. In addition,
other companies in the retail and e-commerce service industries may enter into business comb1nat10ns or
alliances that would strengthen their competitive positions and prevent them, their affiliated companies or their
strategic partners from entering into relationships with us. An inability to enter into or maintain relationships
with major PBMs, insurance companies or managed care organizations could be a major competitive
disadvantage to us. ; , P _ 1

As various Internet market segments obtain large, loyal customer bases, participants in those segments may
expand into the market segment in which we operate. In addition, new and expanded Web technologies may
further intensify the competitive nature of online retail and allow our competitors to easily duplicate many of the
products, services and content offered on our site. We believe that the Internet facilitates competmve entry into
the retail market and comparison shopping and renders it inherently more competmve than conventional retailing
formats. We expect. competmon in the e-commerce channel to 1nten51fy, and this increased competmon may
reduce our ability to grow and 'as a result, reduce our revenue, increase our operatmg expenses, or both, and
harm our business. ‘

In addition, we face competition from online pharmames outside the United States. Although it is currently
illegal to re-import prescription drugs into the United States from any fore1gn country, a growing number of
American consumers seek to fill their prescmpnons through Canadian and other foreign online pharmacies and a
number of state and local governments have set up websites directing their constituents to Canadlan pharmacies.
The federal Food and Drug Administration, or FDA, has taken only limited action to date, and may not take
aggressive action in the future, against those who 111ega11y re-import prescription drugs or support or facilitate
illegal re-importation. Legislation allowing for re-importation of prescription drugs by individuals for personal
use has repeatedly been introduced into the U.S. Congress. If such legislation were to be enacted, or if consumers
increasingly use foreign-based online prescription drug websites instead of U.S.-based online pharmacies, such
as ours, to fill their prescription needs, our business and operating results could be harmed.

We may be unable to increase the migration of consumers of health, beauty, vision and pharmacy products
from bricks-and-mortar stores to our onlme solution, which would harm our revenues and prevent us from
becoming profitable.

If we do not continue to attract and retain higher volumes of online customers to our Internet stores at a
reasonable cost, we will not be able to increase our revenues or achieve profitability. Our success depends on our
ability to continue to convert alarge number of customers from traditional shopping methods to-online shopping
for health, beauty, wellness, vision and pharmacy products. Specific factors that could prevent ‘widespread
customer acceptance of our online solution include: 3

. shipping cha.rges Wthh do not apply to purchases made at a physical store;

* delivery time associated with Internet orders, as compared to the 1mmed1ate receipt of products at a
physical store; ‘ ‘

* delays in deliveries to customers, particularly our West Coast customers;
* lack of consumer awareness of our websites;
*  additional steps and delays in venfymg prescrlpuons and ensurmg 1nsurance coverage for prescription

products; » ; |
g " i |

. . I
* non-participation in the networks of some insurance carriers and pharmacy benefit managers, or PBMS;
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« regulatory restrictions or reform at the state and federal levels that could impact our ability to serve our
customers;

» the general acceptance or legalization of prescription drug re-importation;

* customer concerns about the security of online transactions, identity theft or the privacy of their
personal health information;

¢ product damage from shipping or shipments of wrong or expired products from us or other vendors,
resulting in a failure to establish customers’ trust in buying drugstore items online;

« inability to serve the acute care needs of customers, including emergency prescription drugs and other
urgently needed products;

* delays in responses to customer inquiries;
» difficulties or delays in returning or exchanging orders; and

* activity that diminishes a user’s online experience or subjects online shoppers to security risks, such as
viruses, spam, spyware and phishing or spoofing e-mails directed at Internet users, viruses and “denial
of service” attacks directed at Internet service providers and online businesses, and breaches of data
security.

If our marketing efforts are not effective at attracting and retaining customers at an acceptable cost, we will
be unable to achieve profitability.

If we do not establish our brand and increase awareness of our products and services, we may not build a
critical mass of customers. Promoting and positioning our brand depends largely on the success of our marketing
efforts and our ability to provide consistent, high quality customer experiences. We believe that, because we are a
small company with low public brand awareness, achieving significant market awareness will require significant
marketing expense. To promote our brand and our products and services, we have incurred and expect to
continue to incur substantial expense in our marketing efforts to both attract and retain customers. Our
promotional activities may not be effective at timely and effectively building our brand awareness and customer
base to the extent necessary to generate sufficient revenue to become profitable. For example, we spent over $5
million during 2005 on a new brand campaign, and we determined that the brand campaign did not produce
results quickly enough to serve our near-term profitability goals. Search engine and other online marketing
initiatives comprise a substantial part of our marketing efforts, and our success depends in part on our ability to
manage costs associated with these initiatives or find other channels to acquire and retain customers cost-
effectively. The demand for and cost of online advertising has been increasing and may continue to increase. An
inability to acquire and retain customers at a reasonable cost would increase our operating costs and prevent us
from becoming profitable.

QOur network and communications systems are vulnerable to system interruption and damage, which could
harm our operations and reputation.

Our ability to receive and fulfill orders successfully is critical to our success and largely depends upon the
efficient and uninterrupted operation of our computer and communications hardware and software systems. We
experience periodic system interruptions that impair the performance of our transaction systems or make our
websites inaccessible to our customers. These systems interruptions may prevent us from efficiently accepting
and fulfilling orders, timely sending out promotional e-mails and other customer communications, introducing
new products and features on our website, timely responding to customers, or providing services to third parties.
Frequent or persistent interruptions in our services could cause current or potential customers to believe that our
systems are unreliable, which could cause them to avoid our websites, drive them to our competitors, and harm
our reputation. To minimize future system interruptions, we need to continue to add software and hardware and
improve our systems and network infrastructure to accommodate increases in website traffic and sales volume,
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replace aging hardware and software, and make up for several years of underinvestment in technology. We may
be unable to timely and effectively upgrade and expand our systems and integrate additional functionality into
our existing systems. Any unscheduled interruption in our services, especially during the holiday shopping
season, could result in fewer orders, additional operating expenses or reduced customer satisfaction, any of which
would harm our revenues and operating results and could delay or prevent our becoming profitable. In addition,
the timing and cost of upgrades to our systems and infrastructure may substantially affect when and if we become
profitable.

Our systems and operations, and those of our suppliers and Internet service providers, dre vulnerable to
damage or interruption from fire, flood, earthquakes, power loss, server failure, telecommunications and Internet
service failure, acts of war or terrorism, computer viruses and denial-of-service attacks, physical or electronic
break-ins, sabotage, and similar events. Any of these events could lead to system interruptions, service delays
and loss of critical data for us, our suppliers or our Internet service providers, and could prevent'us from
acceptmg and fulfilling customer orders. For example, our Internet service provider recently expenenced
network outages that caused our website to be unavailable for several hours. Any significant interruption in the
availability or functionality of dur websites or our customer processing, distribution or communications systems,
for any reason, could seriously harm our business, financial condition and operating results. While we do have
backup systems for some aspects of our operations, we do not have fully redundant backup systems or a formal
disaster recovery plan. Our business interruption insurance may be inadequate to compensate for all losses that
may occur.

All of our fulfillment operations and invehtory are located in our distribution facilities, and any significant
disruption of these centers’ operations would hurt our ability to make timely delivery of our products.

We conduct all of our fulfillment operations from our distribution facilities in New Jersey and Washington.
Our primary distribution centerin New Jersey houses all of our product inventory except for our vision products,
which are housed at our Washington facility. A natural disaster or other catastrophic event, such as an
earthquake, fire, flood, severe storm, break-in, server or systems-failure, terrorist attack or other. comparable
event at either of these facilities, and in particular our New Jersey facility, would cause interruptions or delays in
our business and loss of inventory and could render us unable to:process or fulfill customer orders in a timely
manner, or at all. Further, we have no formal disaster recovery plan and our business interruption insurance may
not adequately compensate us for losses that may occur. In the event that a significant part of either of these
facilities, and in particular our New Jersey facility; were destroyed or our operations were mterrupted for any
extended period of time, our busmess financial condition and operating results would be harmed

If we are unable to optimize management of our dtstnbutwn centers, we may be unable to meet customer
demand.

1

Our ability to meet customer demand may be significantly limited if we do not successfully Operate our
distribution centers. Because it is difficult to predict sales volume we may be unable to manage our facilities in
an optimal way, which may result in excess or insufficient 1nventory, warehousing, fulfillment or distribution
capacity. In addition, failure to effectively control product damage and shrinkage through effective security
measures and inventory management practices could adversely impact our operating margins. Qur margins and
revenues may also be affected if we are unable to obtain products from manufacturers and wholesalers timely -
and on favorable terms. In addition, if we need to increase our distribution capacity sooner than anticipated, that
expansion would require additional financing that may not be available to us on favorable terms when requlred
or at all. :

Under our distribution agreement with GNC, we maintain an inventory of GNC’s products in our primary
distribution center, thereby increasing the complexity of tracking inventory in and operating our distribution
center. Our failure to properly handle GNC’s inventory held by us would result in unexpected costs and other -
harm to our business and reputation. -
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We need to manage changing and expanding operations.

Over the past several years, we have significantly expanded our operations and anticipate that we will
continue to expand. Much of our past growth has come from the acquisition of other companies. Our past growth
has placed, and we expect that our anticipated future operations and expansion will continue to place, a
significant strain on our managerial, operational, financial and other resources. Seasonal increases in website
traffic and sales volume, such as the increases that occur during the fourth quarter holiday season, may also strain
our resources. Some of the administrative and operational challenges we have faced in the past as a result of our
expansion and seasonal growth include the management of an expanded number of product offerings; the
assimilation of financial reporting systems, technology and other systems of acquired companies; increased
pressure on our senior management; and increased demand on our systems and internal controls. Our ability to
manage our operations and expansion effectively depends on the continued development and implementation of
plans, systems and controls that meet our operational, financial and management needs. If we are unable to
develop or implement these plans, systems or controls or otherwise manage our operations and growth
effectively, we will be unable to increase gross margins or achieve profitability and our business could be
harmed.

We are dependent on a limited number of fulfillment and distribution partners. If we are unable to timely and
cost-effectively obtain shipments of product from our vendors and deliver merchandise to our customers, our
business and results of operations would be harmed.

We are obligated to purchase all of our pharmaceutical products through Rite Aid, unless we are able to
obtain better overall terms from another vendor. Our business could be significantly disrupted if Rite Aid were to
breach its contract or suffer adverse developments that affect its ability to supply products to us. If for any reason
Rite Aid is unable or unwilling to supply products to us in sufficient quantities and in a timely manner, we may
not be able to secure alternative fulfillment partners on acceptable terms in a timely manner, or at all.

We cannot control all of the various factors that might affect our timely and cost-effective procuremeni of
products from our vendors and delivery of products to our customers. We also rely on a limited number of third-
party carriers for shipments of products to and from our distribution facilities and to customers. We are therefore
subject to the risks, including increased fuel costs, security concerns, labor disputes, union organizing activity,
and inclement weather, associated with our carriers’ ability to provide product fulfillment and delivery services
to meet our distribution and shipping needs. Failure to procure and deliver merchandise, either to us or to our
customers, in a timely and accurate manner would harm our reputation, the drugstore.com brand, our business
and our results of operations. In addition, any increase in fulfiliment costs and expenses could adversely affect
our business and operating results.

We have significant inventory risk.

We must maintain sufficient inventory levels to operate our business successfully and meet our customers’
expectations that we will have the products they order in stock. However, we must also guard against the risk of
accumulating excess inventory. We are exposed to significant inventory risks as a result of rapid changes in
product cycles, changes in consumer tastes, uncertainty of success of product launches, seasonality, and
manufacturer backorders and other vendor-related problems. In order to be successful, we must accurately
predict these trends and events, which we may be unable to do, and avoid over-stocking or under-stocking
products. In addition, demand for products can change significantly between the time product inventory is
ordered and the time it is available for sale. When we begin selling a new product, it is particularly difficult to
forecast product demand accurately. A failure to optimize inventory would increase our expenses if we have too
much inventory, and would harm our margins by requiring us to make split shipments for backordered items or
pay for expedited delivery from the manufacturer if we had insufficient inventory. In addition, we may be unable
to obtain certain products for sale on our websites, as a result of general shortages (for example, in the case of
some prescription drugs), manufacturer policies (for example, in the case of some contact lenses and prestige
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beauty items), manufacturer or distributor problems or popular demand. Failure to have inventory in stock when
‘a customer orders it could cause us to lose that order or that customer. The acquisition of some types of -
inventory, or inventory from some of our sources, may require significant lead time or prepayment, and this
inventory may not be returnable. We carry a broad'selection of products and significant inventory levels of a *
substantial number of these products, and we may be unable to sell this inventory in sufficient quantities or
during the relevant selling seasons. The occurrence of one or more of these mventory risks may adversely affect
our business and operating results :

Any errors in fillmg or packaging the prescnptzon drugs or contact lenses we dispense may expose us to
liability and negative publicity.

Errors relating to prescriptions, dosage and other aspects of the medication and contact lens dispensing
process may produce liability for us that our insurance may not cover. Because we distribute pharmaceutical
products and contact lenses directly to the consumer, we are one of the most visible part1c1pants in the
distribution chain and therefore have 1ncreased exposure to 11ab111ty claims. -

Our pharmacists are required by law to offer counseling, without additional charge, to our customers about
medication, dosage, delivery systems, common side effects and other information deemed significant by the
pharmacists. Our pharmacists may have a duty to warn customers regarding any potential adverse effects of a
prescription drug if the warning could reduce or negate those effects. This counseling is in part accomplished
through e-mails to our customers and inserts included with the prescription, which may increase the risk of
miscommunication because the customer is not personally present to receive the counseling or adv1ce or may not
have provided us with all relevant 1nformat10n Although we also post product information on our website,
customers may not read this mformatmn Providing information on pharmaceutical and other products creates the
potential for claims to be made -against us for negligence, personal injury, wrongful death, product 11ab111ty, ‘
malpractice, invasion of pnvacy or other legal theories based on our product or service offermgs Our general
liability, product hab1hty and professional habxhty insurance may not cover potenttal claims of this type or may
not be adequate to protect us from all liabilities that may be imposed if any such clalms were to be successful.

Errors by either us or our competitors may also produce significant adverse publicity either for us or for the
online pharmacy and vision industry in general. Because of the significant amount of press coverage on Internet
retailing and online pharmacies‘ we believe that we are subject to a higher level of media scrutiny than other
pharmacy product channels. The amount of negative pubhc1ty that we or the online pharmacy or vision industries
receive as a result of pharmacy ‘or prescription processing errors could be disproportionate in relation to the
negative publicity réceived by other pharmacies or eye care professmnals making similar mistakes. We have no
control over the pharmacy practices of our competitors, aid we cannot ensure that our pharmacists or our
prescription processing will be able to operate completely without error. We believe customer acceptance of our
online shopping experience is based in large part on consumer trust, and errors by us or our corhpetitors and
related negative publicity could erode this trust or prevent it from growing. This could result in'an immediate
reduction in the amount of orders we receive and adversely affect our revenue growth and harm our business and
operating results. ‘

Security breaches could damage our reputation, expose us to liability, or otherwise harm our business.

Our security measures may not prevent security breaches that could harm our business. To succeed, we must
provide a secure transmission of confidential information over the Internet and protect the confidential customer
and patient information we retain, such as credit card numbers and prescription records. A third party who
compromises or breaches the physical and electronic security measures we use to protect transaction data and
customer records could misappropriate proprietary information, cause interruptions.in our operétions, damage
our computers or those of our customers, or otherwise harm our business. Any of these could harm our reputation
and expose us to a risk of loss or litigation and possible liability. We may need to expend significant resources to
protect-against security breaches or to address problems caused by breaches, and our insurance may not be
adequate to reimburse us for losses caused by security breaches.. ‘
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If we do not attract and retain qualified personnel, or if our key employees fail to perform, our ability to
execute our business strategy will be impaired.

We are dependent on our key personnel, and our success depends in large part on our ability to attract and
retain qualified personnel. All of our employees, including our executive officers, can terminate their
employment with us at any time. If we experience significant turnover or difficulty in recruiting new personnel,
or if our key employees fail to perform as expected, our ability to execute our business strategy will be impaired.

Changes in our senior management may have an adverse effect on our ability to execute our business strategy.

Our success depends largely on the efforts and abilities of our senior management to execute our business
plan. Changes in our senior management have been, and future changes may be, disruptive to our business and
may adversely affect our operations. For example, when we have changes in senior management positions, we
may elect to adopt different business strategies or plans. Any new strategies or plans, if adopted, may not be
successful and if any new strategies or plans do not produce the desired results, our business may suffer.

Our relationship with Rite Aid involves many risks and restricts our ability to promote, contract with, or
operate traditional retail stores.

In June 1999, we entered into a series of agreements with Rite Aid. These agreements involve many aspects
of our respective businesses and the operation of our respective websites, the fulfillment of orders and the
extension of Rite Aid’s insurance relationships to cover prescriptions processed by us. Our local pick-up
pharmacy segment, under which prescriptions can be picked up by the customer at any Rite Aid store, depends
on our relationship with Rite-Aid. If we were unable to maintain our relationship with Rite Aid and were unable
to establish a relationship with another company to offer local pick-up of prescriptions ordered through our
website, or if Rite Aid were to close a significant number of its stores, our ability to generate revenue would be
reduced and our business would suffer. In addition, we currently use Rite Aid’s systems to process prescription
orders in both our local pick-up pharmacy segment and our mail-order pharmacy segment. If we were unable to
maintain our relationship with Rite Aid and could not implement an alternative method for processing
prescriptions, through either our own systems or those of a third party, we would be unable to maintain our
pharmacy operations. The loss of our pharmacy sales, which comprised approximately 43% of our net sales in
fiscal 2005, would greatly reduce our revenue and harm our business.

Our arrangement with Rite Aid is complex and requires substantial effort and attention to operate and
manage successfully. There are many risks related to our relationship with Rite Aid, including restrictions on our
ability to promote, contract with or operate traditional retail stores, and the prohibition on our ability to become a
PBM. In the event that we do not realize the intended benefits of this relationship, we will have expended a great
deal of time and effort that could have been directed to more beneficial activities, and we may have foregone
other potentially beneficial business opportunities. In addition, customer perceptions and our business may be
adversely impacted if this relationship is not successful.

While Rite Aid has committed to promoting drugstore.com in its stores and in its advertising, we do not
control the choice of ads in which we are featured, and this form of advertising may not result in additional
drugstore.com customers. In addition, a substantial alteration of Rite Aid’s marketing efforts, or a breach by Rite
Aid of its marketing obligations, could adversely affect our revenues and harm our business. While our
relationship with Rite Aid substantially broadens our ability to provide prescription medications to consumers
with insurance reimbursement plans, it may not allow all of our potential customers to purchase these
medications from drugstore.com and receive insurance reimbursement, which could adversely affect consumer
perceptions of us and our revenues. We have agreed with Rite Aid not to promote any other traditional chain
drugstore or operate one ourselves. We have also agreed not to contract with another traditional retail store to fill
pharmacy product orders we receive unless a Rite Aid store is not conveniently located near a customer. These
restrictions could limit our flexibility and ability to grow our business if our relationship with Rite Aid is not
successful.
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Our relationship with Amazon.com restricts some of our activities. ' S l
oo

Our relationship with Amazon.com restricts our activities. Under our technology license and advertising
agreement with Amazon.com, which we entered in August 1998, we are restricted from promotmg on our
website any other company that sells products or services competitive with those that:Amazon.com offers or is
preparing to produce or market. This restriction could limit our flexibility and ability to expand our product and-
service offerings. In addition, if we were acquired by a competitor of Amazon.com and Amazon.com does not -
approve of the transaction, we would lose our rights to use Amazon.com’s technology, if we were then using any.
We may. not assign the technology license and advertising agreement without Amazon.com’s consent. The
potential loss of these rights could inhibit offers to acquire us. ’

B
I [

If we fail to maintain or enhance our strategic relatmnshlps to help promote our webStte and ‘expand our
product offerings, our development could be hindered. ) p

We believe that our strategic relatronshlps with Rite Aid, Internet portals third- party dlstrlbutors and
manufacturers are critical to attract customers, facilitate broad market acceptance of our products and the
drugstore.com brand and enhance our sales and marketing ‘capabilities: If we are unable to develop or maintain-
key relationships, our ability to attract customers would suffer and our business would be adversely affected: In
addition, we are subject to many risks beyond our control that influence the success or failure of our strategic
partners. Our business could be harmed if any of our strategic partners were to expenence ﬁnancral or
operational difficulties or if other corporate developments adversely affect their performance under our
agreements. |

t

We may ‘be unable to obtain addttwnal capital we.need in the future to support our growth

Our available funds may nof be sufﬁcrent to meet all of our long -term business development requtrements
and we may seek to raise additional funds through public or private debt or equity financings. Any additional
financing that we may need may not be available on terms favorable to us, or at all. If adequate funds are not.
available or are not available on acceptable terms, our strategic flexibility or ability to develop and grow our
business may be significantly limited, ‘

Expanding the breadth and depth of our product and service affermgs is expensive and dzfﬁcult and we may
receive no benefit fmm our expanszon

We intend to' continue to expand the breadth and depth of our product and service offenngs by promotmg
new or complementary products or sales formats. Expansion of our offerings in this manner could require
significant additional expenditures and could strain our management, financial and operational resources. For
example, we may need to incur significant marketing expenses, develop relationships with new fulfillment
partners or manufacturers or comply with new regulations. We may be unable to expand our product and service
offerings or sales formats in a cost-effective or timely manner, and any new offerings or formats may not
generate satisfactory revenues to offset the costs involved. Furthermore, any new product or service offering or
sales format that is not favorably received by consumers could damage the reputation of our brand. A lack of
market acceptance of our efforts or our mabrhty to generate sufficient revenues to offset the cost of expanded.
offerings could harm our business. : i .

We face uncertamty related to pharmaceutical costs and | przcmg, which could affect our revenues and
proﬁtabthty ‘ A

Pharmacy sales accounted for approximately 43% of our total revenue in fiscal year 2005. Sales of our
pharmacy products depend in part on the availability of reimbursement from third-party payors such as
government health administration authorities, private health insurers, managed care organizations, PBMs and
other organizations. These organizations are increasingly challenging the price and cost-effectiveness of medical
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products and services. The efforts of third-party payors to contain costs often place downward pressures on
profitability from sales of prescription drugs. In addition, our products or services may not be considered cost-
effective and adequate third-party reimbursement may not be available to enable us to maintain price levels
sufficient to realize a profit.

In 2006, the Medicare Part D prescription drug benefit under the Medicare Prescription Drug Improvement
and Modernization Act of 2003, or DIMA, became effective. As we expected, the Medicare Part D prescription
drug benefit has negatively impacted, and is likely to continue to impact, our business. A significant portion of
our prescription sales are to customers 65 years old and older. Medicare Part D prescription drug coverage will
likely increase the number of senior citizens with prescription drug coverage and reduce the number of customers
who pay for their prescription drugs themselves. Customers who choose to obtain coverage under a Medicare
Part D plan will likely purchase fewer drugs, or no longer purchase drugs, from us. Because we are not currently
processing claims for Medicare Part D, we will be able to serve Medicare D customers only when the particular
medication is not covered by the customer’s Medicare plans or when the customer’s purchase is not covered
because of a deductible, copayment or other exclusion. Moreover, the DIMA calls for significant changes to the
formulas the Medicare program uses to calculate its payments for prescription drugs, as well as introduction of
managed care elements and changes to the administration of the drug benefit program. When fuily implemented,
these changes could exert downward pressure on prescription drug prices and payments by the government, even
as the number of people who utilize the Medicare benefits to pay for prescription drugs increases. All of these
factors could adversely impact our drug prices and dispensing fees, and ultimately could reduce our profit
margins.

In addition, our revenues from prescription drug sales may also be affected by health care reform initiatives
of federal and state governments, including proposals designed to address other government programs,
prescription drug discount card programs, changes in programs providing for reimbursement for the cost of
prescription drugs by third-party payors and regulatory changes related to the approval process for prescription
drugs. These initiatives could lead to the enactment of additional federal and state regulations that may adversely
impact our prescription drug sales.

If we are unable to obtain insurance reimbursement coverage for our customers, our ability to sell pharmacy
products online could decrease, which would harm our revenues.

To obtain reimbursement on behalf of our customers for the prescription products that they purchase on our
website, we must maintain relationships with insurance companies, managed health organizations and PBMs,
either directly or through our relationship with Rite Aid. Many of our direct agreements with insurance
companies, PBMs and third-party benefits companies are short-term, may be terminated with less than 30 days’
prior notice and are subject to unilateral amendment by the other party. If we are unable to establish, maintain
and leverage our direct relationships with insurers, PBMs and third-party benefit companies, and to the extent
Rite Aid is unable to maintain its relationships or if these relationships do not extend to cover the prescriptions
we process, our ability to obtain reimbursement coverage for our customers would be reduced. This would
reduce the number of customers that fill prescriptions through our website, which would reduce our revenues.

In addition, we must process each customer’s insurance application, which raises the costs of processing
prescription orders and may delay the customer’s initial prescription order. Customers may not embrace our
online insurance coverage procedure.

Our future growth strategy may depend in part on our ability to acquire complementary or strategic
businesses. Any such acquisitions could result in dilution, operating difficulties, difficulties in integrating
acquired businesses and other harmful consequences.

We have acquired, and may in the future acquire, complementary or strategic businesses, technologies,
services and products as part of our strategy to increase our net sales and customer base. The process of
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integrating acquisitions into our business and operations has resulted in, and may in the future result in,
unforeseen operating difficulties and expenditures. Integration of an acquisition also requires significant
management resources that would otherwise be available for operation, ongoing development and expansion of
our business. To the extent we miscalculate our ability to integrate and properly manage acquired businesses,
technologies, services and products, or we depend on the continued service of acquired personnel who choose to
leave; we may have difficulty in achieving our operatmg and strateglc ob_]ectlves In addltlon we may not reahze
the ant101pated beneﬁts of any acqu1smon

We may be unable to 1dent1fy suitable acqu1smon opportunmes or to negotlate and complete acquisitions on
favorable terms, or at all. In addition, any future acquisitions may require substantial capital resources.and we
may need to obtain additional capital or financing, from time to time, to fund these activities. This could resultin
potentially dilutive.issuances of equity securities or the incurrence of debt, contingent liabilities, or-amortization
or impairment ‘expenses related to goodwill and other intangible assets, any of which could harm our business,
financial condition and results-of operation. Sufﬁcrent capital or financing may not be available to us on
sat1sfactory terms, or at all. : ; , ‘

Governmental regulatwn of our business could require szgmﬁcant expendztures, and fallure to comply with
regulations could result i in civil and criminal penalues

Our business is subject to extensive federal, state. and local- regulatlons For example

+ entities such as drugstore.com engaging in the practice of pharmacy are subject to numerous federal and
state regulatory requirements, including those relating to pharmacy licensing and registration, the
* dispensing of prescription drugs, pharmacy recordkeepmg and reporting, and the confidentiality,
security, storage and release of patient records;

e the sale, advertrsement and promotion of, among other things, prescnptlon,JOTC and homeopatmc
medications, dietary supplements, medical devices, cosmetics, foods and other consumer products that
we sell are subject to regulation by the Food and Drug Administration, or FDA, the FT C, the Consumer
Product Safety Comnussmn and state regulatory authorities, as the case may be; and\

= our vision business is subject to the Fairness to Contact Lens Consumers Act and related regulations. of
the FTC, which require all patients to renew their contact lens prescriptions annually and requires third-
party contact lens sellers like Vision Direct, to venfy these prescrlptrons in accordance with specified
procedures ' ‘ ‘
As we expa‘nd our product and’service offerings and more non-pharmaceutical products become subject to
FDA, FTC and other regulatioh, more of our products and services will likely be subject to regulation. In ~ *
addition, regulatory requirements to which our business is subject may expand over time, and some of these
requirements may have a disproportionately negative effect on Internet retailers. For example, a majority of
states now regulaté (and the U.S. Congress recently enacted legislation to regulate) the retail sale of OTC -
products containing pseudoephedrine that might be used as precursors in the manufacture of illegal drugs, and we
are unable to sell these products to customers residing in states-that require retailers to obtain a physical form of
identification or maintain a signature log. Some members of Congress have proposed additional regulation of
Internet pharmacies in an effort to combat the illegal sale of prescription drugs over the Internet, and state
legislatures could add or amend legislation related to the regulation of nonresident pharmacies. In addition to
regulating the claims made for specific types of products, the FDA and the FTC may attempt to regulate the
format and content of websites that offer products to consumers. Complying with regulations is time-consuming,
burdensome and expensive and could delay our introduction of new products or services. For example we
believe that cancellatlons resultlng from prescriptions that cannot be filled under the new FTC, regulatlons have
slowed our sales growth and increased our costs in our vision business. :

In addition, because our ‘website is accessible over the Internet in multiple states and other countries, we
may be subject to their laws and regulations or may be required to qualify to do business in those locations. Our
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failure to qualify in a state or country in which we are required to do so could subject us to taxes and penalties
and we could be subject to legal actions and liability in those jurisdictions. The restrictions or penalties imposed
by, and costs of complying with, these laws and regulations could harm our business, operating results and
financial condition. Qur ability to enforce contracts and other obligations in states and countries in which we are
not qualified to do business could be hampered, which could harm our business.

The laws and regulations applicable to our business often require subjective interpretation, and we cannot be
certain that our efforts to comply with these regulations will be deemed sufficient by the appropriate regulatory
agencies. Violations of any regulations could result in various civil and criminal penalties, including suspension
or revocation of our licenses or registrations, seizure of our inventory, or monetary fines, any of which could
harm our business, financial condition or operating results. Compliance with new laws or regulations could
increase our expenses or lead to delays as we adjust our websites and operations.

Increasing concern about privacy, spam and the use and security of customer information could restrict our
marketing efforts and harm our business.

Internet retailers are also subject to increasing regulation and scrutiny relating to privacy, spam and the use
and security of personal user information. These regulations, along with increased governmental or private
enforcement (for example, by Internet service providers), may increase the cost of growing our business. Current
and proposed regulations and enforcement efforts may restrict our ability to collect and use demographic and
personal information from users and send promotional e-mails, which could be costly or harm our marketing
efforts. For example, if one or more Internet service providers were to block our promotional e-mails to
customers, our ability to generate orders and revenue could be harmed. Further, any violation of privacy, anti-
spam or data protection laws or regulations may subject us to fines, penalties and damages and may otherwise
have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Restrictions imposed by, and costs of complying with, governmental regulation of the Internet and data
transmission over the Internet could harm our business.

We are subject to the same federal, state and local laws generally applicable to businesses, as well as those
directly applicable to companies conducting business online, including consumer protection laws, user privacy
laws and regulations prohibiting unfair and deceptive trade practices. In particular, many government agencies
and consumers are focused on the privacy and security of medical and pharmaceutical records. Further, the
growth of online commerce could result in more stringent consumer protection laws that impose additional
compliance burdens on us. Today there are an increasing number of laws specifically directed at the conduct of
business on the Internet. Moreover, due to the increasing use of the Internet, many additional laws and
regulations relating to the Internet are being debated at the state and federal levels. These laws and regulations
could cover issues such as freedom of expression, pricing, user privacy, fraud, quality of products and services,
taxation, advertising, intellectual property rights and information security. Applicability of existing laws to the
Internet relating to issues such as property ownership, copyrights and other intellectual property issues, taxation,
libel, obscenity and personal privacy could also harm our business. For example, U.S. and international laws
regulate our ability to use customer information and to develop, buy and sell mailing lists. The vast majority of
these laws were adopted before the advent of the Internet, and do not contemplate or address the unique issues
raised by the Internet. Those laws that do reference the Internet, such as the Digital Millennium Copyright Act,
are only beginning to be interpreted by the courts, and their applicability and reach are therefore uncertain. The
restrictions imposed by, and the costs of complying with, current and possible future laws and regulations related
to businesses conducted on the Internet could harm our business, operating results and financial condition.

We may be unable to protect our intellectual property, and we may be found to infringe proprietary rights of
others, which could harm our business, brand and reputation.

Our success depends in substantial part on our proprietary rights, including our technology, copyrights,
trademarks, service marks, trade dress, trade secrets and similar intellectual property. We rely on a combination
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of patent, trademark, trade secret and copyright law and contractual restrictions to protect our proprietary rights.
Despite our efforts: to protect our proprietary rights, however, unauthorized parties may attempt to copy, obtain -
and use technology or information that we regard- as proprietary, such as our sales formats, the technology used
to operate our website, our website content and our trademarks. In addition, the laws of many countries do not
protect our propnetary rights to the.same extent as the laws of the United States.

-We own a number of domain names, hold three patents and have filed applications for seven others, and
have registered several trademarks and filed applications for a number of other trademarks in the United States
and several other countries. We may be unable to secure the trademark registrations or patents for which we have
applied, which could negatively affect our business. Our competitors or others may adopt marks or service names
similar to ours, which could impede our ability to build brand identity and lead to customer confusion, and
owners of other registered trademarks or trademarks that incorporate variations of our marks could bring
potential trade name or trademark infringement claims against us. In addition, the laws of some foreign countries
do not protect our proprietary rights to the same extent as do the laws of the United States, and effective patent,
copyright, trademark and trade secret protection may not be available in such jurisdictions. Our business could be
harmed if we are unable to protect or preserve the value of our trademarks, patents, copyrights, trade secrets or
other proprietary nghts for any reason, or if we are subject to ary clarms or customer confusron related to our
intellectual property or any fallure or 1nab111ty to protect our propmetary rrghts ’

Litigation or proceedmgs before the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office may be necessary in'the future to
enforce our mtellectual property rights, to protect our trade secrets and domain names or to determine the validity
and scope of the proprietary rights of others Any litigation or adverse priority proceedrng or other efforts to
protect our intellectual property could result in substantial costs and diversion of resourceés and could seriously
harm our business and operatmg results Th1rd parties have in the past, and may in the future, also assert clarms
against us alleging infringement, rrusapproprlatlon or other violations of patent, trademark or other proprietary -
rights held by them, whether or not their claims have merit. For example, one of our subsidiaries was sued over
alleged-copyright and trademark violations based on use of “pop-up” advertising, although this‘action was settled
in June 2004 without any material adverse effects to us. We expect that participants in our markets will be
increasingly subject to infringement claims as the number of services and competitors in our industry segment
grows. Any such claims, whether they are with or without merit or are determined in our favor could be time- -
consuming, result in costly litigation, divert the attention of our management, cause service upgrade delays and
harm our business or operating results. Furthermore, as a result of infringement claims we may. be required to
enter into costly royalty or licensing agreements, whrch may not be available on terms that are acceptable to us,
or at all. If a third party successfully asserts an mfnngement claim against us and we are requ1red to pay
monetary damages or royalties or we are unable to obtain suitable non-infringing altemauves or license the
infringed or similar intellectual property on reasonable terms on a timely basis, our busmess could be adversely
affected. ‘ ) , ﬂ

The third-party licenses on which we rely may not continue to be available to us on conrrnercially
reasonable terms. The loss of such licenses could require us to incur greater cost or change our busmess plans,
either of which could harm our business. ‘ ‘ : ,

If people or property are harmed by the products we sell, product lwbzlzty clalms could damage our busmess
and reputatwn oot b "

Some of the products we sell may expose us to product liability claims relating to personal injury, death or
property damage caused by these products and may require us to take actions such as product recalls. Any such
product liability claim or product recall may result in adverse publicity regarding us and the products we sell,
which'may harm our reputation. If we are found liable under product liability claims, we could be required to pay
substantial monetary damages. Further, even if we successfully defend ourselves against this type of claim, we
could be forced to spend a substantial amount of money in litigation expenses, our management could be
required to spend valuable time in the defense against these claims and our reputation could suffer, any of which
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could harm our business. Some of our vendors do not indemnify us against product liability. Further, our liability
insurance may not be adequate to protect us from all liability that may be imposed as a result of these claims, and
we cannot be certain that insurance will continue to be available to us on economically reasonable terms, or at
all. Any imposition of product liability that is not covered by vendor indemnification or our insurance could harm
our business, financial condition and operating resuits.

We may face liability for content on our website.

Because we post product information and other content on our website, we face potential liability for
negligence, intellectual property infringement, indecency and other claims based on the nature and content of the
materials that we post. These kinds of claims have been brought, and sometimes successfully pressed, against
Internet content distributors. In addition, we could be exposed to liability with respect to the unauthorized
duplication of content or unauthorized use of other parties’ proprietary technology. Although we maintain
general liability insurance, our insurance may not cover potential claims of this type or may not be adequate to
protect us from all liability that may be imposed. Any imposition of liability that is not covered by our insurance
or is in excess of our insurance coverage could harm our business, financial condition and operating results.

If Internet use and the online drugstore market do not continue to grow, our ability to generate revenue will
be harmed.

Consumer use of the Internet as a medium for commerce is a relatively recent phenomenon and is still
subject to a high level of uncertainty. If use of the Internet as a medium for commerce does not continue to grow
or grows at a slower rate than we anticipate, our sales would be lower than expected and our business would be
harmed. The number of Internet users and amount of Internet traffic continues to rise, and the Internet
infrastructure may not expand fast enough to meet the increased levels of demand. In addition, the Internet has
experienced, and is likely to experience in the future, outages, delays and other performance problems as a result
of damage to portions of its infrastructure, increasing numbers of users, increasing bandwidth requirements, or
problems caused by viruses, worms and similar programs. These outages and delays could reduce the level of
Internet usage and traffic, which could slow our rate of growth and harm our revenues.

Further, the online market for drugstore products is still developing. The market is significantly less
developed than the online market for books, auctions, music, software and other consumer products. Even if use
of the Internet and electronic commerce continues to increase, the rate of growth, if any, of the online drugstore
market could be significantly less than the online market for other products. Our rate of revenue growth could
therefore be significantly less than other online merchants, which could delay or prevent our becoming profitable
and cause our stock price to decline.

If we do not respond to rapid technological changes, our services could become obsolete and our business
would be seriously harmed.

As the Internet and online commerce industry evolve, we must license technologies useful in our business,
enhance our existing services, develop new services and technologies that address the increasingly sophisticated
and varied needs of our prospective customers and respond to technological advances and emerging industry
standards and practices on a cost-effective and timely basis. We may not be able to successfully implement new
technologies or adapt our web stores, proprietary technology and transaction-processing systems to meet
customer requirements or emerging industry standards. Failure to successfully and timely do so could adversely
impact our ability to build the drugstore.com brand and attract and retain customers.

If we are required to collect sales and use taxes on the products we sell in additional jurisdictions, we may be
subject to liability for past sales and our future sales may decrease.

In accordance with current industry practice and our interpretation of applicable law, we do not currently
collect sales and use taxes or other taxes with respect to shipments of goods into states other than Washington.
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The operation of our distribution centers, the operations of any future distribution centers and other aspects of our
evolving business, however, may result in sales and use tax collection obligations. One or more states or the -
federal government may seek, either throngh unilateral action or through federal legislation, to impose sales or
other tax collection obligations on out-of-jurisdiction companies that engage in electronic commerce as we do.
Moreover, one or more states could begin to impose sales taxes on sales of prescription products, which are not
generally taxed at this time, or impose sales taxes on sales of certain prescription products (such as those used for
pets and farm animals). In either event, customers who order prescriptions at our website and pick them up at a
Rite Aid store would be required to pay sales tax. In addition, we could be subject to significant fines or other
payments for any past failure to comply with tax régulations. For example, the revenue agency of the state of
New Jersey, where our primary distribution center is located, has asserted that we owe state sales tax on some of
our prior sales to New Jersey residents from January 3, 2000 to December 29, 2001.: We do not currently collect
sales tax in New Jersey and, because we are currently appealing the assessment of back sales tax in the Tax Court
in New Jersey, have not paid the amount of back sales tax that is being asserted. If we are unsuccessful in our
appeal, the State of New Jersey may expand its assessment to include other years for which we did not collect
sales tax. In addition, one or more other states may successfully assert that we should collect sales and use or
other taxes on the sale of our products. Either of these could result in substantial tax‘jliabilitiesffor our past sales,
decrease our ability to compete with traditional retailers, and otherwise harm our business, financial condition
and operating results. : ‘ ‘

Currently, decisions of the U.S. Supreme Court restnct the imposition of obhgatrons to collect state and
local sales and use taxes with respect to sales made over the Internet. However, a number of states and the U.S.
Congress have been considering various initiatives that could limit or supersede the Supreme ¢ Court’s position
regarding sales and use taxes on Internet sales, and at least 18 states recently began voluntarrly collecting sales
taxes on Internet sales. If any of these initiatives addressed the Supreme Court’s constltutronal concerns and
resulted in a réversal of its current position, we could be required to collect and remit sales and use taxes in states
other than Washington. In addmon applicable law does not currently require us to collect salés tax on the sales
of prescription medications. If this law were to change, we would be required to collect and remit sales and use
taxes for prescription products. The ir'npo‘sition of additional tax obligations on our business by state and local
governments could create significant administration burdens for us, decrease our future sales and harm our cash

~flow and operating results.

Our officers, directors and siéniﬁcant stockholders own a significant amount of our common stock, which
could discourage an acquisition of drugstore com or make removal of incumbent management more diffi cult.

Executive officers, directors and entities affiliated with them beneficially own approx1mate1y 8% of our
outstanding common stock. These stockholders, if acting together, would be able to significantly influence all
matters requiring approval by .our stockholders, including the election of directors and the approval of mergers or
other business combination transactions. In addition, Amazon.com beneficially ownis approxrmately 14% of our
outstanding stock, and is entitled to designate a director to serve on our board of directors, currently G. Charles
Roy, 3rd. Kleiner Perkins Caufield and Byers, or KPCB, owns approximately 12% of our outstanding stock, and
Ziff Asset Management, L.P., or Ziff, owns approximately 11% of our outstanding stock. Because each owns a
significant percentage of our capital stock, Amazon.com, KPCB or Ziff, or more than one of them, could -
significantly influence all matters requiring approval by our stockholders, including the election of directors and
the approval of mergers or other business combination transactions. Furthermore, because of these substantial
equity stakes in drugstore.com, competitors of Amazon.com, KPCB or Ziff or other potentlalracqurrers could
decide not to merge with, or acquire, us. In addition, in the case of a potential acquisition of drugstore.com by
another party, a substantial equity stake in drugstore.com could prevent the tax- freeitreatment of an acquisition,
making drugstore.com a less attractive acquisition candidate. In addition, if any of our significant stockholders
were to sell a substantial quantity of their holdings in a short perrod of time, our stock price could decline.




If we fail to maintain an effective system of internal controls or discover material deficiencies in our internal
controls over financial reporting, we may not be able to report our financial results accurately or detect fraud,
which could harm our business and the trading price of our stock.

Effective internal controls are necessary for us to produce reliable financial reports and are important in our
effort to prevent financial fraud. We are required to periodically evaluate the effectiveness of the design and
operation of our disclosure controls and procedures. These evaluations may result in the conclusion that
enhancements, modifications or changes to our internal controls are necessary or desirable. While management
evaluates the effectiveness of our internal controls on a regular basis, we cannot provide absolute assurance that
these controls will always be effective. There are inherent limitations on the effectiveness of internal controls,
including collusion, management override, and breakdowns in human judgment. Because of this, control
procedures are designed to reduce rather than eliminate business risks. If we are unable to produce reliable
financial reports or prevent fraud, or if we fail to maintain an effective system of internal controls or if
management or our independent registered public accounting firm were to discover material deficiencies in our
internal controls, it could harm our financial condition and results of operations and could cause the trading price
of our stock to decline.

Our stock price is likely to continue to fluctuate, which could result in substantial losses for investors.

The market price of our common stock has been, and is likely to continue to be, extremely volatile. Our
stock price could be subject to wide fluctuations in response to a number of factors, including those described in
this annual report, some of which are beyond our control, and these fluctuations could result in substantial losses
for investors.

In the past, securities class action litigation has often been brought against a company following periods of
volatility in the market price of its securities. We have been named in such stockholder class action lawsuits in -
the past, including several putative class action suits filed against us and some of our current and former officers
and directors in and after June 2004 in the United States District Court for the Western District of Washington.
These lawsuits, which were later consolidated into one lawsuit, alleged violations of the federal securities laws.
Although the District Court dismissed this lawsuit, we may be the target of similar litigation in the future. In
addition, in August 2004 two stockholder derivative lawsuits were filed against some of our current and former
directors and officers in the Superior Court for the State of Washington, King County. The two suits allege that
the defendant officers breached their fiduciary duties by selling drugstore.com stock while in possession of
material non-public information, and that the defendant directors and officers breached their fiduciary duties by
failing to prevent alleged false and misleading statements and omissions about our prospects and business results
for fiscal year 2004, Securities litigation could result in substantial costs and divert management’s attention and
resources, which could seriously harm our business and operating results and cause the trading price of our stock
to decline.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our principal executive offices are located in Bellevue, Washington, where we lease approximately 53,000
square feet under a lease that expires in July 2013, with two separate five-year renewal options that, if exercised,
would extend the lease expiration to July 2023. We also lease office space of approximately 4,000 square feet in
Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada, under a lease that expires in September 2008, which we are currently
subleasing through September 2006. Our primary distribution facility for our OTC and mail-order pharmacy
segments is located in Swedesboro, New Jersey, where we lease approximately 290,000 square feet under a lease
that expires in December 2010, with options to renew for two additional five-year periods. The distribution
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facility for our vision segment is located in Ferndale, Washington, where we lease approxima{ely 16,600 square
feet under a lease that expires in July 2008, with an option to renew for an additional five-year period. We lease
approximately 11,500 square feet under a lease that expires in March 2011 for our prmmpal customer care center,

which is located in Halifax, Nova Scot1a Canada.
i

‘We believe that our facilities prov1de sufficient capacny to meet our demands for at 1east the next two years,
are bemg appropriately utilized and have sufficient production capacity for their present 1ntended purposes.
Management reviews our anticipated requirements for facilities and the costs and benefits assoc1ated with new
facilities and, based on that revxew may adjust our facilities needs.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

See Note 8 of our consolidated financial statements, ”Com}nithieni‘s and Contingencies—Legal
Proceedings,” included in Part IV, Item 15 of this anr_lual report.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITIES HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of our stockholders during the fourth quarter of ﬁscal year 2005.
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PART I
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON STOCK, RELATED SHAREHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
Market Information

Our common stock is quoted on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol “DSCM.” The following
table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the high and low sales prices of our common stock, as reported by the
NASDAQ National Market.

High Low

Fiscal Year Ended January 1, 2006

FIrst QuUarter ... e e $3.84 $2.15
Second QUAMET ... ittt e e e $4.78  $2.13
Third QUAtET .. oo ottt e et e e e e e $4.30  $3.25
Fourth QUarter . . ... ...ttt e e e $3.80 $2.50
Fiscal Year Ended January 2, 2005

FIrst QUATtEr . ..ttt e e e e $8.00 $4.76
Second QUarter . ... ... e e e $6.08  $2.89
Third QUATTEL . . o oo v et e e e e ettt e e $3.52  $2.02
Fourth QUarter . ... ... . e i e $398 $291

Holders of Record

As of March 3, 2006, there were approximately 811 holders of record of our common stock, and a much
larger number of beneficial owners.

Dividends

We have never declared or paid cash or stock dividends on our capital stock. We currently intend to retain
all available funds and any future earnings for use in the operation and expansion of our business and do not
anticipate paying any dividends in the foreseeable future.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

On October 5, 2005, we entered into a license agreement, dated as of September 9, 2005, with Furnace
Brook LLC. Under the terms of the license, we issued 10,000 shares of our common stock to Furnace Brook. The
issuance of these shares was exempt from registration under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, as a private
offering under Section 4(2) of the Securities Act.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

None.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Consolidated Statements of Operations Data:
Netsales .................. e e

Loss before income taxes, extraordinary gain, and
cumulative effect of changes 1n accounting
principles® ., .. ........... e

Extraordinary gain on renegotiation of equity
QUATANIEE ... ...\ttt

Cumulative effect of changes in accounting

principles ... .. ... o o

Netloss ........coiiiviii i,

Basic and diluted loss per share:
Prior to extraordinary gain and cumulative
* effect of changes in accounting
principles ............. ... ... e
Extraordinary gain . ....................
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting
principles ......... ... i,

Weighted average shares outstanding used to
compute basic and diluted loss per share . . . . ..

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:
Cash, cash equivalents and marketable

SECUMEIES . o vt vt ve e i
Cash dividends declared per common share ... ..
Working capital ................ ... ...
Totalassets . .........c vty
Long-term debt obligations, less current

POItION ... ..ottt
Total stockholders’ equity ...................

Fiscal Year -

72005 2004 2003

2002 2001

(ih thousands, except share and per share data)

$ 399430 8 360,099 $ 245,733

(20,899) (48,715) (18,649)

- 980 —

$ 193,908 $ 145,258

@1429)  (286,204)

—~ 7500

(8,905) (4,121)

$ (20,899) $ (47,735) $ (18,649) $ (50,334) $ (282,825)

$ 023) § (0.62)‘$ 027) § .(061) §  (433)

— 0.11

(0.13) (0.06)

$ (0.23) $ 062) $ 027) $  (074) $ 4.28)

90,808,817 76,650,915 69,148,872

- 67,762,667 66,024,855

$ 46463 $§ 34219 $ 43572

40,350 27,719 32,043

170,563 -+ 158,511 184,412

2,685 1,807 600
$ 96271 $ 87,128 § 128,218

i

$ 61,867 $ 78,756

54,433 80,816
128,504 171,298

452 638
$ 93940 $ 141,851

™ Includes impairment charges to long-lived assets of $27,460 in 2004 and $178,403 m 2001.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and
accompanying notes included in Part [V, Item 15 of this annual report.

Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This annual report on Form 10-K includes forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. All statements made in this annual report other than statements of
historical fact, including statements regarding our future financial and operational performance, are forward-
looking. Words such as “targets,” “expects,” “believes,” “anticipates,” “intends,” “may,” “will,” “plan,”
“continue,” “forecast,” “remains,” “would,” “should,” and similar expressions, are intended to identify forward-
looking statements. Forward-looking statements are based on current expectations, are not guarantees of future
performance and involve assumptions, risks, and uncertainties. Actual performance may differ materially from
those contained or implied in such forward-looking statements. Risks and uncertainties that could lead to such
differences could include, among other things: effects of changes in the economy, changes in consumer spending,
fluctuations in the stock market, changes affecting the Internet, online retailing and advertising, difficulties
establishing our brand and building a critical mass of customers, the unpredictability of future revenues and
expenses and potential fluctuations in revenues and operating results, risks related to business combinations and
strategic alliances, possible tax liabilities relating to the collection of sales tax, consumer trends, the level of
competition, seasonality, the timing and success of expansion efforts, changes in senior management, risks
related to systems interruptions, possible governmental regulation and the ability to manage a growing business.
These and other risks and uncertainties that could cause our actual results to differ significantly from
management’s expectations are described in the following discussion and in the section entitled “Risk Factors” in
Part I, Item 1A of this annual report. You should not rely on a forward-looking statement as representing our
views as of any date other than the date on which we made the statement. We expressly disclaim any intent or
obligation to update any forward-looking statement after the date on which we make it.

3y 4 3% <

Overview

drugstore.com, inc. is a leading online provider of health, beauty, vision and pharmacy products. We believe
that we offer a better way for consumers to shop for these products through our web stores, including those
located on the Internet at www.drugstore.com, www.beauty.com, www.visiondirect.com, www.lensmart.com and
www.lensquest.com.

We operate on a 52/53-week retail calendar, with each quarter in a 52-week fiscal year representing a
13-week period. Fiscal year 2005 was a 52-week fiscal year; fiscal year 2004 was a 53-week fiscal year, with the
fourth quarter representing a 14-week period. References in the following discussion to yearly periods are to
fiscal years, unless the context indicates otherwise. For example, “2005” refers to the fiscal year ended January 1,
2006.

Business Segments; Growth Strategies. We operate our business in four business segments:
over-the-counter, or OTC, mail-order pharmacy, local pick-up pharmacy, and vision. The organization of our
business into these four distinct segments allows our management to gain a comprehensive financial view of each
of our key businesses and our business as a whole. In addition, this segmentation better allows us to align
strategies in fulfillment, marketing and customer care in order to optimize the overall customer experience, both
within each segment and across all segments, and to maximize growth.

*  Over-the-counter (OTC). Our OTC segment includes all non-prescription products sold online or over
the telephone through our web stores at www.drugstore.com, www.beauty.com, www.visiondirect.com,
www.lensmart.com and www.lensquest.com, and customized nutritional supplements sold through our
subsidiary Custom Nutrition Services, Inc., or CNS. Until November 9, 2005, our OTC segment also
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included.product revenues and fulfillment fees received under our wholesale OTC fulfillment agreement
with Amazon.com, Inc., under which we acted as a nonexclusive wholesaler and fulfillment provider for
certain OTC products sold through the Health & Personal Care store on the Amazon.com website.
Effective November 9, 2005, we terminated this. agreement. We source our OTC ‘products from various
manufacturers and distributors. We believe that continued growth in this segment will depend on our
ability to offer customers a superior shopping experience and service, including providing a broad
selection of basic necessity items and hard-to-find specialty items, which encourages customers to
return to our websites and make repeat, replenishment, and impulse purchases. In 2006, we will focus
on improving website conversion, refining our personahzatlon efforts both 'on our websne and in
promotional e-mails, and max1m121ng the proﬁtablhty of each order. '

*  Mail-Order Pharmacy.  Our mail-order pharmacy segment includes prescription: drugs and supphes

+ other than prescription contact lenses, sold online or over the telephone through the www.drugstore.com
web store.and delivered to customers through eur mail-order facility. We obtain our prescription
inventory through Rite Aid Corporation as part of our ongoing relationship. We market to and.serve
both cash-paying and-insurance-covered individuals, and we also serve as a third-party provider-of mail-
order prescription services for pharmacy benefit management companies, or PBMs, and third-party
benefits companies. In this segment, we focus our marketing efforts on establishing broader

- relationships with PBMs and maximizing growth in our cash prescription business. We anticipate that
continued growth in this s€gment in 2006 w1ll substantially depend on our ability to grow prescription
volumes through these efforts.

«  Local Pick- Up Pharmacy. Our local plck—up pharmacy business segment 1nc1udes prescnptlon refills
sold online or over the telephone through the www.drugstore.com web store or the www. riteaid.com web
. store (which is powered by the www. drugstore com web store) and picked up by customers at Rite Aid
stores. In this segment, Rite Aid acts as our fulfillment partner. Our success,in this segment depends on
our ability to leverage our relationship with Rite Aid through its marketing ; medla including Rite Aid
store receipts, weekly Rite Aid advertising circulars and e-mail refill reminders. In 2006, we anticipate
that net sales in the local pick-up pharmacy segment will remain flat in comparison to 2005, as we focus
. the majority of our marketing efforts on our core OTC and mail-order pharmacy segments.

Vision. The vision segment includes contact lenses sold through our wholly owned subsidiary
International Vision Direct Corp. and its subsidiaries, collectively referred to as Vision Direct, through
websites located at www.visiondirect.com, www.lensmart.com and www.lensquest.com. We purchase our
contact lens inventory directly from various manufacturers and other distributors. In 2006, we plan to
focus on a strategy of balancing customer acquisition with net margin in order to maximize our profits,
rather than focusing exclusively on growth. ‘

Revenues. We generate revenue primarily from product sales and shipping fees In 20035, we reported
consolidated total net sales of $399.4 million, which reflected a $39.3 million, or 11%, increase over the 53-week
period in 2004. Net sales increased 13% year-over-year when calculated on'a comparative 52-week basis, Our
net sales growth was driven by an 8% increase in our total order volume, to 5.1 million orders, and, to a lesser
extent, a 2% increase in our average net sales per order, to $78. Our net sales benefited from strong year-over-
year growth in our core OTC and mail-order pharmacy segments, which grew by 16% and 18%, respectively,
over 2004 (19% and 21%, respectively, on a comparative 52-week basis). Excluding wholesale OTC net sales
and fulfillment fees of $6.3 million in 2005 and $14.1 million in 2004, our net sales in the OTC segment
increased by 23% year-over-year (26% on a comparative 52-week basis). Net sales in our local pick-up pharmacy
segment increased 4% year-over-year (6% ona comparative 52-week basis) and net sales in our vision segment
decreased by 3% year-over-year (remaining flat on a comparative 52-week basis). '

Expenses.‘ Our operating expenses, including cost of goods sold, decreased in 2005 to 106% of net sales,
compared to 114% in 2004, primarily due to the absence of impairment charges of $27.5 million recorded in
2004 to goodwill and other intangible assets related to our vision segment. As a percentage of net sales,
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fulfillment and order processing expenses and general and administrative expenses both decreased year-over-year
and technology and content expenses and marketing and sales expenses both increased year-over-year. In
addition, cost of goods sold decreased as a percentage of net sales year-over-year, as our fixed corporate
infrastructure costs were spread over greater net sales.

Net Loss; Cash Position. Our net loss for 2005 decreased by 56%, or $26.8 million, to $20.9 million,
compared to $47.7 million in 2004, primarily as a result of the absence of goodwill and intangible asset
impairment charges of $27.5 million recorded in 2004, We ended 2005 with $46.5 million in cash, cash
equivalents and marketable securities, compared to $34.2 million at the end of 2004. This balance reflects cash
flow activity in 2005 consisting of $26.0 million in proceeds from the sale of 10.0 million shares of our common
stock in a private placement, $1.7 million in proceeds received from term loans, asset financings and advances
under our line of credit, and $2.1 million in proceeds from the exercise of stock options and sales from our
employee stock purchase plan, partially offset by $9.8 million used to fund operating activities, $1.6 million used
to repay long-term debt obligations and $6.0 million used for capital expenditures.

Significant Accounting Judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
requires estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and
expenses and related disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and
accompanying notes. The Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC, has defined a company’s critical
accounting policies as the ones that are most important to the portrayal of the company’s financial condition and
results of operations, and that require the company to make its most difficult and subjective judgments, often as a
result of the need to make estimates of matters that are inherently uncertain. Based on this definition, we have
identified the significant accounting policies and judgments addressed below. We also have other key accounting
policies that involve the use of estimates, judgments and assumptions that are significant to understanding our
results. Additional information about our significant accounting policies is included in Note 1 of our consolidated
financial statements included in Part IV, Item 15 of this annual report. Although we believe that our estimates,
assumptions and judgments are reasonable, they are based upon information presently available. Actual results
may differ significantly from these estimates under different assumptions, judgments or conditions. In addition,
any significant unanticipated changes in any of our assumptions could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenues in accordance with SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104, Revenue Recognition.

Revenues from sales of OTC, mail-order pharmacy, and vision products are recorded net of promotional
discounts, cancellations, rebates and returns allowances. Revenue is recognized when the following revenue
recognition criteria are met: (1) persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists; (2) delivery has occurred or
services have been rendered; (3) the selling price or fee revenue earned is fixed or determinable; and
(4) collection of the resulting receivable is reasonably assured. We generally require payment by credit card at
the point of sale. Return allowances, which reduce product sales by our estimate of expected product returns, are
estimated using historical experience. Historically, product returns, and differences between our estimates and
actual returns, have not been significant.

Revenues from sales of OTC products ordered through the Amazon.com website and fulfilled by
drugstore.com were recognized when we shipped the products from our distribution center. According to the
criteria outlined in Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 99-19, Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal Versus
Net as an Agent, or EITF 99-19, we recorded fulfillment fees and revenues generated by the Amazon.com
agreement in our OTC segment on a gross basis, because we believe we acted as a principal, based on the fact
that we bore general inventory risk associated with these sales. Effective November 9, 2005, we terminated our
agreement with Amazon.com. Neither party has any material obligations following termination.
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Before December 31, 2003, all sales of customized vitamins through CNS were recognized on a gross basis,
net of promotional discounts, cancellations, rebates and returns allowances. On.December 31, 2005, we entered
into a fulfillment agreement with Weil Lifestyle, LLC, or Weil:: Under the new agreement, revenues from sales of
customized vitamins sold through our fulfillment agreement with Weil are recognized when products are shipped
and title passes to the customer. In accordance with EITF 99-19, we now record revenues generated by the Weil
agreement in our OTC segment on a net basis, because we act as an agent, based on the fact that we earn a fixed
dollar amount per customer transaction regardless of the amount billed to the customer and we do not bear
general inventory risk associated with these sales. Non-Weil customized. vitamin sales contmue to be recognized
on a gross basis, net of promotional drscounts cancellatrons rebates and returns allowances

|t I . ' N , . . i

Revenues from sales of prescription products ordered online or by telephone through the drugstore.com web
store or the RiteAid.com‘web store (which is powered by the drugstore.com web store) for pick-up at a Rite Aid
store, including co-payments received and collected on our behalf by Rite Aid, are recognizediwhen the customer
picks up the product. In these circumstances, we utilize Rite Aid as our fulfillment partner. According to the
criteria outlined in EITF 99-19, we record revenues in our local pick-up pharmacy segment on a gross basis,
because we believe we act as a principal, based on the fact that, among other things, we bear both inventory risk
and credlt and collectlon risk assoc1ated wrth these sales. ) ‘ \

For insured prescrrptlons 1n both our local pick-up. and mail-order segments, the co- payment and the
1nsurance reimbursement (Wthh together make up the amount due to drugstore. com) constltute the full value of
the prescnptlon drug sale, and we receive this entire amount as cash. We therefore recognize ‘the entire amount as
revenue when the order is sh1pped to the customer (for mall order prescnptrons) or plcked up by the customer
(for local pick- up prescriptions). '

Periodically, ywe provide incentive offers to oiir customers to encourage purchases. Such offers include
discounts on specific current purchases or future rebates based upon'a percentage of the current purchase, as well
as other offers. Drscounts when accepted by our customers are treated as a reduction to the sales price of the
related transaction ‘and are presented as a net'amount in net sales Rebates are treated as a reduction to sales price
based on estimated redemption rates. Redemptron rates afe estimated using our historical experience for similar
offers. Hrstoncally, our redemptron rates have not d1ffered materrally from our estlmates which are adjusted
quanerly

Inventories

. We valug our. 1nventor1es at the lower of cost (using the weighted-average cost method) or the current
estimated market value, We regularly review inventory quantities on hand and adJust our inventories for
shrinkage and slow-moving, damaged and expired inventory, which is recorded as the difference between the
cost of-the inventory and the estimated market value based on management’s assumptions about future demand
for the products we offer and market conditions. We use;a variety of methods to reduce the quantity of slow-
moving inventory, including reducing sales prices on-our websites, negotiating returns to vendors, and
liquidating inventory through third parties. If our estimates of future product demand or our assumptions about
market conditions are inaccurate, we could understate or overstate the provision required for excess and obsolete

“inventory. Historically, inventory reserves have not differed materially from our estimates.

Goodwill and Other Intangzble Assets

In accordance with.Statement of Frnancral Accountlng Standards No 142 Accountmg for., Goodwzll and
Other Intangibles, or FAS 142, we de not amortize goodwill but instead test for impairment -at|least annually. We
test for impairment at the beginning of the fourth quarter or whenever indicators of impairment.occur. The first
phase of the test screens for impairment. If impairment is determined, the second phase measures the amount of
impairment by comparing the fair value'of the applicable reporting unit to its carrying value. Fair value is
determined using either a discounted cash flow methodology or methodology based on comparable ‘market prices.
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We review our indefinite-lived intangible assets, other than goodwill, for impairment when indicators of
impairment occur and annually at the beginning of the fourth quarter. We compare the carrying value of the asset
to its estimated fair value and record an impairment charge when the carrying value of the asset exceeds the
estimated fair value.

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards, or SFAS, No. 144, Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets, or SFAS 144, we review the carrying values of our amortized
long-lived assets, including definite-lived intangible assets, whenever an indicator of impairment occurs. When
facts and circumstances indicate that the carrying values of long-lived assets may be impaired, we perform an
evaluation of recoverability. The determination of whether impairment exists is based on any excess of the
carrying value over the expected future cash flows, as estimated through undiscounted cash flows, excluding
interest charges. We measure any resulting impairment charge based on the difference between the carrying
value of the asset and its fair value, as estimated through expected future discounted cash flows, discounted at a
rate of return for an alternate investment. For further detail regarding goodwill and other intangible assets, see
Notes 5 and 6 of our consolidated financial statements included in Part IV, Item 15 of this annual report.

If our estimates of revenue growth or future cash flows prove to be inaccurate, we may have a future
impairment of goodwill, other intangible assets or long-lived assets.

Legal Proceedings

We are currently involved in various claims and legal proceedings. Quarterly, we review the status of each
significant matter and assess our potential financial exposure. If the potential loss from any claim or legal
proceeding is considered probable and the amount can be estimated, we accrue a liability for the estimated loss.
Because of uncertainties related to these matters, accruals are based only on the best information available at the
time. As additional information becomes available, we reassess the potential liability related to our pending
claims and legal proceedings and may revise our estimates. Any such revisions in the estimates of the potential
liabilities could have a material impact on our future results of operations and financial position. For a
description of our material legal proceedings, see Note 8 of our consolidated financial statements, Commitments
and Contingencies, included in Part IV, Item 15 of this annual report.

Acquisitions
International Vision Direct Corp.

On December 8, 2003, we acquired Vision Direct, a privately held Internet retailer of contact lenses. Under
the terms of the acquisition agreement, we acquired Vision Direct for $56.6 million in aggregate consideration,
comprised of $10.0 million in cash, 6,830,601 shares of common stock having an aggregate fair value of $45.7
million, and related transaction costs. 50% of the shares were held in escrow for the duration of a post-acquisition
contingency period, and were released from escrow in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004. The primary reason for
the acquisition of Vision Direct was to enhance our offering with products in the vision category.

In 2004 we recorded an impairment charge of $22.8 million to reduce the carrying value of the goodwill
related to our Vision Direct business to its fair value. In addition, in 2004 we recorded an impairment loss of $4.7
million on other intangible assets related to the Vision Direct business, which consisted of $2.8 million for
indefinite-lived assets and $1.9 million for definite-lived assets.

For further detail regarding this acquisition, assets and liabilities acquired and impairment charges related to

these assets, see Notes 2, 5 and 6 of our consolidated financial statements included in Part IV, Item 15 of this
annual report.
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Custom Nutrition Services .

On April 28, 2003, we acquired Concept Development LLC, conducting business under the name Custom
Nutrition Services, a privately held company providing personalized nutrition services to consumers. Under the
terms of the acquisition agreement, we acquired CNS for $4.3 million in aggregate consxderatlon comprised of
$1.5 million in cash, 635,593 shares of our common stock having an aggregate fair value of $2.5 million (45,000
shares of which we later recovered from escrow) and related transaction costs. The shares were held in escrow
for thé duration of a contingency period that expired in December 2003. The acquisition agreement also provides
for the payment by us of additional purchase consideration of up to $10.0 million, payable over three years from
the date of the acquisition, based on the future attamment of specific performance targets by the CNS business.
During each fiscal year 2005 and 2004, we paid $56,000 to the sellers of the CNS business under this earn-out
provision. The primary reason for the acquisition of CNS was to enhance our offering in the customized nutrition
and wellness market. ‘ ‘

For more detail regarding this acquisition and assets and liabilities acquired, see Notes 2 and 5 of our
consolidated financial statements included in Part IV, Item 15 of this annual report.

Results of Operations
Net Sales
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year i‘ Fiscal Year
. 2005 % Change 2004 % Change 2003
. ) R : (in thousands, except per order data)
Total netsales ............ e e $399,430 10.9% $360,099 146.5%  $245,733
Total customer orders shlpped ..... e 5,119 8.4% 4,721  42.6% 3,310
Average net salesperorder ..................... $ 78 23% $ 0 76 i 27% §$ 74

Net sales includes gross revenues from sales of product and related shipping fees, net of discounts and
provision for sales returns, third-party reimbursement and other allowances. Net sales also includes fulfillment
fees and product revenue from our recently terminated wholesale OTC fulfillment agreement with Amazon.com,
and consignment service fees earned from our arrangement with General Nutrition Corporation, or GNC, under
which we do not take title to the inventory and cannot establish pricing. Consignment service fees are booked on
a net basis and constitute approximately 1% of total net sales in each period presented. Orders are billed to the
customer’s credit card or, in the case of prescriptions covered by insurance, the co-payment is billed to the
customer’s credit card and the remainder of the prescription price is billed to insurance. Sales of pharmaceutical
products covered by insurance are recorded as the sum of the amounts received from the customer and the third
party. Sales made to Amazon.com under our wholesale OTC fulfillment agreement were bllled directly to
Amazon.com and recorded at the gross amount recelved from Amazon.com.

Total net sales increased in 2005, compared to 2004, primarily as a result of an 8% increase in order volume
(11% on a comparative 52-week basis), to 5.1 million ‘orders from 4.7 million in 2004 and, to a lesser extent, a
2% increase in average net revenue per order, to $78. Order volume increased from 2004 pnrnanly as a result of
strong growth in our OTC and mail-order pharmacy segments Orders from repeat customers increased 15.2%
and orders from new customers increased 2.6% over 2004. (Order volume includes new and repeat orders made
through the drugstore.com website and the websites of our subsidiaries, and orders generated through our
wholesale OTC fulfillment agreement with Amazon.com. Wholesale OTC orders are considered neither repeat
nor new orders.) Average net revenue per order increased over 2004 as a result of growth in net sales per order in
each of our segments, particularly within our mail-order pharmacy segment, which grew by 8%to $147.
Compared to 2004, net sales in our OTC éegment increased by $25.3 million, or 16%, net sales in our mail-order
pharmacy segment increased by $11.7 million, or 18%, net sales in our local pick-up pharmacy segment
increased by $3.7 million, or 4%, and net sales in our vision segment decreased by $1.3 million, or 3%.
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Total net sales increased in 2004, compared to 2003, primarily as a result of a 43% increase in order volume
(substantially due to the acquisition of Vision Direct), to 4.7 million orders from 3.3 million in 2003, and, to a
lesser extent, a 3% increase in average net revenue per order, to $76. Order volume increased from 2003
primarily as a result of strong growth in our OTC and mail-order pharmacy segments, the acquisition of Vision
Direct and the addition of our wholesale OTC fulfiliment agreement with Amazon.com. Average net revenue per
order increased over 2003 as a result of growth in net sales per order in each of our segments, particularly within
our mail-order pharmacy segment, which grew by 16% to $136. Compared to 2003, net sales in our OTC
segment increased by $46.2 million, or 42%, net sales in our mail-order pharmacy segment increased by $14.8
million, or 30%, and net sales in our local pick-up pharmacy segment increased by $7.3 million, or 9%. Net sales
in our vision segment, in the first full year of results following our December 2003 acquisition of Vision Direct,
were $48.4 million,

OTC Net Sales
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2005 % Change 2004 % Change 2003
(in thousands, except per order data)
OTCnetsales . .......ccviiiiiii i, $180,566 16.3% $155,316 423% $109,154
Segmented net sales information:
% of total net sales from OTC ............... 45.2% 43.1% 44.4%

Average net sales perorder ..................... $ 57 — $ 57 36% $ 55

Our net sales in the OTC segment (including wholesale OTC) in 2005 increased $25.3 million to $180.6
million, compared to $155.3 million in 2004, as a result of a 15% increase in OTC order volume. Excluding
wholesale OTC net sales and fulfillment fees of $6.3 million in 2005 and $14.1 million in 2004, our net sales in
the OTC segment increased by 23% year-over-year. On a comparative 52-week basis, OTC net sales increased
19% and, excluding wholesale OTC, increased 26%. The number of orders in this segment grew by 15% to
3.2 million in 2005, compared to 2.7 million in 2004, reflecting increases in the numbers of both repeat orders
from existing customers and orders from new customers, offset by a decline in wholesale OTC orders. Average
net sales per order in this segment remained flat at $57 for both 2005 and 2004. During 2005 and 2004, we did
not implement material price changes in our OTC products generally.

Our net sales in the OTC segment (including wholesale OTC) in 2004 increased $46.2 million to $155.3
million, compared to $109.2 million in 2003, as a result of an increase in customer orders and average net sales
per order. Wholesale OTC net sales and fulfillment fees were $14.1 million in 2004 and $57,000 in 2003. The
number of orders in this segment grew by 35% to 2.7 million in 2004, compared to 2.0 million in 2003, reflecting
increases in the numbers of repeat orders, new customer orders and wholesale OTC orders. Average net sales per
order in this segment increased in 2004, compared to 2003, as a result of increases in the average number of
items per order and increased purchases of higher-priced items. During 2004 and 2003, we did not implement
material price changes in our OTC products generally.

Mail-Order Pharmacy Net Sales

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2005 % Change 2004 % Change 2003

(in thousands, except per order data)
Mail-order pharmacy netsales .................. $75,612 183%  $63,936 30.1%  $49,155
Segmented net sales information:
% of total net sales from mail-order
pharmacy ......... ... i 18.9% 17.8% 20.0%
Average netsalesperorder ..................... $ 147 81% §$§ 136 162% $ 117
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Our net sales in the mail-order pharmacy segment increased $11.7 million to $75.6 million in 2005,
compared to $63.9 million in 2004 and $49.2 million in 2003, as a result of year-over-year increases in order
volume and average net sales per order. On a comparative 52-week basis, net sales in our mail-order pharmacy
segment increased by 21% in 2005, compared to 2004. The number of orders in this segment grew by 10% to
515,000 in 2005, compared to 471,000 in.2004 and 421,000 in 2003, reflecting year-over-year increases in the
numbers of both repeat orders from existing customers and orders from new customers. The average net sales per
order in this segment increased in 2005 and 2004, compared to the prior year, as a result of a larger proportion of
customers purchasing supply quantities of 90 days or more, as well as increases of approximately 6% in 2005 and’
5% in 2004 in the average price per prescription resulting from higher pharmaceutical costs. !

Local Pick-up Pharmacy Net Sales

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2005 % Change 2004 % Change 2003

‘ (in thousands, except per order data)
Local pick-up pharmacy net sales ................ $96,126 40%  $92,440 '8.6%  $85,131
Segmented net sales information: '
% of total net sales from local pick-up ‘ -
‘ Pharmacy ... ...ooiiii 24.1% 25.7% 34.6%
Average net sales perorder ........ e .. $ 109 48% $ 104 83% $ 96

Our net sales in the local pick-up pharmacy increased $3.7 million to $96.1 million in 2005, compared to
$92.4 million in 2004 and $85.1 million in: 2003, as a result of year-over-year increases in average net sales per
order. On a comparative 52-week basis, net sales in our local pick-up pharmacy segment increased by 6% in
2005, compared to 2004. The number of orders in this segment remained relatively flat at 880,000 in 2003,
compared to 892,000 in 2004 and 886,000 in 2003. The average net sales per order in this segment increased in
2005 and 2004, compared to the prior year, as a result of year-over-year increases in the average price per
prescription paid by the customer and the average number of prescnptlons per order.

Vision Net Sales

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2005 % Change 2004 % Change 2003

(in thousands, except per order data)

Vision'netsales ........... e . L. $47,126 (26)% $48,407 © NM $2,293
Segmented net sales information: ‘ " ‘ P

% of total net sales from vision ... .......... C118% ©134% 1.0%
Average net salesperorder ..................... '$ 8 - 38% $ 79 NM 5 7

Our net sales in the vision segment decreased by $1.3 million to $47.1 million in 2005, compared $48.4
million in 2004, as a result of a decline in the number of customer orders, partially offset by an increase in the
average net sales per order. On a comparative 52-week basis, net sales in our vision segment remained flat. The
number of orders in this segment decreased by 7% to 572,000 in 2005, compared to 615,000 m 2004, and the
average net sales per order increased to $82 in 2005, compared to $79 in 2004. The year-over-year increase in
average net sales per order resulted primarily from an increase in the average number of items per order and
increased purchases of higher-priced specialty contact lenses. Our net sales in the vision segment increased by
$46.1 million to $48.4 million in 2004, compared to $2.3 million in the last three weeks of 2003. Because we
acquired Vision Direct in December 2003, comparisons between 2004 and 2003 are not meaningful.

" -Customer Data

During 2005, 1.2 million new customers placed orders, increasing our total customer base to 7.2 million
customers since inception, compared to 6.0 million customers at the end of 2004 and 4.8 million customers at the
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end of 2003. Orders from repeat customers as a percentage of total orders was 72% in 2005, compared to 67% in
2004 and 71% in 2003. In 2005, the increase in orders from repeat customers as a percentage of total orders,
compared to 2004, is the result of improved customer retention and increased order frequency, and to a lesser

" extent, a decline of 33% in wholesale OTC orders (which are included in the number of tota) orders but are
considered neither repeat nor new orders for calculating repeat orders as a percentage of total orders). In 2004,
the decrease in orders from repeat customers as a percentage of total orders, compared to 2003, reflects the
inclusion of 352,000 of wholesale OTC orders compared to 32,000 in 2003.

Cost of Sales
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year ) Fiscal Year
2005 % Change 2004 % Change 2003
($ in thousands)
Costofsales ............c.ciiiiiiiinn... $317,366 10.6% $286,858 46.7% $195,501
Percentof totalnetsales ....................... 79.5% 79.7% 79.6%

Cost of sales consists primarily of the cost of products sold to our customers, including allowances for
shrinkage and damaged, slow-moving and expired inventory, outbound and inbound shipping costs, and expenses
related to promotional inventory included in shipments to customers. Payments that we receive from vendors in
connection with volume purchase or rebate allowances are netted against cost of sales.

Total cost of sales increased in absolute dollars in 2005 and 2004, compared to the prior year, as a result of
growth in order volume and net sales. Cost of sales as a percentage of net sales decreased slightly in 2005,
compared to 2004, primarily as a result of higher product margins in our OTC segment, partially offset by higher
shipping costs. Cost of sales as a percentage of net sales in 2004 remained relatively flat, compared to 2003, as a
result of a full year of sales in our higher-margin vision segment offset by increased costs from the addition of
our lower-margin wholesale OTC fulfillment business, lower margins in our mail-order pharmacy segment and
increased shipping costs.

Shipping costs continue to exceed the amount we charge customers for shipping. Our revenues from
shipping charges to customers are included in net sales and were $11.1 million in 2005, $10.2 million in 2004,
and $6.3 million in 2003. Outbound shipping costs are included in cost of sales and were $21.4 million in 2005,
$17.5 million in 2004, and $11.2 million in 2003. During the last week of the first quarter of 2005, we
discontinued our shipping policy that provided free 3-day shipping on non-prescription orders of $49 or more.
We replaced this shipping policy with a tiered policy, under which we charge a fee for standard ground shipping
(which we waive for non-prescription orders meeting a minimum purchase requirement) and charge a larger fee
for 3-day shipping (which, until the fourth quarter of 2003, we waived for non-prescription orders of $99 or
more). The cost reductions resulting from this change in our shipping policy were neutralized by rate increases
and fuel surcharges from our shipping carriers, a higher proportion of orders being shipped to Alaska, Hawaii,
U.S. Territories, and APO/FPO military addresses (all of which are more expensive shipping locations), and
greater package weights resulting from a greater number of items per order. In November 2005, we added
shipping surcharges for shipments to Alaska, Hawaii, U.S. Territories, and APO/FPO, and we increased the
upgrade charge for 3-day shipping for customers who qualify for free ground shipping. In the fourth quarter of
2005, we eliminated free 3-day shipping on orders of $99 or more. We expect to continue to subsidize a portion
of customers’ shipping costs for the foreseeable future, through free shipping options, as a strategy to attract and
retain customers.
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OTC Cost of Sales

'
b

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year ' \ Fiscal Year

2005 % Change 2004 % Change 2003
. ' ' ($ in thousands) :
OTCcostofsales ............ e $130 346 15.0% $113,354 488%  $76,173
Segmented cost of sales information: : » ‘ ‘ . :
OTC cost of sales as a % of OTC ret sales . . ... 722% - : “73.0% - 69.8%

Cost of sales in our OTC segment increased in absolute dollars in 2005, compared to 2004, as a result of -
growth in order volume and net sales. Cost of sales as a percentage of net sales in this segmentidecreased in
2005, compared to 2004, as a result of hlgher product margins partially offset by higher shipping costs. Cost of
sales in this segment increased in absolute dollars in 2004, compared to 2003, as a result of growth in order
volume and net sales and orders generated through our lower-margin wholesale OTC business. ‘Cost of sales as a
percentage of net sales in this segment increased in 2004, compared to 2003, as a result of the higher costs
associated with our free 3-day shipping program and other discount promotions, as well as selhng a greater
proportion of Iower—margm wholesale OTC orders.

)

Mail-Order Pharmacy Cost of Sales : M , A

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year ‘ Fiscal Year

2005 % Change 2004 % Change 2003
- (% in thousands) 1
Costofsales ............... SN - $65,352 20.0% $54/450  34.5%  $40,479
Segmented cost of sales information: o :
Mail-order pharmacy cost of sales as a % of ; ;
mail-order pharmacy netsales ............. - 86.4% 85.2% 82.3%

Cost of sales in our mail-order pharmacy segment increased in absolute dollars in both 2005 and 2004,
compared to the prior year, as a result of increased order volume and net sales and higher per-order product costs
in each period. Cost of sales as a percentage of net sales, and per-order product costs,'in this segment increased in
2005 and 2004, compared to the prior year, as a result of our initiatives to grow this segment by providing third-
party fulfillment services to PBMs. This strategy focuses on fulfilling 90-day-or- greater order quantmes which
generates higher per-order revenue than 30-day quantity orders but also results in higher per- order product costs

}

and lower product margins. ‘ ‘ i

Local Pick-up Pharmacy Cost of Sales . ) B
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year ; Fiscal Year

2005 % Change 2004 % Change 2003
: Lo ($in thousands) -
Costofsales ................. e L. 584,660 29%  $82,268 6.4%  $77.312
Segmented cost of sales information: " ‘ ‘ D .
Local pick-up pharmacy cost of sales as a % of ‘ ! :
local pick-up pharmacy netsales . ... ....... " 88.1% 89.0% \ 90.8%

Cost of sales in our local pick-up pharmacy segment increased in absolute dollars in both 2005 and 2004,
compared to the prior year, as a result of higher per-order product costs in each period. Cost of sales as a
percentage of net sales in this segment decreased in both 2005 and 2004, compared to the prior year, as a result of
selling a higher proportion of higher-margin generic drugs compared to lower-margin branded drugs, as well as
higher product margins on sales of generic drugs.
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Vision Cost of Sales

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2005 % Change 2004 % Change 2003

($ in thousands)

Costofsales ..........c. i, $37,008 06% $36,786 N/M $1,537
Segmented cost of sales information:
Vision cost of sales as a % of vision net sales . . . 78.5% 76.0% 67.0%

Cost of sales in our vision segment remained flat in absolute dollars in 2005 compared to 2004, and cost of
sales as a percentage of net sales increased in 2005 compared to 2004, as a result of increased shipping costs,
increased per-order product costs, increased promotional activity, and decreasing margins due to competitive
pricing. Because we acquired Vision Direct in December 2003, comparisons between 2004 and 2003 are not
meaningful.

Fulfillment and Order Processing Expense

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2005 % Change 2004 % Change 2003
($ in thousands)
Fulfillment and order processing expense .......... $39,853 1.1%  $39,416 36.4%  $28,888
Percentage of netsales . ........................ 10.0% 10.9% 11.8%

Fulfillment and order processing expenses include expenses related to payroll and related expenses for
personnel engaged in purchasing, fulfillment, distribution, and customer care activities (including warehouse
personnel and pharmacists engaged in prescription verification activities), distribution center equipment and
packaging supplies, per-unit fulfillment fees charged by Rite Aid for prescriptions ordered through the
drugstore.com website and picked up at a Rite Aid store, credit card processing fees, and bad debt expenses.
These expenses also include rent and depreciation related to equipment and fixtures in our distribution center and
call center facilities. Variable fulfillment costs represent the incremental (variable) costs of fulfilling, processing
and delivering the order that we believe are variable based on sales volume.

Fulfillment and order processing expenses for 2005 were comprised of $30.5 million of variable costs and
$9.4 million of fixed costs, compared to $27.4 million of variable costs and $12.0 million of fixed costs in 2004.
The 11% increase in variable fulfillment and order processing expenses resulted primarily from increases in
order volume in our OTC and mail-order pharmacy segments and, to a lesser extent, increases in variable
per-order fulfillment costs in our vision segment, partially offset by a decrease in variable per-order fulfiliment
costs in our OTC segment. The 21% decrease in fixed fulfillment and order processing expenses resulted
primarily from a decrease in depreciation expense for assets fully depreciated during 2004. Fulfillment and order
processing expenses as a percentage of net sales also declined in 2005, compared to 2004, as greater order
volumes resulted in improved utilization of our primary distribution center.

Fulfillment and order processing expenses for 2004 were comprised of $27.4 million of variable costs and
$12.0 million of fixed costs, compared to $18.3 million of variable costs and $10.6 million of fixed costs in 2003.
The 50% increase in variable fulfillment and order processing expenses resulted from an increase in order
volume (substantially due to the acquisition of Vision Direct), as well as increased per-order labor fulfillment
costs in our OTC segment and increased per-order customer care costs in our mail-order pharmacy segment. The
13% increase in fixed fulfillment and order processing expenses resulted from the addition of fixed costs related
to distribution activities in our vision segment. Despite the dollar increase in 2004, compared to 2003, fulfiliment
and order processing expenses as a percentage of net sales declined year-over-year as greater volumes resulted in
improved utilization of our primary distribution center.
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Marketing and Sales Expense

- Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2005 % Change 2004 % Change 2003
' o - ‘ ’ ($ in thousands)
Marketing and sales expense .. ... ... e $32,592 32.7% $24,567 . 40.5%  $17,482

Percentage of netsales . ............. e 8.2% - 68% 7.1%

Marketing and sales expenses include marketing expenses, advertising expenses under various advertising
contracts, promotional expenditures and payroll and related expenses for personnel engaged in marketing and
merchandlsmg activities. In addition, marketing and sales expense include CNS-related royaltres of $2.5 million
for 2005, $2.2 million for 2004 and $1.4 million for 2003. Advertising expenses include various advertising
contracts, including the expense assoc1ated with a marketing agreement with Amazon.com that, was terminated in
September 2003. We recognized $0 in 2005, $0 in 2004, and $1.1 million in 2003 in marketmg and sales expense
related to this marketing agreement.

Marketing and sales expenses increased both in absolute dollars and as a percentage of net sales in 2005,
compared to 2004. These increases were primarily due to $6.7 million of additional marketing costs (including
'$5.5 million related to our brand advertising campaign and personalization initiatives), as well as an increase in
personnel costs of $1.0 null1on Marketing and sales dollars per new customer increased to $27 in 2005,
compared to $21 in 2004.

Marketing and sales expenses increased in absolute dollars in 2004, compared to 2003, but declined asa™
percentage of net sales to an all-time low in 2004. The increase in absolute dollars was primarily due to the
integration of the marketing activities of Vision Diréct and the testing of various new promotlonal programs
associated with the new vision business. The decrease as a percentage of net sales in 2004 reflected our growing
trailing 12-month customer base and growth in our annual net sales per active customer In addition, the decrease
reflected growth in our mail- order pharmacy segment, which growth primarily resulted from our relationships
with PBMs and third- party benefits companies rather than from direct-to-consumer marketmg efforts and the

addition of our wholesale OTC business, under which we did not incur significant marketmg costs

Technology and Content Expense

) Fiscal Year ) Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2005 % Change 2004 % Change 2003
T ‘ : o t ($ in thousands)
Technology and contentexpense ................. $12 768 34.6%  $91483 114.5% $8,283
Percentage of netsales . ... .. Ve e L. 32% C26% 3.4%

-Technology and content expenses consist primarily of payroll and related expenses for personnel engaged in
developing, maintaining and making routine upgrades and enhancements to our websites. Technology and
content expenses-also include Internet access and hosting charges, depreciation on hardware and IT structures,
and website content and design expenses.

| .

Technology and content expenses mcreased both in absolute dollars and as a percentage of net sales in 2005,
compared to 2004. The dollar i increase was primarily due an increase of $1.5 million i in personnel costs, an
increase of $800,000 in depreciation expense from the acquisition of software and computer equrpment related to
enhancements to our IT infrastructure, the write-off of $660,000 of internally developed software projects and, to
a lesser extent, 1ncreased administrative expenses. Technology and content expenses increased i in absolute dollars
but declined as a percentage of net sales in 2004, compared to 2003. The dollar increase was pnmanly due to an
increase of $800,000 in depreciation expense and an increase of $400, 000 in personnel costs. The decrease as a
percentage of net sales resulted from our fixed technology and content costs being spread over more net sales. In
addition, in 2005, 2004 and 2003, we capitalized $2.8 million, $1.9 million and $500,000 of labor costs related to
internally developed software projects.

40




General and Administrative Expense

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2005 % Change 2004 % Change 2003

($ in thousands)
General and administrative expense .............. $14,048 (13.3%) $16,200 45.8% $11,111
Percentage of netsales ......................... 3.5% 4.5% 4.5%

General and administrative expenses consist of payroll and related expenses for executive and
administrative personnel, corporate facility expenses, professional service expenses, travel expenses and other
general corporate expenses.

General and administrative expenses decreased in both absolute dollars and as a percentage of net sales in
2005, compared to 2004. The dollar decrease was primarily due to $800,000 of recruitment and transition
expenses related to the hiring of our chief executive officer in 2004, a $492,000 non-cash litigation settlement
expense recorded in 2004, and lower depreciation expenses related to assets being fully depreciated in 2004. The
decrease as a percentage of net sales resulted from our fixed corporate infrastructure costs being spread over
more net sales. General and administrative expenses increased in absolute dollars but remained unchanged as a
percentage of net sales in 2004, compared to 2003. The dollar increase was primarily due to increased legal and
accounting fees, including expenses related to the implementation of the requirements associated with the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, transition costs associated with operating our vision business, the recruitment and
transition expenses related to the hiring of our new chief executive officer and an expense of $492,000 related to
a non-cash litigation settlement with Arlington Contact Lens Service, Inc. General and administrative expenses
remained flat as a percentage of net sales as a result of our fixed corporate infrastructure costs being spread over
more net sales.

Amortization of Intangible Assets

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2005 % Change 2004 % Change 2003
(% in thousands)
Amortization of intangible assets ................ $3,004 (24.0%) $3,952 129.1% $1,725
Percentage of netsales .. ....................... 0.8% 1.1% 0.7%

Amortization of intangible assets includes the amortization expense associated with assets acquired in
connection with our acquisitions of CNS, Acumins, Inc., and Vision Direct, assets acquired in connection with
our agreements with Rite Aid and GNC, and other intangible assets, including a technology license agreement,
domain names and trademarks.

Amortization expense decreased in 2005 compared to 2004, as a result of the $1.9 million write-down of
intangible assets related to our vision segment that we recorded in 2004. Amortization expense increased in 2004
compared to 2003 as a result of the acquisition of Vision Direct in December 2003.

Stock-based Compensation

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2005 % Change 2004 % Change 2003

($ in thousands)
Stock-based compensation . .................... $1,968 59.0%  $1,238 (38.5%) $2,014
Percentageof netsales . ........................ 0.5% 0.3% 0.8%

We record deferred stock-based compensation expense in connection with stock options granted at below
market value on the date of grant to our employees in all operating expense categories. The deferred stock-based
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compensation expense amounts for these options represent the difference between the exercise price of the
options and the fair value of our common stock on the date of grant. In addition, we record stock-based
compensation in connection with options and warrants issued to non-employees for the performance of services
and when we modify the terms of previously issued options or warrants. The deferred stock-based compensation
expense amounts for these options and warrants represent the fair value of the options or warrants, as determined
using the Black-Scholes method. All such amounts are amortized to expense over the vesting perlods of the
options and warrants granted, using the multlple -option approach.

We recogmzed stock-based compensatlon expense of $1 5 mﬂhon in 2005, $0. 8 million in 2004, and $O 7
million in 2003 related to the amortization of deferred stock-based compensatlon related to stock options issued
with an exercise price lower than the fair value of the underlying common stock. We also recognized stock-based
compensation expense of $0.2 million in 2005, $0.4 million in, 2004, and $1.3 million in 2003 for certain options
that were modified for terminated employees, and $0.3 million in 2005, $0 in 2004, and $0 in 2003 related to the
1ssuance of options and warrants to non-employees for the performance of services.

Impairment of Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

' Fiscal Year Fiscal Year : Fiscal Year

2005 % Change 2004 % Change 2003

: ‘ ‘ ) ' C ($ in thousands)
Empairment of goodwill and other intangible assets' . . - — " N/A $27,460 N/A —
Percentage of nétsales . . . ... e ceee o — 7 6% —

As part of our quarterly review of financial results for the third quarter of 2004, we noted indicators that the
carrying value of goodwill and other intangible assets related to the acquisition of Vision Direct might not be
recoverable, which resulted in an impairment review. We performed the impairment review because of lower-
than-expected sales growth partially attributable to challenges we faced in complying with the contact lens
prescription access and verification requirements of the U.S. Fairness to Contact Lens Consumers Act, which
was enacted in February 2004, and the related regulations of the Federal Trade Commission implemented in
August 2004, and an increasingly competitive contact lens marketplace. As a result, we evaluated the
recoverability of goodwill and other intangible assets in accordance with SFAS 142 and SFAS 144.

Based on the analysis, we determined that the carrying amount of our vision segment was in excess of its.
fair value. Therefore, we were required to perform the second-step analysis on the vision segment to determine
the amount of the impairment loss. As a result of our analysis under SFAS 142 and 144, we recorded impairment
charges of $22.8 million to goodwill and $4.7 million to other intangible assets ($2.8 million to indefinite- hved
and $1.9 million to definite-lived). ' !

No impairment or restrucﬁuﬁng charges were recorded in 2005 or 2003.

Interest Income and Expense
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year ‘ Fiscal Year
2005 % Change 2004 % Change 2003

| ($ in thousands) .
Interest income, net ........ B $1,270 2528%  $360 (42.1%)  $622

Interest income consists of earnings on our cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities, and interest
expense consists primarily of interest associated with capital lease and debt obligations. Net interest income
increased in 2005 compared to2004 as a result of increased cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities
balances resulting from the sale of 10.0 million shares of our common stock in a private placement in March
2005, and increases in interest rates. Net interest income decreased in 2004 compared to 2003 asa result of
decreasing cash, cash equivalent and marketable securities balances.
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Income Taxes

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2005 % Change 2004 % Change 2003

($ in thousands)

Incometax benefit . .......... ... .. ... ... ... — N/A $980 N/A —

In 2004, we recorded an income tax benefit that resulted from the impairment of certain indefinite-lived
intangible assets and related reduction in deferred tax liabilities that were recorded in connection with our
acquisition of Vision Direct. In 2005 and 2003, there was no provision or benefit for income taxes due to our
ongoing operating losses.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 1 of our consolidated financial statements, “The Company and Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies—Recent Accounting Pronouncements,” included in Part IV, Item 15 of this annual report.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We have incurred net losses of $737.3 million since inception. We believe that we will continue to incur net
losses for at least the next year, and possibly longer. From our inception through January 1, 2006, we have
financed our operations primarily through the sale of equity securities, including common and preferred stock,
yielding net cash proceeds of $413.6 million.

Discussion of Cash Flows
The following table provides information regarding our cash flows for the last three fiscal years:

Fiscal Year
2005 $ Change 2004 $ Change 2003

($ in thousands)
Net cash used in operating activities . . ............... $ (9,803) $ 839 $(10,692) $(6,892) $ (3,800)
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities ..... $(13,481) $(26,670) $ 13,189 $20,990 $ (7,801)
Net cash provided by financing activities . ............ $28,084 $22,125 $ 5959 $ 5423 $ 536
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ............ $ 4,800 $ (3,656) $ 8,456 $19,521 $(11,065)

Net cash used in operating activities in 2005, 2004 and 2003 primarily reflects net losses and changes in
operating assets and liabilities, partially offset by non-cash expenses. Net cash used in operating activities
decreased in 2005, compared to 2004, primarily as a result of decreased uses of other working capital. Net cash
used in operating activities increased in 2004, compared to 2003, primarily as a result of increased uses of other
working capital and increased investments in inventory.

Net cash used in investing activities in 2005 was primarily attributable to the purchase of marketable
securities and the acquisition of fixed assets, partially offset by the net proceeds received from the sales and
maturities of marketable securities. Net cash provided by investing activities in 2004 was primarily attributable to
the net proceeds from the sales and maturities of marketable securities, partially offset by the purchases of
marketable securities and the acquisition of fixed assets. Net cash used in investing activities in 2003 was
primarily attributable to the purchases of marketable securities and business acquisitions, and to a lesser extent
the purchase of fixed assets, offset by the net proceeds from the sales and maturities of marketable securities.

Net cash provided by financing activities in 2005 was primarily attributable to $26.0 million of net proceeds
received from the sale of 10.0 million shares of our common stock, in addition to cash provided from exercises of
employee stock options, borrowings under our revolving line of credit agreement with a bank, and proceeds from
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term loans and asset financings, partially offset by payments on our debt obligations. Net cash provided by
financing activities in 2004 and 2003 was attributable to cash provided from exercises of employee stock options
and borrowmgs under our term loan with a bank and asset financings, partially offset by payments on our debt
obligations. ‘ -
. ! P L . ) .

Until required for other purposes, our cash and cash equivalents are maintained in deposit accounts or highly

liquid investments with remaining maturities of 90 days or less at the time of purchase Our marketable
securities, which 1nclude commerc1al paper auctlon rate securities, corporate notes and .government bonds, are,
con31dered short- term as they are avallable to fund current operatlons

The following table provides information regarding our balances of cash and cash eqnivalents and
marketable securities for the last three fiscal years:

January 1, January 2, December 28,

: . 2006 . ., 2005 . 2003
C ) : . : - (in thousands) .
Cash and cashequivalents ...............ccovevirenunn. $20,291 $15,491 $ 7,035
Marketable securities . ... ... i e 26,172 18,728 ‘ 36,537

40 $46,463  $34,219 ' $43,572

Liquidity Sources, Requirements and Contractual Cash Requirements and Commttments

Our principal sources of liquidity are our cash, cash equivalents and marketable securltles Historically, our
principal liquidity requuements have been to meet our working capital and capital expendlture needs

Our primary source of cash is sales made through our websites, for which we collect cash from credit card
settlements or insurance reimbursements. Our primary uses of cash are purchases of inventory, salaries,
marketing expenses, and overhead and fixed costs. Any projections of our future cash needs and cash flows are
subject to substantial uncertamty for the reasons discussed in this section and in the section entitled “Risk
Factors” in Part I, Item 1A of this annual report.

In October 2005, we entered into an agreement to lease computer equipment under a non-cancelable capital
lease. With respect to each draw under this lease, 63.5% of the sum of the draw amount plus interest determined
at the time of the draw is payable in monthly installments over the 24 months following the draw. At the end of
the 24-month period, we will either pay the remaining 36.5% in a single balloon payment or extend financing for
an additional 12 months. All draws under this lease, which are limited to $1.2 million, must be completed by
June 2006. We have drawn the entire-$1.2 million under this lease, payable in 24 monthly installments of
$37,600 at an interest rate of 9.4%. s S .

In December 2004, we entered into an amended and restated 1oan and security agreement wrth a bank. The
agreement includes a revolving line of credit allowing for borrowings up to $1.0 million through June 30, 2005
and allowed for an additional $2.0 million of borrowings thereafter, based on certain conditions specified in the
agreement. The interest rate on the revolving line of credit is the prime rate plus 0.25% (7.5% at January 1,
2006),.and the revolving line of credit has a maturity. date of one year from the date of borrowing. In January
2005, we borrowed $1.0 million on the line of credit and, in December 20035, we converted the $1.0 million line
of credit into a term loan. The term loan totaled $1.0 million as of January 1, 2006 and is. payable in 36 monthly .
installments of principal and interest at a rate of prime rate plus 0.50% (7.75% at January 1, 2006). In addition,
the agreement includes.a $2.0 million term loan for.capital equipment expenditures that accrues interest on the
outstanding principal balance at a rate of prime rate plus 0.50%. This term loan is payable in 36 equal monthly
installments of principal, plus accrued interest, beginning on February 1, 2005 and ending on January 1, 2008.
The balance outstanding under this term loan was $1.4-million as of January 1, 2006 and $2.0 million as of
January 2, 2005. The borrowings under the agreement are collateralized by our equipment, inventory, and
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intangible assets. The agreement contains certain financial and non-financial covenants with which we were in
compliance at January 1, 2006.

In March 2006, we entered into an amended and restated loan and security agreement with the same bank.
This agreement includes a revolving line of credit allowing for borrowings of up to $7.5 million, which accrue
interest at the prime rate. The revolving line of credit has a maturity date of one year from the date of advance.
The agreement allows for the conversion of up to $2.5 million of the outstanding balance into a term loan within
60 days of maturity.

We also lease computer equipment under non-cancelable capital leases. Capital lease obligations bear interest
at rates ranging from 2% to 10% and mature 24 to 60 months from the date of funding. We secured additional funds
of $1.2 million during 2005 and $536,000 during 2004 through capital lease financing agreements, wherein we
financed certain computer equipment, software, fixtures and equipment for periods of two years.

On March 2, 2005, we issued 10.0 million shares of our common stock in a private placement, for aggregate
cash consideration of $26.0 million.

In connection with lease arrangements for our corporate headquarters, we were required to provide two
standby letters of credit as security deposits. The letters of credit were issued in the amounts of approximately
$500,000 in July 2004 and approximately $550,000 in October 2004. Both letters of credit were collateralized
with cash. Effective October 1, 2005, one of these letters of credit expired and was replaced by another letter of
credit. The replacement letter of credit, which will be renewed annually until the end of the lease term, is funded
under our revolving line of credit and is not required to be secured with cash. The cash previously used as
collateral for the expired letter of credit, approximately $570,000, was therefore released and made available for
use in operations. The other letter of credit expired on November 30, 2005 and approximately $515,000 was
released and made available for use in operations.

As of January 1, 2006, our principal commitments consisted of obligations outstanding under capital and
operating leases and our term loan, as follows (in thousands):

Payment Due by Period
Total <lyear 1-3years 3-5years > 5years
($ in thousands)
Capital leases (1 ... ... $ 2,551 $1,231 $1320 §$ — $ —
Termloans @ . . ... .. . 2,624 1,092 1,501 31 —_
Operatingleases @ .. ...... .. ... ... i 16,839 2,664 5,228 5,091 3,856

$22,014 $4,987 $8,040 85,122 $3,856

M Capital lease obligations consist primarily of technology and operations assets.
@ Term loans include debt obligations with a bank.
3 Operating lease obligations consist of office building, distribution center and call center leases.

We do not have any future material noncancelable commitments to purchase goods or services.

We believe that our sources of cash will be sufficient to fund our operations and anticipated capital
expenditures until we begin generating positive operating cash flow. However, any projections about our future
cash needs and cash flows are subject to substantial uncertainty. As a result, we may need to raise additional
funds to fund our operating activities or for strategic flexibility (if, for example, we pursue business or
technology acquisitions or decide to build a new distribution center or if our expectations regarding our
operations and anticipated capital expenditures change). We have in the past and will continue to assess
opportunities for raising additional funds by selling equity, equity-related or debt securities, obtaining additional
credit facilities or obtaining other means of financing for strategic reasons or to further strengthen our financial
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position. We cannot be certain that additional financing'will be available to us on acceptable terms when
required, or at all. Furthermore, if we were to raise additional funds through the issuance of securities, such
securities may have rights, preferences or privileges senior to those of the rights of our common stock and our
stockholders may experlence addmonal dllutlon :
Managéniént (_)ﬁtlook y 3 o o _
For the first quarter of fiscal year 2006, we are targeting net sales in the range of $102.0 millien to $107.0
million. We anticipate a net loss for the first quarter in the range of $7.2 million to $8.2 million. For fiscal year
2006, we are targeting net sales in the range of $440.0 million to $460.0 million. We anticipate a net loss for the
year in the range of $15.0 million to $20.0 million.

These projections are subject-to substantial uncertainty.:See “Risk Factors” in Part I, Item. 1A of this annual
report and “Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” above.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE ABOUT MARKET RISK

We have assessed our vulnerability to certain marketrisks, including interest rate risk associated with
marketable securities, accounts.receivable, accounts payable, capital lease obligations, and cash and cash
equivalents. Due to the short:term nature of these investments and our investment policies and procedures, we'
have determined that the risk associated with interest rate ﬂuctuatlons related to these financial: 1nstruments is not
material to us. Co T ‘ ‘ :

We have interest rate exposure arising from our financing facilities, which have variable rates. These
variable interest rates are affected by changes in short-term interest rates. We manage our interest rate exposure
by maintaining a conservative debt-to-equity ratio. We believe that the effect, if any, of reasonably possible near-
term changes in interest rates on our financial position, results of operations and cash flows will not be material.
Our financing facilities expose net earnings to changes in short-term interest rates because interest rates on the
underlying obligations are variable. Borrowings outstanding under the interest-bearing financing facilities totaled
$2.4 million at January 1, 2006, and the highest interest rate attributable to this outstanding balance was 7.75% at
January 1, 2006. A change in net éarnings resulting from a hypothetical 10% increase or decrease in interest rates
would not be matenal . i ‘

We have investment risk exposure arifsing from our investments in marketable securities. As of January 1,
2006, we had $26.2 million of securities classified as “marketable securities.” We regularly review the carrying
value of our investments and identify and record losses when events and circumstances mdlcate that declines in
theé fair value of such assets below our accountmg basis are other-than-temporary.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA ‘

The financial statements required pursuant to this item are filed under Part IV, Item 15(a)(1) of this annual
report. The financial statement schedule required under Regulation S-X is filed under Part IV, Item 15(a)(2) of
this annual report. ‘ ‘

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTIN G AND
' 'FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None
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ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision of and with the participation of our management, including our chief executive
officer and chief financial officer, we performed an evaluation of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended,
or the Exchange Act). Based on that evaluation, our management, including our chief executive officer and chief
financial officer, concluded that, as of January 1, 2006, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective to
provide reasonable assurance that all material information required to be disclosed in reports filed or submitted
by us under the Exchange Act is made known to management in a timely fashion.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an adequate system of internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) under the Exchange Act). Management
evaluated the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on criteria established in
Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission, or COSO. Based on its evaluation, management concluded that, as of January 1, 2006, our system
of internal control over financial reporting was effective. Ernst & Young LLP, an independent registered public
accounting firm, has issued an attestation report on management’s assessment of our internal control over
financial reporting, a copy of which is included in this annual report.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There was no change in our internal control over financial reporting during the most recently completed
fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, internal control over
financial reporting.

Limitations on Controls

Management does not expect that our disclosure controls and procedures or our internal control over
financial reporting will prevent or detect all error and fraud. Any control system, no matter how well designed
and operated, is based upon certain assumptions and can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that its
objectives will be met. In addition, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that misstatements
due to error or fraud will not occur or that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within drugstore.com
have been detected.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Board of Directors and Stockholders

drugstore.com, inc.
L

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting, that drugstore.com, inc. maintained effective internal control over financial -
reporting as of January 1, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria).
drugstore.com, inc.’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial
reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the
company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s
assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performjng such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit prov1des a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements.in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not pfevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in condmons or that the degree ¢ of compliance with the
policies or procedures may detenorate

In our opinion, management’s assessment that drugstore.com, inc. maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting as of January 1, 2006, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the COSO criteria.
Also, in our opinion, drugstore.com, inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over
financial reporting as of January 1, 2006, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated balance sheets of drugstore.com, inc. as of January 1, 2006 and January 2, 2005,
and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended January 1, 2006 of drugstore.com, inc. and our report dated March 16, 2006 expressed
an unqualified opinion thereon. -

/s/ Emst & Young LLP

Seattle, Washington_
March 16, 2006

ITEM9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
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PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT
Directors and Executive Officers

Information regarding our executive officers required by Part III, Item 10 is set forth in the section entitled
“Business—Executive Officers and Directors” in Part I, Item 1 of this annual report. Information regarding our
directors required by Part III, Item 10 is incorporated into this annual report by reference to the section entitled
“Proposal No. I—Election of Directors” in our proxy statement for our annual meeting of stockholders to be
held on June 7, 2006, or the 2006 Proxy Statement.

Information relating to compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended,
required by Part IIL, Item 10 is incorporated into this annual report by reference to the section entitled “Section 16
Beneficial Ownership Reporting Requirements” in the 2006 Proxy Statement.

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

Our board of directors has adopted a code of business conduct and ethics, or Code, applicable to all
directors, officers and employees of drugstore.com, including our chief executive officer, chief financial officer
and controller. You may obtain a copy of the Code, without charge, upon written request to Investor Relations,
drugstore.com, inc., 411 108t Avenue NE, Suite 1400, Bellevue, Washington 98004, or by calling
(425) 372-3200.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information regarding executive compensation required by Part III, Item 11 is incorporated into this annual
report by reference to the section entitled “Executive Compensation” in the 2006 Proxy Statement.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Information regarding security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management and related
stockholder matters required by Part III, Item 12 is incorporated into this annual report by reference to the section
entitled “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” in the 2006 Proxy Statement.

Information regarding our equity compensation plans required by Part III, Item 12 is incorporated into this
annual report by reference to the section entitled “Equity Compensation Plan Information” in the 2006 Proxy
Statement.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Information regarding certain relationships and related transactions required by Part III, Item 13 is
incorporated into this annual report by reference to the section entitled “Certain Relationships and Related
Transactions” in the 2006 Proxy Statement.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Information regarding principal accountant fees and services required by Part I1I, Item 14 is incorporated
into this annual report by reference to the section entitled “Independent Public Accountants” in the 2006 Proxy
Statement.
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ITEM 15.

PART 1V
EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) The following documents are filed as a part of this annual report on Form 10-K:

1. Index to Consolidated Financial Statements:

Page
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm .. ... e U 53
Consolidated Balance SHEELS . ... ....vvvrrrreeneeieerinaenn, F 54
Consolidated Statements of Operations . ................ .. ... ....... e PR 55
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity ................ ... ... 56
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows ................ i [ 57
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements ...... e 58
2. Index to Financial Statement Schedules:
Schedule II--Valuation and Qualifying Accounts ........................ i e 89

All other schedules have been omitted because the required information is shown in the consolidated
financial statements or the accompanying notes, or is not applicable or required. ‘

3.

Exhibit
No.

3.1

3.1a

3.2%
4.1

4.2
10.1

10.2

10.3

Index of Exhibits:

Exhibit
Description

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of drugstore.com, inc. (incorporated by reference

~ to Exhibit 3.2 to drugstore.com, inc.’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 ﬁled February 9, 2000

(Registration No. 333-96441)).

Certificate of Demgnanon of Series 1 Preferred Stock of drugstore.com, inc: (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1a to drugstore.com, inc.’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the Quarter
Ended July 2, 2000 (SEC File No. 000-26137)). ‘

Amiended and Restated Bylaws of drugstore.com, inc. dated January 7, 2005.

" Warrant issued to Highbridge International LLC on December 8, 2003, upon the cancellanon of the

warrant issued to Tel-Drug, Inc. on June 26, 2000 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to
drugstore.com inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the Fiscal Year Ended January 2, 2005 (SEC
. File No. 000-26137)).

Warrant issued to Heidrick & Struggles, Inc. on February 14, 2005 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.2 to drugstore.com inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the Fiscal Year Ended January 2,
2005 (SEC File No. 000-26137)).

Form of Indemnification Agreement between drugstore.com, inc. and each of its officers and di‘rectorsv
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to drugstore.com, inc.’s Registration Statement on Form
S-1 filed May 19, 1999 (Registration No. 333-78813)).

Fourth Amended and Restated Investors’ Rights Agreement dated May 19, 1999, among
drugstore.com, inc. and certain investors (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to
drugstore.com, inc.’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A filed July 8, 1999 (Registration No.
333-78813)).

Addendum dated June 17, 1999, to Fourth Amended and Restated Investors’ Rights Agreement dated
May 19, 1999, among drugstore.com, inc. and certain investors (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.25 to drugstore.com, inc.’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A filed June 28, 1999
(Registration No. 333- 78813))
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Exhibit

104

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

Exhibit
Description
Form of Second Addendum to Fourth Amended and Restated Investors’ Rights Agreement dated
May 19, 1999, among drugstore.com, inc. and certain investors (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.32 to drugstore.com, inc.’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A filed July 20, 1999 (Registration
No. 333-78813)).

Third Addendum dated January 24, 2000, to Fourth Amended and Restated Investors’ Rights
Agreement dated May 19, 1999, among drugstore.com, inc. and certain investors (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.38 to drugstore.com, inc.’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed
February 9, 2000 (Registration No. 333-96441)).

Fourth Addendum dated September 29, 2000, to Fourth Amended and Restated Investors’ Rights
Agreement dated May 19, 1999, among drugstore.com, inc. and certain investors (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.7 to drugstore.com, inc.’s Registration Statement on Form S-3/A filed
October 2, 2000 (Registration No. 333-45266)).

Fifth Amended and Restated Voting Agreement dated December 23, 1999, among drugstore.com, inc.
and certain founders and investors (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to drugstore.com,
inc.’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed February 9, 2000 (Registration No. 333-96441)).

1998 Stock Plan, as amended June 21, 2000 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to
drugstore.com, inc.’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the Quarter Ended July 2, 2000) (SEC File
No. 000-26137)).

1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as amended (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to
drugstore.com, inc.’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed February 9, 2000 (Registration No.
333-96441)).

Main Agreement dated June 17, 1999, between drugstore.com, inc. and Rite Aid (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.27 to drugstore.com, inc.’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A filed
June 28, 1999 (Registration No. 333-78813)).

Main Agreement dated June 17, 1999, between drugstore.com, inc. and General Nutrition Corporation
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.28 to drugstore.com, inc.’s Registration Statement on Form
S-1/A filed June 28, 1999 (Registration No. 333-78813)).

Governance Agreement dated June 17, 1999, between drugstore.com, inc. and Rite Aid Corporation
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.29 to drugstore.com, inc.’s Registration Statement on Form
S-1/A filed June 28, 1999 (Registration No. 333-78813)).

Governance Agreement dated June 17, 1999, among drugstore.com, inc., General Nutrition
Corporation and General Nutrition Investment Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.30
to drugstore.com, inc.’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A filed June 28, 1999 (Registration No.
333-78813)).

Pharmacy Supply and Services Agreement dated June 17, 1999, between drugstore.com, inc. and Rite
Aid Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.31 to drugstore.com, inc.’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1/A filed June 28, 1999 (Registration No. 333-78813)).

Amended and Restated Technology License and Advertising Agreement dated August 10, 1998,
among drugstore.com, inc., Amazon.com and Amazon.com D, Inc. (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.14 to drugstore.com, inc.’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A filed July 26, 1999
(Registration No. 333-78813)).

Registration Rights Agreement dated as of December 8, 2003 by and among drugstore.com, inc. and
the other signatories thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to drugstore.com, inc.’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 23, 2003 (SEC File No. 000-26137)).

51



Exhibit
No.

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25 -

10.26

10.27

21.1%

23.1%

31.1*

31.2%

32.1%

32.2%

* Filed herewith

Exhibit
S Description
Lease Agreement dated August 30, 1999, between DS Distribution, Inc. and the Northwestern Mutual
Life Insurance Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to drugstore.com, inc.’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended October 3, 1999 (SEC File No. 000-26137)).

Amendment No. 1 to Lease Agreement dated December 10, 2003, between DS Distribution, Inc, and
Liberty Vendor L, L.P (as successor in interest to the Northwestern Mutual Life Insurance Company)
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 to drugstore.com inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the Fiscal Year Ended December 28, 2003 (SEC File No. 000-26137)). ,

Standard Industrial Lease—Multi-Tenant dated May 2, 2003 between Sam-Cher Holdings, Inc. and
International Vision Direct, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24 to drugstore.com inc.’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the Fiscal Year Ended December 28, 2003 (SEC File No.
000-26137)).

Sublease effective as of June 1, 2003 between Nova Scotia Power Incorporated and International
Vision Direct Ltd. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to drugstore.com inc.’s Annual Report

“on Form 10-K for the Fiscal Year Ended December 28,2003 (SEC File No. 000- 26137))

Office Lease dated May 1, 2003 between BTC Properties 11 Ltd. and Intematlonal Vision Direct Ltd.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 to drugstore.com inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the Fiscal Year Ended December 28, 2003 (SEC File No. 000-26137)).

Office Lease Agreement dated August 16, 2004, between EOP-Northwest‘jPropertie;s, L.L.C. and
drugstore.com, inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to drugstore.com, inc!’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10- Q for the quarter ended September 26, 2004 (SEC File No. 000- 26137))

Sub-Sublease Agreement dated August 16, 2004 and effective as of May 1, 2004, between
EOQP-Northwest Propertles L.L.C. and drugstore.com, inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3
to drugstore.com, inc.’s Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q for the quarter ended September 26, 2004
(SEC File No. 000-26137)). ‘

Offer letter of Dawn Lepore, dated September 21, 2004 (incorporated by reference te ‘drugstore.com,

“inc.’s’Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed November 3, 2004 (SEC File No. 000-26137)).

Offer letter of Jonathan Tinter, dated April 6, 2005 (incorporated by reference to drugstore.com, inc.’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 28, 2005 (SEC File No. 000-26137)).

Offer letter of Matthew Stepka, dated April 18, 2005 (incorporated by reference to drugstore.com,
inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 28, 2005 (SEC File No. 000-26137)).:

Offer letter of Luke Friang, datéd January 4, 2006 (incorporated by reference to drugstore.com, inc.’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 20, 2006 (SEC File No. 000-26137)). -

List of Subsidiaries.

Consent of independent registered pubhc accountmg firm.

Certification of Dawn G. Lepore, Chairman of Board, President and Chief Executlve Ofﬁcer of
drugstore.com, inc., pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Robert A. Barton, Chief Financial Officer of drugstore.com, inc., pursuant to Section
302 of the Sarbanes—Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Dawn G. Lepore, Chairman of Board, Pre51dent and Chlef Executlve Officer of
drugstore.com, inc., pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Sectlon 806 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Robert A. Barton, Chief Financial Officer of drugstore.com, inc. pursuant to 18
U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Board of Directors and Stockholders
drugstore.com, inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of drugstore.com, inc. as of January 1, 2006
and January 2, 2005, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows
for each of the three years in the period ended January 1, 2006. Our audits also included the financial statement
schedule listed in the Index at Item 15(a). These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of drugstore.com, inc. at January 1, 2006 and January 2, 2005, and the
consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended January 1,
2006, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the related
financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole,
presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the effectiveness of drugstore.com, inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of
January 1, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated March 16, 2006
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Emst & Young LLP

Seattle, Washington
March 16, 2006
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DRUGSTORE.COM, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share data)

il

Japuary 1,  January 2,

L . 2006 . 2008
: Assets
Current assets: ! . : '
Cash and cash equivalents ...... S AU, S T 8 20,291 $ 15,491
" Marketable securities ...."..... . [P L. 26172 18,728
Accounts receivable, net of allowances ........... ... ... ... .. 34,214 35,344
INVENtOries . ... vt e e e . 23,468 19,287
Prepaid marketing expenses ........ P Ve PR . 2,387 2,290
Other current assets ... R P e e .. 2,583 3,027
’ " Total current assets . ...... T P e e .. 109,115 94,167
leed assets, Net .............. e . e DU . 115,839 13,626
Other intangible assets, net...... e e e 7,427 10,399
GOOAWALL o+ oo L L. 32202 0 32202
Prepaid marketing expensesandother . ......... .. ... ... ... . .. 5,980 8,117
Total assets . ....... £ T $.170,563 $ 158,511
‘ o 'Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity ‘ ‘ / ‘
Current Tiabilities: ‘ o
Accounts payable ................ P e $ 58,177 $ 57,510
Accrued compensation ............ e . PO L 3,426 3,559
Accrued marketing expensés .............. P ..... T . 3,382 2.567
Other current liabilities .. ................. ... .. FE 1,751 1,654
Current portlon of long- term debt obligations . ..... P . p e 2,029 1,158
Total current hablhtles ........ e e 68,765 66,448
Long-term debt obligations, less current portion . ............ P L 2,685 1,807
Deferred income taxes ....... ... ... i e s . .945 945
Other long-term liabilities .................... P 1,897 2,183
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity: ‘
Preferred stock, $.0001 par Value 10,000,000 shares authorized, no shares issued
and outstanding . . . ... . e e —_ =
Common stock, $.0001 par value, stated at amounts paid in: 250,000,000 shares g
authorized, 92,904,652 and 81,440,927 shares issued and outstanding ......... 835,557 807,142
Deferred stock-based compensation . ........... ... . o oo . (1,968) (3,598)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss ............ .. ... i (3 —
Accumulated defiCit ... ... ot (737,315)  (716,416)
Total stockholders’ equity ..............cc. i . 96,271 87,128

Total liabilities and stockholders” equity .............. ... ... ..., $ 170,563 $ 158,511

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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DRUGSTORE.COM, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

For the year ended
January 1, January 2, December 28,
2006 2005 2003
Net Sales ..o $ 399,430 $ 360,099 $ 245,733
Costs and expenses:
Costof sales ...t e 317,366 286,858 195,501
Fulfillment and order processing . ...............c.cvuven... 39,853 39,416 28,888
Marketing and sales ............. i 32,592 24,567 17,482
Technology andcontent .......... ... ... ... .o iiiiiian... 12,768 9,483 8,283
General and administrative .. ... v e 14,048 16,200 11,111
Amortization of intangible assets . ........... ... ... . o 3,004 3,952 1,725
Stock-based compensation D .. .. ... o o 1,968 1,238 2,014
Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets . . ... ........ — 27,460 —
Total costs and eXpenses . . . .......ovvviiin i, 421,599 409,174 265,004
Operating 1oSs . . ..ot e (22,169) (49,075) (19,271)
Interest INCOME, NEt . . . ..ttt et e e e 1,270 360 622
Loss before income taxes . .....oov it (20,899) (48,715) (18,649)
Incometax benefit ........cci i e — 980 —
Nt 1088 v ittt e e e $ (20,899) $ (47,735) $ (18,649)
Basic and diluted net loss pershare . ............... ... ......... $ 023) $ 0.62) $ 0.27
Weighted average shares outstanding used to compute basic and diluted
netlosspershare .......... .. .. .. .. i 90,808,817 76,650,915 69,148,872

M Set forth below are the amounts of stock-based compensation that, if recorded by operating function, would
be classified in the Consolidated Statements of Operations as follows:

Fulfillment and order processing .............covurnneiunneennn.. $ 2 3 188 % 117
Marketingand sales . ... ... i i i e 218 62 889
Technology andcontent ............. ... iiiiiiiiinneenann.n. 5 134 254
General and administrative ............ ... oot 1,743 854 754

Total Lo $ 1968 $ 1,233 $ 2,014

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Balance at December 29, 2002

Exercise of stock options
Employee stock purchase plan
Issuance of common stock to acquire a

" license from NCR
Issuance of common stock for the

" * acquisition of Custom Numtlon
Services
Return of shares from escrow related to
the CNS acquisition

* Issuance of common stock for the

acquisition of Acumins, Inc. ........ -

~ Issuance of common stock for the

acquisition of Infernational Vision

. Dlrect Comp. .o

Deferred stock-based compensation . . . .

Modification of stock option grants . ...

Amortization of stock-based
compensation

Net loss and comprehensive loss . ... . ...

Balance at December 28, 2003

Exercise of stock options
Employee stock-purchase plan
Issuance of common stock for litigation
settlement
Deferred.stock-based compensation . . ..
Modification of stock option grants . . ..
; Amortization of stock-based
compensation
Net loss and comprehensive loss

Balance at January 2, 2005

Exercise of stock options . ............

- ‘Employee stock purchase plan

. Issuance of commion stock in'a private
placement, net of issuance costs of

Issuance of stock optlons and warrants ‘
for services
Issuance of common stock for hcense
agreement
Deferred stock-based compensation . . . .
Modification of stock option grants ... .
Amortization of stock-based
compensation
Net loss and comprehensive loss

Balance at January 1, 2006

(in thousands, except share data)

Deferred Accgu:]\ilated
1l
Common Stock Sto:k‘ig:sed Comprehe:nsive Accumulated
Shares Amount Compensation Loss Deficit Total
68,387,327 $744,620 $ (648) $— $(650,032) $ 93,940
1,319,142 2,006 — — — 2,006
55,924 110 — — —_ 110
77,439 301 - —_ — 301
635,593 2,526 — — — 2,526
(45,000} .(223) — — — (223)
100,000 ) 496 — — — 496
6,830,601 45,697 — — — 45,697
— 725 (725) —_ - —
— 1,276 - — — — 1,276
— — 738 — L= 738
_ —_ — — (18,649)  (18,649)
77,361,026 797,534 (635) — (668,681) 128,218
3,858,402 4,618 — — Lo— 4,618
85,569 297 — — — 297
© 135,930 492 — — — 492
—_ 3,806 (3,806) — — _
— 395 —_— — — 395
e 843 — L — 843
— L — — — 47,735)  (47,735)
81,440,927 807,142 (3,598) — (716,416) 87,128
1,325,773 1,797 — - R— 1,797
127,952 294 — — —_ 294
10,000,000 25,952 - - — 25,952
— 328 — — — 328
10,000 34 — — — 34
— (165) 165 — — —
— 175 — — — 175
— — 1,465 — -— 1,465
— — — 3) (20,899)  (20,902)
92,904,652 $835,557 $(1,968) $ (3) $(737,315) $ 96,271

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statemenis.
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DRUGSTORE.COM, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

For the year ended

January 1, Janvary2, December 28,

2006 2005 2003
Operating Activities:
NEEOSS ottt et e et e e e $(20,899) $(47,735) $(18,649)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation .. ..... ... e 5,280 7,872 6,430
Amortization of marketing and sales agreements .................. 2,290 2,291 2,290
Amortization of intangible assets .......... ... .. ... ..o i 3,004 3,952 1,725
Stock-based compensation . ... ...... . i 1,968 1,238 2,014
Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets ................ — 27,460 —
Deferred income tax benefit . ....... ... . . .. i e — (980) —_
Litigation settlement .............. . .0 i — 492 —
Loss on disposal of @ssets .............. it 674 269 47
Other .. s 34 — —
Changes in, net of amounts acquired in business acquisitions:
AcCCoUunts Teceivable . ...ttt e 1,130 9,117) (8,579)
TOVENLOTIES &+ o v v ettt s e e et et e i 4,181)  (5,640) (3,478)
Prepaid marketing expenses andother ...................... — — 318
Other CUTENt @SSELS « v vt vt vt e e ettt e ee e 162 (1,127) 622
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities . ....... 735 10,333 13,460
Net cash used in operating activities ............... .. iy (9,803) (10,692) (3,800)
Investing Activities:
Purchases of marketable securities ........ o ii i (37,872) (14,731 (31,486)
Sales and maturities of marketable securities . ........... ... 30,425 32,540 38,716
Purchases of fiXxed @SSels . ...ttt e e s (6,034) (4,620) (2,720)
Business acquisitions, net of cashreceived . ............ ... . ... .. — — (12,311)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities ..................... (13,481) 13,189 (7,801)
Financing Activities:
Proceeds from exercise of stock options and employee stock purchase
PIAIL . e 2,091 4,915 2,116
Proceeds from private placement,net . ......... .. . 25,952 — —
Proceeds from term loan, line of credit and asset financings ............. 1,662 2,000 615
Principal payments on capital lease and term loan obligations . ........... (1,621) (956) (2,195)
Net cash provided by financing activities ............................ 28,084 5,959 536
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ............... 4,800 8,456 (11,065)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period .............. ... 15,491 7,035 18,100
Cash and cash equivalents atend of period . .. .................... $20,291 $15491 $ 7,035
Supplemental Cash Flow Information:
Cash paid for interest . . ..., ..ottt $ 278 S 91 $ 110
Equipment acquired in capital lease agreements . . ..................... 1,708 536 —
Non-cash leasehold incentives provided by landlord ................... — 2,331 —
Issuance of equity and debt instruments in exchange for prepaid marketing,
intangible assets, software and a vendor agreement .................. — — 301
Issuance of common stock in connection with business acquisitions .. ... .. — — 48,496

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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DRUGSTORE.COM, INC:
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. The Company and Summary of Significant Accountmg Policies

The Company

drugstore.com, inc. is a leadmg online provider of health, beauty, vision and pharmacy products We sell
health, beauty, sexual well-being, household and other non-prescription products and prescription medications
through our website at www.drugstore.com and prestige beauty products through www.beauty.com, which is also
accessible through the drugstore.com website. We sell contact lenses through our wholly owned subsidiary
International Vision Direct Corp. and its subsidiaries (collectlvely, Vision Direct), through webisites located at
www.visiondirect.com, www.lensmart.com and www.lensquest.com (which are also accessible through the
drugstore com website). We offer customized nutritional supplement programs through our wholly owned
subsidiary, Custom Nutrition Services, Inc. (CNS). We manage our business in four segments: over-the-counter,
or OTC; mail- order pharmacy; local pick-up pharmacy; and vision.

All customer orders are processed through our websites or via telephone through our toll-free telephone
numbers, 1-800-DRUGSTORE and 1-800-VISIONDIRECT. We operate two distribution centers, one
approximately 290,000 square foot facility that provides fulfillment capabilities for all of our pharmaceutical and
non-pharmaceutical orders delivered by mail, and another approximately 17,000 square foot facility that fulfills
our vision orders delivered by mail. Under the terms of an agreement with Rite Aid Corporation (Rite Aid),
customers are also able to order existing drugstore.com and Rite Aid refill prescriptions for pickup at any Rite
A1d store : , | ‘

Principles of Consolidation and Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include those of drugstore.com, inc. and our

subsxdlarres All mater1a1 1ntercompany transactions and.balances have been eliminated. ;

We operate using a 52/53 week retail calendar year with each of the fiscal quarters ina 52 week year
representing a 13-week period. Fiscal years 2005 and 2003 were 52-week years; fiscal year 2004 was a 53-week
year, with the fourth quarter of 2004 representing a 14-week perrod I

Estimates and Assumptions ..

~ The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the -
United States of America (GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements, Actual results could differ from those estimates, and these estrmates could be
matenal

Cash Equzvalents L
We consider all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less from the date of purchase

to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents include money market funds and commercial paper. Cash held as

collateral is included in other current assets based on the expected release of the underlying obligation.

Marketable Securities o ‘ Lo )

Management determines the appropriate classification of marketable securities at the time of purchase and
reevaluates such designation as of each balance sheet date. The evaluation includes our view that our investments

i
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in debt securities are available to support current operations. At January 1, 2006 and January 2, 2005, marketable
securities, which are considered available-for-sale, consisted primarily of commercial paper, auction rate
securities, corporate notes and government bonds. Marketable securities are carried at fair value. Net unrealized
holding losses were $3,000 at January 1, 2006 and $67,000 at January 2, 2005. Cost of securities sold is
determined using the specific identification method.

We regularly monitor and evaluate the realizable value of our marketable securities. When assessing
marketable securities for other-than-temporary declines in value, we consider such factors as, among other
things, how significant the decline in value is as a percentage of the original cost, how long the market value of
the investment has been less than its original cost, the performance of the investee’s stock price in relation to the
stock price of its competitors within the industry and the market in general, analyst recommendations, any news
that has been released specific to the investee and the outlook for the overall industry in which the investee
operates. If events and circumstances indicate that a decline in the value of these assets has occurred and is other
than temporary, we record a charge against net earnings. No such charges have been recorded in fiscal years
2005, 2004 and 2003.

Financial Instruments

Financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, marketable securities, accounts receivable,
accounts payable, term loans and capital lease obligations. Due to their short maturities, the fair value of all
financial instruments approximates the carrying amount based on the current rate offered for similar instruments.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments, which potentially subject us to concentrations of credit risk, consist principally of our
holdings of cash, marketable securities and accounts receivable. Our credit risk is managed by investing our cash
and marketable securities in high-quality money market instruments and securities of the U.S. government
agencies, and high-quality corporate issuers. Our credit risk is managed through monitoring the stability of the
United States-based financial institutions we utilize and the diversification of our financial resources by limiting
the investment in any one issuer of not more than 10% of the total portfolio at the time of purchase, except for
investments in U.S. treasuries and agencies and investment advisors’ money market funds.

Sales subject to reimbursements collected from insurance companies, pharmacy benefit managers (PBMs)
and managed care organizations through our relationship with Rite Aid currently represent 99% of our local
pick-up pharmacy sales and 21% of our mail-order pharmacy sales, and represent a concentration of credit risk.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consists primarily of the net amounts to be collected from third parties, including
reimbursements from insurance companies, PBMs and managed care organizations, amounts collectible related
to credit card purchases, vendor volume purchase and rebate allowances, and OTC fulfillment fees and product
revenue generated through our wholesale fulfillment agreement with Amazon.com, Inc. (Amazon.com). Under
the terms of our agreement with Rite Aid, Rite Aid collects co-payment and insurance reimbursement payments
on our behalf. As of January 1, 2006 and January 2, 2005, accounts receivable included $28.6 million and $29.2
million, respectively, of amounts being collected by Rite Aid on our behalf. Accounts receivable are recorded net
of allowances for doubtful accounts, which were $101,000 as of January 1, 2006 and $98,000 as of January 2,
2005. We determine our allowance for doubtful accounts by considering a number of factors, including the
length of time receivables are past due, previous loss history, and the customer’s ability to pay its obligation. We
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write off accounts receivable when they become uncollectible, and payments subsequently recelved are credited
to the allowance for doubtful accounts. :

Inventories

Inventories consist of finished goods and are stated at the lower of cost (using the weighted average cost
method) or the current estimated market value and adjusted for shrinkage, slow moving, damaged and expired
inventory. We currently purchase our hon-pharmaceutical inventory directly from manufacturers and distributors.
Through our agreement with Rite Aid, we are required to purchase all pharmaceutical inventory.through Rite Aid
unless we are able to obtain better overall terms from another vendor.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization, which includes the ;
depreciation of assets recorded under capital leases. Depreciation and amortization is determined using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets, which range from two to ten years.
Fixed assets purchased under capital leases and leasehold improvements are deprec1ated over the shorter of the
lease term or the estimated useful life.

Included in fixed assets is the cost of internal-use software and website development, including software
used to upgrade and enhance our websites. We expense all costs related to the development of internal-use
software other than those incurred during the application development stage. Costs incurred during the
application development stage are capitalized and amortized over the estimated useful life of the software,
generally three years. Labor costs totaling $2.8 million, $1.9 million and $500,000 weére capitalized during the
fiscal years ended January 1, 2006, January 2, 2005 and December 28, 2003, respectively.

Leases

We account for our lease agreements pursuant to Statement of Fmancral Standards (SFAS) No. 13,
Accounting for Leases, which categorizes leases at their inception as either operating or capital . leases dependmg
on certain defined criteria. We recognize operating lease costs on a straight-line basis without regard to deferred
payment terms and lease incentives are treated as a reduction of our costs over the term of the agreement. In
connection with our lease for our corporate headquarters in 2004 (see Note 8), we received landlord-provided
incentives of $2.3 million in the form of tenant improvements, Wthh have been recorded as addltlons to fixed
assets and deferred rental obhgatlons and are being amoruzed over the term of the lease.

Other Intangible Assets

Other intangible assets consist of assets acquired in connection with agreements between drugstore.com and
Rite Aid and General Nutrition Corporatron (GNC). We also acquired certain other 1ntang1ble assets in
connection with the purchase of Beauty.com, Inc. (Beauty.com), CNS, and Vision Direct, including trade names,
domain names, and customer lists. All definite-lived intangible assets are being amortized over their expected
useful lives, which range from two to ten years. During 2004, we recorded an impairment loss of $4.7 million on
other intangible assets related to our vision segment, which consisted of $2.8 million for indefinite-lived assets
and $1.9 million for definite-lived assets. We determined the fair value of the 1ntang1b1e assets based on future
discounted cash flows See Note S. _ . !

60




DRUGSTORE.COM, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Goodwill

We test for impairment of goodwill during the fourth quarter or whenever indicators of impairment occur.
The first phase of the test screens for impairment, while the second phase of the test (if necessary) measures the
amount of impairment. The first phase is performed by comparing the implied fair value of the applicable
reporting unit to its carrying value. Fair value is determined using either a discounted cash flow methodology or
methodology based on comparable market prices. The second step of the goodwill impairment test compares the
implied fair value of reporting unit goodwill with the carrying amount of that goodwill. If the carrying amount of
the reporting unit goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of that goodwill, an impairment loss is recognized in
an amount equal to the excess.

During our quarterly review of financial results in the third quarter of 2004, we performed the first phase of
our impairment analysis of the goodwill related to our Vision Direct business. We determined that an impairment
loss was probable and could be reasonably estimated at that time. As a result, we recorded an impairment charge
of $23.2 million to reduce the carrying value of the goodwill related to our Vision Direct business to its fair
value. In the fourth quarter of 2004, we completed the second phase of the impairment test and reduced our
impairment charge on the goodwill to $22.8 million for the year ended January 2, 2005. See Note 6.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal years 2005 and 2003, we performed our annual goodwill impairment
review and determined that the fair value of each of our reporting units was greater than the carrying value and,
accordingly, no impairment charges were recorded.

Long-Lived Assets

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets, we
review the carrying values of our amortized long-lived assets, including definite-lived intangible assets,
whenever an indicator of impairment exists. When facts and circumstances indicate that the carrying values of
long-lived assets may be impaired, an evaluation of recoverability is performed. The determination of whether
impairment exists is based on any excess of the carrying value over the expected future cash flows, as estimated
through undiscounted cash flows, excluding interest charges. Any resulting impairment charge would be
measured based on the difference between the carrying value of the asset and its fair value, as estimated through
expected future discounted cash flows, discounted at a rate of return for an alternate investment.

We review our indefinite-lived intangible assets, other than goodwill, for impairment annually during the
fourth quarter or when an indicator of impairment exists. We compare the carrying value of the asset to its
estimated fair value and record an impairment charge when the carrying value of the asset exceeds the estimated
fair value.

Net Sales

We recognize revenues in accordance with SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) No. 104, Revenue
Recognition. '

Revenues from sales of OTC, mail-order pharmacy, and vision products are recorded net of promotional
discounts, cancellations, rebates and returns allowances. Revenue is recognized when the following revenue
recognition criteria are met: (1) persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists; (2) delivery has occurred or
services have been rendered; (3) the selling price or fee revenue eamed is fixed or determinable; and
(4) collection of the resulting receivable is reasonably assured. We generally require payment by credit card at
the point of sale. Return allowances, which reduce product sales by our estimate of expected product returns, are
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estimated using historical experience. Historically, product returns, and differences between our estimates and
actual returns, have not been signiﬁcant.

Revenues from sales of OTC products ordered through the Amazon.com website and fulﬁlled by
drugstore.com were recognlzed when we shipped the products from our distribution center. Accordmg to the
criteria outhned in Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 99 19, Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal Versus
Net as an Agent or EITF 99-19, we recorded fulfillment fees and revenues generated by the Amazon.com
agreement in our OTC segment on a gross basis, because we believe we acted as a principal, based on the fact
that we bore general inventory risk associated with these sales. Effective November 9, 2005, we terminated our
agreement with Amazon.com. Neither party had any material obligations following the termination.

Before December 31, 2005, all sales of customized vitamins through CNS we‘r‘e‘recognized on a gross basis,
net of promotional discounts, cancellations, rebates and returns allowances. On December 31, 2005, we entered
into a fulfillment agreement with Weil Lifestyle, LLC (We1l) Under the new agreement, revenues from sales of
customized vitamins sold through our fulfillment agreement with Weil are recognized when products are shipped
and title passes to the customer. In accordance with EITF 99- 19, we now record revenues generated by the Weil
agreement in our OTC segment on a net basis, because we act as an agent, based on the fact that we earn a fixed
dollar amount per customer transaction regardless of the amount billed to the customer and we do not bear
general inventory risk associated with these sales. Non-Weil customized vitamin sales continue to be recognized
on a gross basis, net of promotional discounts, cancellations, rebates and returns allowances ‘

Revenues from sales of prescription products ordered online or by telephone through the drugstore.com web
store or the RiteAid.com web store (which is powered by the drugstore.com web store) for pick-up at a Rite Aid
store, including co-payments received and collected on our behalf by Rite Aid, are recognized when the customer
picks up the product. In these circumstances, we utilize Rite Aid as our fulfillment partner. Aceordmg to the
criteria outlined in EITF 99-19, we record revenues in our local plck up pharmacy segment on'a gross basis,
because we believe we act as a principal, based on the fact that, among other thmgs we bear both inventory risk

and credit and collection risk assoc1ated with these sales

For insured prescnptlons in both our local p1ck-up and mail-order segments, the co- payment and the
insurance reimbursement (which together make up the amount due to drugstore. com) constitute the full value of
the prescription drug sale, and we receive this entire amount as cash. We therefore recognize the entire amount as
revenue when the order is shipped to the customer (for mail order prescriptions) or picked up by the customer
(for local pick- up prescnptlons) :

4

Net sales also include consignment service fees earned under our agreement with GNC, under which we
cannot take title to the inventory and cannot establish pricing. Consignment service fees are booked on a net
basis, in accordance with EITF 99-19, and constitute approximately 1% of total net sales in each year presented.

Periodically, we provide incentive offers to our customers to encourage purchases. Such offers include
discounts on specific current purchases, or future rebates based upon a percentage of the current purchase, as well
as other offers. Discounts, when accepted by our customers, are treated as a reduction to the sales price of the
related transaction and are presented as a net amount in net sales. Rebates are treated as a reductlon to sales price
based on estimated redemptlon rates. Redemption rates are estimated using our historical expenence for similar
offers. Historically, our redemptlon rates have not differed materially from our estimates, which are adjusted
quarterly ‘ 5 x
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Cost of Sales

Cost of sales consists primarily of the cost of products sold to our customers, including allowances for
shrinkage and damaged, slow-moving and expired inventory, outbound and inbound shipping costs, and expenses
related to promotional inventory included in shipments to customers. Payments that we receive from vendors in
connection with volume purchase or rebate allowances are netted against cost of sales.

Fulfillment and Order Processing

Fulfillment and order processing expenses include expenses related to payroll and related expenses for
personnel engaged in purchasing, fulfillment, distribution, and customer care activities (including warehouse
personnel and pharmacists engaged in prescription verification activities), distribution center equipment and
packaging supplies, per-unit fulfillment fees charged by Rite Aid for prescriptions ordered through the
drugstore.com website and picked up at a Rite Aid store, credit card processing fees, and bad debt expenses.
These expenses also include rent and depreciation related to equipment and fixtures in our distribution center and
call center facilities.

Marketing and Sales

Marketing and sales expenses include marketing expenses, advertising expenses under various advertising
contracts, promotional expenditures and payroll and related expenses for personnel engaged in marketing and
merchandising activities.

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Costs associated with our brand advertising and personalization
initiatives, including public relations, advertising and trade shows, are expensed when the related services are
rendered. Our marketing contracts that span a longer period of time, including Web portal marketing agreements
and the costs associated with our Rite Aid agreement and our prior marketing agreement with Amazon.com
(which was terminated in September 2003), are amortized on a straight-line basis over the period of each
contract. Advertising expense for the years ended January 1, 2006, January 2, 2005, and December 28, 2003 was
$25.6 million, $18.9 million and, $13.3 million, respectively.

Technology and Content

Technology and content expenses consist primarily of payroll and related expenses for personnel engaged in
developing, maintaining and making routine upgrades and enhancements to our websites. Technology and
content expenses also include Internet access and hosting charges, depreciation on hardware and IT structures,
and website content and design expenses.

Technology and content costs are expensed as incurred, except for certain costs relating to the development
of internal-use software and website development, including upgrades and enhancements to our websites, which
are capitalized and depreciated over their estimated useful life.

General and Administrative

General and administrative expenses consist of payroll and related expenses for executive and
administrative personnel, corporate facility expenses, professional service expenses, travel expenses and other
general corporate expenses.
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Interest Income and Expense

Interest income consists of earnings on our cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities, and interest
expense-consists primarily of interest associated with capital lease and debt obligatiotis. Interest income for the
years ended January 1, 2006, January 2, 2005 and December 28, 2003 totaled $1.6 million, $0.5 million and $0.7
million, respectively. Interest expense was $0.3 million for the year ended January 1, 2006 and $0.1 million for
each of the years ended January 2, 2005 and December 28, 2003.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

Aécumulated other comprehensive loss consists of the accumulated net unrealized losses on -
available-for-sale securities. l

Income Taxes ‘

We account for income taxes under the liability method. Under the liability method, deferred tax assets and
liabilities are determined based on differences between the financial reporting and tax basis of assets and
liabilities and are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect when the differences are
expected to be recovered. Valuation allowances are established, when necessary, to reduce deferred tax assets to
the amounts expected to be realized. !

Stock-Based Compensation

" We account for our employee stock option plan and our employee stock purchase plan using the intrinsic
value method, which follows the recognition and measurement principles of Accounting Principles Board
Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees (APB 25) and related Interpretatxons The intrinsic
value method of accounting results in stock compeénsation experse to the extent option exercise: prices are set
below market prices on the date of grant or when the options are-modified. Under APB 25, no compensation
expense is recogrized when the exercise price of employee stock options equals the fair value of the underlying
stock on the date of grant. Deferred stock-based compensation expense is recorded for those situations where the
exercise price of an option was lower than the fair value for financial reporting purposes of the underlying
common stock on the date of grant. Deferred stock-based compensation expense is being amortized over the
vesting period of the underlying options using the multiple-option approach. Unamortized deferred stock-based
compensation is reversed for employee terminations. Upon adoption of SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-
Based Payment (FAS 123R), in the first quarter of 2006, the deferred stock-based compensanon at J anuary 1,
2006 totaling $2.0 million will be reversed against stockholders’ equity.

SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation (FAS 123), which has been updated by SFAS
No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure, requires companies that
continue to follow APB 25 to provide disclosures of the impact of applying the fair value method of FAS 123.
We account for stock issued to non-employees in accordance with the provisions of FAS 123 and EITF Issue
No. 96-18, Accounting for Equlty Instruments That Are Issued to Other Than Employees for Acquiring, or in
Conjunction with Selling, Goods or Services.
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If the stock-based compensation for our 1998 Stock Plan and employee stock purchase plan had been

determined based on the fair value method, as promulgated by FAS 123, our net loss would have been adjusted to
the following amounts for the years ended January 1, 2006, January 2, 2005 and December 28, 2003.

Year ended Yearended Year ended
January 1, January2, December 28,

2006 2005 2003
($ in thousands)

Net1oss, as reported .. ..o vttt $(20,899) $(47,735) $(18,649)
Add: Stock-based compensation, asreported .. ........... . .. ... 1,968 1,238 2,014
Deduct: Total stock-based compensation determined under fair value

method forallawards ......... . ... . i, (8,947) (11,396) (11,981)
Netloss—FAS 123 adjusted . ...... ...t $(27,878) $(57,893) $(28,616)
Basic and diluted net loss per share—asreported . .. .................. $ ©23) $ (062) $ (027
Basic and diluted net loss per share—FAS 123 adjusted ............... $ 031 $ (0.76) $ (0.41)
Weighted-average fair value of options granted at fair market value . .. ... $ 167 $ 233 § 384
Weighted-average fair value of options granted below fair market value .. $ 169 §$§ 276 $ 2.50

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing
model, assuming no expected dividends. The following weighted average assumptions were utilized in arriving at
the fair value of each option grant:

Employee Stock Options
Year ended Year ended Year ended
January 1, January 2, December 28,
2006 2005 2003
Risk-free interestrate ....................... 3.89% 2.80% 2.10%
Expectedlife .......... ... .. i i 3.2 years 3.6 years 3 years
Volatility ............ o i 83% 89% 113%
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Net Loss per Share

Net loss per share is computed using the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstandmg
less the number of shares that are contingently issuable pursuant to contractual terms. Shares associated with
stock optlons and warrants are not included in the calculation of diluted net loss per share as they are antidilutive.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net loss per share for the periods
indicated:

Year ended
January 1, January 2, December 28,
- 2006 2005 . 2003
(in thousands, except share and
. per share data)
Numerator: - o
Netloss ............ e e $ (20,899) $ (47',,735) $ (18,649
Denominator: ‘
. Weighted avérage common shares outstanding ........ e 90,808,817 - 79,467,843 69,954,783

Less: weighted average common shares contingently issuable
_pursuant to contractual terms . ... —  (2,816,928) (805,911)

Shares used to compute basic and drluted net loss per share :..... 90,808,817 76,650,915 69,148,872
Basic and diluted netloss pershare .......... ... ... ... ... ... .08 (0.23) $ 0.62) $ 0.27)

At January 1, 2006 and January 2, 2005, there were 15,764,528 and 15,418,062, respectively, shares of
common stock subject to stock options and 615,000 shares of common stock subject to warrants, and at
December 28, 2003, there were 15,631,869 shares of common stock subject to stock options and 500,000 shares
of common stock subject to a warrant. These shares were excluded from the computation of dtluted net loss per
share as their effect was antidilutive. If we had reported net income, the calculation of these per share amounts
would have included the dilutive effect of these common stock equivalents using the treasury stock method.

Segment and Geographic Information

We operate in four principal business segments: OTC, mail-order pharmacy, local pick-up pharmacy, and
vision. Substantially all of our operatlng results and identifiable assets are in the Umted States and Canada. See

Note 13.

New Accounting Pronouncements

Share-Based Payments

. On December 16 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued FAS 123R Share-Based
Payment, which is a revision of FAS 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation. FAS 123R supersedes
APB 25, and amends SFAS No. 95, Statement of Cash Flows. FAS 123R applies to all stock-based compensation
transactions in which a company acquires services by (a) issuing its stock or other equity instruments, except
through arrangements resulting from employee stock-ownership plans, or (b) incurring liabilities that are based
on the company’s stock price. FAS 123R requires all share-based payments to employees, including grants of
employee stock options, to be recognized as an expense in a company’s financial statements based on their fair
values at the date of grant. On March 29, 2005, the SEC issued SAB No. 107, Share-Based Payments which
expresses the SEC’s views on FAS 123R, including but not limited to applying share- -based payments to
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non-employees, valuation methods, classification of compensation expense and accounting for income tax
effects. FAS 123R is effective for public companies no later than the beginning of the fiscal year beginning after
June 15, 2005, and we adopted it in the first quarter of our fiscal year ending December 31, 2006. FAS 123R
permits public companies to adopt its requirements using either the modified-prospective method or the
modified-retrospective method. We adopted FAS 123R using the modified-prospective method.

As permitted by FAS 123, we currently account for share-based payments to employees using the intrinsic
value method under APB 25. As a result, we recognize no compensation expense for employee stock options,
except for options granted with an exercise price lower than the market price on the date of grant. The adoption
of FAS 123R’s fair value method will require us to recognize compensation expense for employee stock options
and other share-based payments to employees, based on their fair market value on the date of grant and for
modifications to stock awards. As a result of the provisions of FAS 123R, we expect our compensation charges
under FAS 123R to be approximately $6 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, which reflects stock-
based awards granted through February 2006. We cannot estimate compensation charges with respect to future
awards because such charges will be affected by our stock price and assumptions regarding a number of complex
and subjective variables. These variables include, but are not limited to, the volatility of our stock price,
forfeiture rates and the timing of future employee stock option grants. We will recognize compensation cost for
stock-based awards that vest after January 1, 2006 on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period of the
award.

Accounting Changes and Error Corrections

In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections (SFAS 154),
which is a replacement of APB Opinion No. 20, Accounting Changes, and SFAS No. 3, Reporting Accounting
Changes in Interim Financial Statements. SFAS 154 applies to all voluntary changes in accounting principle and
changes the accounting for and reporting of a change in accounting principle. SFAS 154 requires retrospective
application to prior periods’ financial statements of a voluntary change in accounting principle unless it is
impracticable. SFAS 154 is effective for accounting changes and corrections of errors made in fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2005. The adoption of SFAS 154 did not have a material effect on our financial
statements.

Investments

In November 2005, the FASB issued Staff Position No. FAS 115-1, The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary
Impairment and Its Application to Certain Investments (FSP 115-1). FSP 115-1 provides accounting guidance for
identifying and recognizing other-than-temporary impairments of debt and equity securities, as well as cost
method investments in addition to disclosure requirements. FSP 115-1 is effective for reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2005. The adoption of FSP 115-1 did not have a material effect on our financial
statements.

Reclassifications

Reclassifications to the 2004 balance sheet were made to conform to the current year presentation. Long-
term liabilities were increased and other current liabilities were decreased by $2.2 million, to include the long-
term portion of our deferred lease liability in Jong-term liabilities. The reclassifications had no impact on our
results of operations or financial position.
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2. Business Acquisitions and Strategic Agreements o T
Acquisition of Internatwnal Vlswn Dtrect Corp ‘ . .

On December 8, 2003, we acquired Vision Direct, a privately: held Internet retaxler of contactlenses. Under the
terms of the acquisition agreement, we acquired Vision Direct for $56.6 million in aggregate consideration,
comprised of $10.0 million in cash, 6,830,601 shares of common stock having an aggregate fair value of
$45.7 million, and related transaction costs. 50% of the shares were held in escrow for the duration.of a post-
acquisition contingency period, and were subsequently released from escrow in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, The
primary reason for the acquisition of Vision Direct was to enhance our-offering with products in the vision category.

In accordance with the requirements of SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations (SFAS 141), we accounted
for this acquisition using the purchase method of accounting. Resuits of Vision Direct’s operations are included
in our consolidated statement of operations beginning December 9,.2003. We incurred total acquisition costs
related to Vision Direct of $56.6 million, which inctude the following (amounts in thousands):

Fair value of common stock issued ................ SR B $45,697

Cash paid atclosing :......... ..o i ... e e e :10,000 -
. Other transaction costs . ............. e R 866
Total acquisition costs capitalized ........... ... ..ot $56,563

In connection with the acquisition, we engaged a third-party appraiser to assist managemeﬁt in performing a
valuatien of intangible assets acquired in the transaction. Based on the results of this valuation, we allocated a
total of $11.3 million to intangible assets, which consisted of $5.5 million for Vision Direct’s trade name and
trademarks, $3.6 million for an installed customer base,;$1.0 million for non-compete agreements and
$1.2 million for Vision Direct’s agreement with Vistakon, a division of Johnson & J ohnson Visj_ion Care, Inc. The
identifiable intangible assets acquired in this transaction have been recorded with useful lives ranging from two
to three-years, except for the Vision Direct trade name that has an indefinite life. The excess of capitalizable costs
over the fair values of all identifiable assets acquired amounted to $44.7 million of goodwill recorded during the
year ended December 28, 2003, Factors that contributed to a purchase price that resulted in goodwill included,
but were not limited to, expected synergies to be gained from multiple cross-selling opportunities, expansion into
a higher order value and high-retention business, and an opportunity to enter the contact lens market with an
established brand, regulatory know-how and a significant customer base. In 2004, the goodwill was increased by
$1.9 million as a result of the recognition of a deferred tax liability related to indefinite-lived intangibles.

: - 4 . I . N - : . '
Amounts included in other transaction costs include severance paid to Vision Direct employees to whom we
did not offer continuing employment following the acquisition, legal,-accounting and:other professional fees and
contract and lease buyouts relating to assets that will no longer be utilized for the operation of the business.

The following table presents the amounts assigned to each major asset and liability category as a result of
the Vision Direct acquisition (amounts in thousands): ‘

Current assets . .. .. [P Ceee S e e '$ 6,134,
Fixedassets ................ ... . ........ e e
Intangible assets .. ...... e v
Goodwill ...... .. e

Liabilities ........ e e e
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Acquisition of Custom Nutrition Services

On April 28, 2003, we acquired Concept Development, LLC, conducting business under the name Custom
Nutrition Services, a privately held company providing personalized nutrition services to consumers. Under the
terms of the acquisition agreement, we acquired CNS for $4.3 million in aggregate consideration, comprised of
$1.5 million in cash, 635,593 shares of our common stock having an aggregate fair value of $2.5 million (45,000
shares of which we later recovered from escrow) and related transaction costs. The shares were held in escrow
for the duration of a contingency period that expired in December 2003. The acquisition agreement also provides
for the payment by us of additional purchase consideration of up to $10.0 million, payable over three years from
the date of the acquisition, based on the future attainment of specific performance targets by the CNS business.
During each fiscal year 2005 and 2004, we paid $56,000 to the sellers of the CNS business under this earn-out
provision. The primary reason for the acquisition of CNS was to enhance our offering in the customized nutrition
and wellness market.

In accordance with the requirements of SFAS 141, we accounted for this acquisition using the purchase
method of accounting. Results of CNS’s operations are included in our consolidated statement of operations
beginning April 29, 2003. We incurred total acquisition costs related to the CNS transaction of $4.3 million,
which include the following (amounts in thousands):

Fair value of common stockissued ...... ... ... ... . $2,526
Cashpaid at closing . ... ..ottt e 1,475
Adjustments to the purchase price . .......... ...t (223)
Other transSaction COSES . . . vttt sttt et et e et 520
Total acquisition costs capitalized .......... ... ... ... i i $4,298

We engaged a third-party appraiser to assist management in performing a valuation of intangible assets
acquired in the transaction. Based on the results of this valuation, we allocated a total of $3.3 million to
intangible assets, which consisted of $3.2 million in contract-based intangibles and $130,000 for a technology-
based intangible asset. The identifiable intangible assets have been recorded with useful lives ranging from four
to five years. The excess of capitalizable costs over the fair values of all identifiable assets acquired amounted to
$2.7 million of goodwill, which is deductible for tax purposes. During the quarter ended September 28, 2003,
goodwill was decreased by $171,000 based primarily on the favorable settlement of CNS lease liabilities. During
the quarter ended December 28, 2003, we settled certain liabilities that resulted in our recovery of 45,000 shares
of our common stock from the CNS escrow, which reduced goodwill by $223,000.

The following table presents the amounts assigned to each major asset and liability category as a result of
the CNS acquisition (amounts in thousands):

CUITENE ASSEES .+« v v vt et et et e et e e e e e e e e e $ 856
Fixed assets, website development costsandother ...................... ... 746
CNS contract and technology assets .......... ... .. .. il 3,330
GoodwWill ... e e e 2,710
Liabilities . ..ot (3,344)
Netassets acquired .. ... ...ttt $ 4,298

Acquisition of Acumins, Inc.

On August 12, 2003, we acquired all of the outstanding shares of Acumins, Inc. (Acumins) and all of its
existing assets and liabilities, including a patent for diagnosis and interpretation methods and apparatus for a
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personal nutrition program. No other assets or liabilities of significant value resulted from the acquisition. To
consummate the acquisition, we issued 100,000 shares of our common stock having an aggregate fair value of
$496,000. We have accounted for this acquisition as an addition of an intangible patent, and are, amortizing the
patent over its useful life of ten years. The primary reason for the acquisition of Acumins was to enhance our
online offerings in customized nutrition analys1s‘and supplements, which complements our CNS business.

1

" Agreements with the Aid

In June 1999, we entered into a ten- -year strateglc relat10nsh1p wrth Rite Aid. Through our agreements with
Rite Aid, which expire in 2009, we have access to Rite Aid customers through the RiteAid.com, website, which is
powered by the drugstore.com websxte All pharmacy orders processed through the drugstore.com website or the
RiteAid.com website can either be shipped to the customer from our distribution center or, in the case of refills of
existing drugstore.com or Rite Aid prescriptions, picked up by the customer at any Rite Aid store. Rite Aid
adjudicates and collects insurance reimbursement payments on our behalf.

In addition to providing for multi-channel delivery options, Rite Aid-and drugstore.com agreed to promote
each other’s services both online and in other promotional materials. As part of this.relationship; we agreed to
certain exclusivity provisions that limit our ability to promote, or affiliate with, any other physical retail
drugstore or to operate as a traditional physical drugstore, and Rite Aid agreed not to offer or sell products or
services on the Internet other than through our website. :

We are required to purchase all of our pharmaceutical products through Rite Aid, unless we are able to
obtain better overall terms from, another vendor. We receive the benefit of Rite Aid’s buying power, as well as
many of Rite Aid’s insurance and PBM relationships. The agreement also provides for the licensing by Rite Aid
to us of information technology systems and the integration of the information technology and pharmacy systems
of the two companres We currently use these systems to process pharmaceutical orders through our primary
distribution center. : S , -

A portion of the non-cash consideration relating to [our agreements with Rite Aid has been‘eﬂocated to
advertising commitments and classified within prepaid marketing expenses. The assets are bemg amortlzed ona
straight-line basis over their contractual life of 10 years; ending in 2009. Amortization expense. of $2.3 million is
included in marketing and sales expense for each of the fiscal years 2003, 2004 and 2003. '

Agreement with GNC

.-
!

We have a 10-year agreement with GNC under which we are an online provrder of GNC-branded products:
We had the exclusive right to sell GNC’s wellness products over the Internet until July 2005, at which time our
exclusivity provisions terminated. For the remainder of the agreement, which ends in-2009, we"have the
nonexclusrve right to sell these products. As part of this relationship, we created the GNC Live:Well Store within
the drugstore com website, which is dedicated to selling GNC products on a cons1gnment basis. We retain a
percentage of the gross revenues that we collect from sales of GNC products and recognize only the net amount
we retain as revenues. We have also agreed with GNC to co-promote each other’s products and services in both
traditional and online marketing efforts, including GNC’s placement of. a link to our website on the GNC
website. t

A portion of the non-cash consideration relating to the agreements with GNC has been allocated to vendor
agreements and classified within other intangible assets. The assets are: bemg amortrzed ona strarght—hne basis
over their contractual life of 10-years. . :
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Agreements with Amazon.com

In September 2003, we entered into an e-commerce agreement with Amazon.com. This agreement
terminated our previous marketing relationship with Amazon.com, under which Amazon.com provided certain
advertising and technical services in exchange for cash and shares of our common stock. Under the e-commerce
agreement, we were a non-exclusive wholesaler and fulfillment provider for certain OTC products sold through
the Health & Personal Care store on the Amazon.com website. We shipped the Amazon.com orders we fulfilled
in Amazon.com-branded boxes from our distribution facility, in exchange for a fulfillment fee and agreed-upon
product price. We began shipping orders under this agreement in December 2003 and on November 9, 2005, we
terminated this agreement. Neither party had any material obligations following termination. The product
revenue and fulfillment fees generated by our agreement with Amazon.com totaled $6.3 million in 2005 and
$14.1 million in 2004. Product revenue and fulfillment fees in 2003 were insignificant.

We also have a technology license and advertising agreement with Amazon.com, under which we have the
right to license substantially all of Amazon.com’s technology for use in our business and to receive certain
technological and advertising support from Amazon.com, and Amazon.com has the right to license substantially
all of our technology for use in its business. Neither party may use the other’s technology to compete against the
other. Currently, neither party has licensed any technology from the other under this agreement. If we were to be
acquired by a competitor of Amazon.com and Amazon.com did not vote in favor of the transaction, we would
lose our rights to use Amazon.com’s technology, if we are then using any. This agreement also restricts us from
promoting on our website any company, other than drugstore.com, that sells products or services competitive
with those that Amazon.com offers or is preparing to produce or market. This agreement, which we entered into
in August 1998, has a 10-year term.

Agreement with Weil Lifestyle

On December 31, 2005, we entered into a fulfillment agreement with Weil. This agreement replaced our
June 2003 agreement with Weil’s predecessor, whereby we and Weil developed a Weil-branded customized
nutritional supplement program and three web stores to sell products recommended by Weil. Under the new
fulfillment agreement, Weil will take over the development and maintenance of the websites, marketing, and
other business operations for the program and web stores, and we will provide the fulfillment and customer
service operations in exchange for an agreed-upon fulfillment fee.
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3. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Marketable Securities

Cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities consist of the following:

i

January 1, 2006

' ' ‘ . ‘ ‘ : Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized
Amortized  Holding 'Holding - Fair
Cost Gains . Losses® Value
) ‘ ’ C ~ (in thousands)
Cash ........... ... e $10,311 $— L8 $10,311
Commercial paper ........: e e SN 9,980 — — 9,980
Cash and cash equivalents ....... e i 20,291 — — 20,291
Auction rate securities ... ............. P 24,425 — — 24,425
U.S. government agency obligations ................ P 1,000 — @ 998
Corporatenotesandbonds .. ...................... P 750 — . (D 749
Marketable securities .. ........................... cee 26175 — _ (3) 26172
Total cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities . ...... $46,466 $— % (3) $46,463
. January 2, 2005
Gross . Gross
Unrealized Unrealized
Amortized  Holding Holding Fair
Cost Gains - Losses Value
(in thousands)
Cash .. e $12,493 $— $— $12,493
Commercial PAPET « ettt e L 2,994 — ﬁ
Cash and cash equivalents ................... BN 15,487 4 — 15,491
Auction rate securities . ..... T e T - 9,825 L —_ 9,825
U.S. government agency obligations ......................... 6,239 8 L (26) 6,221
Corporate notes and bonds . ........... e S 1,667 P— 1 (5) 1,662
Private placementbonds ........... ... ... ... .. .. 1,064 §—_ L. 44) 1,020
Marketable securities ............ ... .. ... ... 18,795 8 C(75) 18,728
Total cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities . . . . ... $34,282 $ 12 ©$(75) $34,219

‘) We evaluated the nature of investments with loss positions, which are primarily U.S. government agency
obligations and private placement bonds, the duration of the impairments (all less than twelve months), and
the amounts of the impairments relative to the underlying portfolio and concluded that such amounts were
not “other-than-temporary” as defined by SFAS No. 115, Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and
Equity Securities.
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The following table summarizes contractual maturities of our cash equivalents and marketable securities as
of January 1, 2006:

Amortized Fair
Cost Value
Due Within ORE YEAT . . o\ttt e e e e $11,730  $11,727

Due after one year throughthree years ........... ... ... ... . .o, —
Auction rate securities @ . ... 24,425 24,425

Total .. e $36,155  $36,152

(@ Auction rate securities generally reset within 90 days but have a contractual maturity date in excess of 10
years.

4. Fixed Assets

Fixed assets consist of the following:

Januaryl,  January 2,

2006 2005
(in thousands)

Computers and eqQUIPIMENT . . ..o v vttt ettt et e et $ 23817 $ 23,093
Purchased and internally developed software .......................... 10,135 8,249
Fumiture and fixtures . ... ... i e 2,697 2,439
Leasedassets ...........v... e e e e e 4,565 1,887
Leasehold improvements . ............ .ottt 10,501 10,239

51,715 45,907
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization ....................... (38,425) (35,722)

13,290 10,185
Construction in PrOZIESS . .. ot vttt ittt e e e e e e 2,549 3,441
TOtal .o e $15,839  $ 13,626

Accumulated amortization on leased assets was $2.0 million as of January 1, 2006 and $1.2 million as of
January 2, 2005. Amortization is included in depreciation expense.
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5. Other Intangible Assets

The other intangible assets balances as of January 1, 2006 were as follows (in thousands):

Weighted
Average Gross
Years Carrying Accumulated Net
. Useful Life Amount Amortization Balance
Vision Direct trade name ............... AR indefinite  $ 2,700 $ — $2,700
Vision Direct customer ba§e .................. 3 1,931 (1,643) 288
Vision Direct vendor agreement ............... 2 1,434 (1,434) —
Vision Direct covenant of non-compete ......... o2 575 (575) —
GNC vendor agreement . ..................... 10 12,265 (9,662) 2,603
CNS contract and technology assets ............ 4 3,330 (2,166) 1,164
Technology license, domain names and other . . ... 6 1,567 (895) 672
Total other intangible assets . . ................. 7

$23,802 $(16,375)  $7,427

The other intangible assets balances as of J anuary 2, 2005 were as follows (in thousands):

Weighted '
Average Gross Adjustments
Years Carrying to Other Accumulated Net
Useful Life Amount Intangibles Amortization Balance
Vision Direct tradename ................. indefinite  $ 5,500 $(2,8000» § . — $ 2,700
Vision Direct customer base . .............. 3 3,600 (1,669)(H» (1,187) 744
Vision Direct vendor agreement . ........... 2 1,200 - 234 13 1(838) 596
Vision Direct covenant of non-éompete ...... 2 1,000 (425)1H3 (418) 157
GNC vendor agreement .................. 10 12,265 — (3,918) 3,347
Beauty.éom trade name and customer base . . . 3 . 6,314 - (6,314) —
CNS contract and technology assets . .. ... ... 4 . 3,330 — (1,333) 1,997
Technology hcense ‘domain names and !
other'.............. e 6 - 1,567 — H(709) 858
Total other intangible assets ... ............ 6 $34,776 $(4,660) $(19,717) $10,399

() The carrying values of certain other intangible assets related to Vision Direct have been adjusted as aresult
of adjustments in our purchase price allocations during the allocation period.

@ During 2004, we recorded an impairment charge of $2.8 million to reduce the carrymg value of indefinite-
lived intangible assets, which was based on the difference between the carrying value and the fair market
value calculated in accordance with SFAS 142. We determined the fair value of the intangible asset based
on the future discounted cash flows. See Note 6.

(3 During 2004, we determined that $1.9 million of definite-lived intangible assets were 1mpa1red and therefore
wrote them down to their fair market value in accordance with SFAS 144. The impairment charge was
determined based on the difference between the carrying value of the assets and their fair value, estimated
through future discounted cash flows. See Note 6. ‘
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The following table summarizes our estimated amortization expense for each of the next five fiscal years (in
thousands):

Fiscal year
2006 .. e e e e e $2,060
2007 o e e e 1,223
2008 L e e 837
2000 L e e e 421
2000 L e 50
Total . e $4,591
6. Goodwill

The following table summarizes the changes in goodwill by business segment for fiscal years 2005 and
2004:

oTC Vision Total
(in thousands)

Balance, December 28,2003 ......... ... . . ... $8,404 $44,673 $ 53,077
Purchase price adjustments .................... — 1,925 1,925
Impairmentloss ............. ... . i, —_— (22,800) (22,800)

Balance, January 1, 2006 and January 2,2005 ......... $8,404 $23,798 $ 32,202

Goodwill in our OTC segment includes $2.7 million related to the acquisition of CNS in 2003 and $5.7
million related to our acquisition of Beauty.com in 2000. Goodwill in our vision segment represents the goodwill
related to the acquisition of Vision Direct in 2003. In 2004, we recorded purchase price adjustments of $1.9
million to our vision segment goodwill as a result of deferred tax liabilities related to indefinite-lived intangible
assets. See Note 9.

As part of our quarterly review of financial results in the third quarter of fiscal 2004, we noted indicators
that the carrying value of goodwill and other intangible assets related to the acquisition of Vision Direct might
not be recoverable, which resulted in an impairment review. Indicators that an impairment review was necessary
were lower-than-expected sales growth partially attributable to challenges we faced in complying with the
contact lens prescription access and verification requirements of the U.S. Fairness to Contact Lens Consumers
Act, which was enacted in February 2004, and the related regulations implemented in August 2004, and an
increasingly competitive contact lens marketplace. We evaluated the recoverability of goodwill and other
intangible assets in accordance with SFAS 142 and SFAS 144.

Based on the analysis, we determined that the carrying amount of our vision segment was in excess of its
fair value. Therefore, we were required to perform the second-step analysis on the vision segment to determine
the amount of the impairment loss. As a result of our analysis under SFAS 142 and 144, we recorded impairment
charges of $22.8 million to goodwill and $4.7 million to other intangible assets ($2.8 million to indefinite-lived
and $1.9 million to definite-lived).

7. Long-Term Obligations

In October 2005, we entered into an agreement to lease computer equipment under a non-cancelable capital
lease. With respect to each draw under this lease, 63.5% of the sum of the draw amount plus interest determined
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at the time of the draw is payable in monthly installments over the 24 months following the draw. At the end of
the 24-month period, we will either pay the remaining 36.5% in a single balloon payment or extend financing for
an additional 12 months. All draws under this lease, which are limited to $1.2 million, must be completed by
June 2006. We have drawn the entire $1.2 million under this lease payable in 24 monthly installments of
$37,600 at an interest rate of 9.4%.

In December 2004, we entered into an amended and restated loan and security. agreement with a bank. The
agreement includes a revolving line of credit allowing for borrowings up to $1.0 million through June 30, 2005
and allowed for an additional $2.0 million of borrowings thereafter, based on certain conditions specified in the
agreement. The interest rate on the revolving line of credit is the prime rate plus 0.25% (7.5% at January 1,
2006), and the revolving line of credit has a maturity date of one year from the date of advance. In January 2005,
we borrowed $1.0 million on the line of credit and in December 2005, we converted the $1.0.million line of
credit into a term loan. The term loan totaled $1.0 million as of January 1, 2006 and is payable in 36 monthly
installments of principal and interest at a rate of prime rate plus 0.50% (7.75% at January 1, 2006). In addition,
the agreement includes a $2.0 million term loan for capital equipment expenditures that accrues interest on the
outstanding principal balance at a rate of prime rate plus 0.50%. This term loan is payable in 36 equal monthly
installments of principal, plus accrued interest, beginning on February 1, 2005 and ending on January 1, 2008.
The balance outstanding under this term loan was $1.4 million as of January 1, 2006 and $2.0 million as of
January 2, 2005. The borrowings under the agreement are collateralized by our equipment, mventory, and
intangible assets. The agreement contains certain financial and non-financial covenants with Wthh we were in
compliance at January 1, 2006.

In March 2006, we entered into an amended and restated loan and security agreement with the same bank.
This agreement includes a revolving line of credit allowing for borrowings of up to $7.5 million, which accrue
interest at the prime rate. The revolving line of credit has a maturity date of one year from the date of advance.
The agreement allows for the conversion of up to $2.5 million of the outstanding balance into a term loan within
60 days of matunry : ’ l

We also lease computer equipment under non-cancelable capital leases. Capital lease obljgations bear
interest at rates ranging from:2% to 10% and mature 24 to 60 months from the date of funding. We secured
additional funds of $1.2 million during 2005 and $536,000 during 2004, through capital lease financing
agreements, through which we financed certain computer equipment, software, ﬁxtures and equipment for
periods of two years. We are in compliance with all covenants required by these agreements These amounts are
included in the table below within the category of capital leases. : i

Maturities of long-term obligations at January 1, 2006 are as follows:

‘ Term Loans . Capital Leases Total
2000 . e $ 948 - $1.231 $2,179

2007 .o S D 997 1,288 2,285
2008 ... R 412 . 32 444
2000 L L 31 — 31
Total MiNIMUM PAYMENLS .. ... .oovrreernenneen .. 2,388 2,551 4,939
Less amounts representing interest ............ PP — (225) (225)
Present value of minimum payments ................ C 2,388 2,326 4714
Less current portion of long-term obligations . . . G (948) (1,081) (2,029

Noncurrent portion of leng-term obligations . .. .. PO $1,440 $ 1,245 $ 2,685




DRUGSTORE.COM, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

8. Commitments and Contingencies
Leases

We lease office, distribution center and call center facilities under non-cancelable operating leases, which
call for fixed rental payments ending between 2008 and 2013. We have the option to extend some of these leases
for one or more additional terms of five years. In addition, we lease various office and IT equipment under
operating leases. Total rent expense under operating leases was $3.1 million for 2005, $3.7 million for 2004 and
$3.9 miilion for 2003.

In August 2004, we entered into an operating lease for approximately 53,000 square feet for our corporate
headquarters. The lease expires on July 31, 2013, with two separate five-year renewal options that, if exercised,
would extend the lease expiration to July 2023. In connection with the lease, we received landlord-provided
incentives of approximately $2.3 million in the form of tenant improvements, which have been recorded as
additions to fixed assets and other current and long-term liabilities and are being amortized over the term of the
lease. As of January 1, 2006 and January 2, 2005, our long-term lease liability totaled $1.9 million and $2.2
million, respectively, and our current lease liability totaled $0.3 million.

In connection with the lease arrangements for our corporate headquarters, we were required to provide two
standby letters of credit as security deposits. The letters of credit were issued in the amounts of approximately
$500,000 in July 2004 and approximately $550,000 in October 2004, Both letters of credit were collateralized
with cash. Effective October 1, 2005, one of these letters of credit expired and was replaced by another letter of
credit. The replacement letter of credit, which will be renewed annually until the end of the lease term, is funded
under our revolving line of credit and is not required to be secured with cash. The cash previously used as
collateral for the expired letter of credit, approximately $570,000, was therefore released and made available for
use in operations. The other letter of credit expired on November 30, 2005 and approximately $515,000 was
released and made available for use in operations.

Future minimum commitments at January 1, 2006, are as follows:

Operating

_Leases
2006 . $ 2,664
2007 e e e e 2,632
2008 . 2,596
2000 . 2,499
2000 L 2,592
Thereafter ... ... 3,856
Total MINIMUM PAYIMENES . . ..ot v vt e e e e e e e e e eeneees $16,839

Legal Proceedings

Class Action Laddering Litigation. On and after July 6, 2001, eight stockholder class action lawsuits were
filed in the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York naming drugstore.com as a
defendant, along with the underwriters and certain of our present and former officers and directors (the
Individual Defendants), in connection with our July 27, 1999 initial public offering and March 15, 2000
secondary offering (together, the Offerings). The complaints against drugstore.com have been consolidated into a
single action and a Consolidated Amended Complaint, which is now the operative complaint, was filed on
April 19, 2002. The suit purports to be a class action filed on behalf of purchasers of our common stock during
the period July 28, 1999 to December 6, 2000. In general, the complaint alleges that the prospectuses through
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which we conducted the Offerings were materially false and misleading for failure t6 disclose, among other
things, that (i) the underwriters of the Offerings allegedly had solicited and received excessive and undisclosed
commissions from certain investors in exchange for which the underwriters allocated to those investors material
pomons of the restricted number Of shares issued in connection with the Offermgs and (ii) the underwnters
allegedly entered into agreements with customers whereby the underwriters agreed to allocate drugstore com
shares to customers in the Offerings in exchange for which customers agreed to purchase additional
drugstore.com shares in the after-market at predetermined prices. The complaint asserts violations of various
sections of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. The -
action seeks damages in an unspecified amount and other relief. The action is being coordmated with
approx1mately 300 other nearly identical actions filed against other companies or their former pfﬁcers and
directors. On July 15, 2002, we moved to dismiss all claims against us and the Individual Defendants On
October 9, 2002, the Court dlsmlssed the Individual Defendants from the case without prejudice based on
stipulations of dismissal filed by the plamtlffs and the Indmdual Defendants On February 19, 2003 the Court ,
denied the motion to dismiss the complaint against drugstore.com. On October 13, 2004 .the Court certified a
class in nine of the approximately 300 other nearly identical actions and noted that the dec1s1on is intended to.
provide strong guidance to all parties regarding class certification in the remaining cases. Plaintiffs have not yet
moved to certify a class in our case.

We have approved a settlement agreement and related agreements, which set forth the terms of a settlement
between drugstore.com, the plaintiff class and the vast majority of the other issuer defendants or, in the case of
bankrupt issuers, their directors and officers. Among other provisions, the settlement agreement provides for a -
release of drugstore.com and the Individual Defendants for the conduct alleged in the action to be wrongful. We
would agree to.undertake certain responsibilities, including agreeing to assign away, not assert; or release certain
potential claims we may have against our underwriters. The settlement agreement also provides a guaranteed
recovery of $1 billion to the plaintiffs for the cases relating to all of the approximately 300 issuers. To the extent
that the underwriter defendants settle all of the cases for at least $1 billion, no payment will be required under the
issuers’ settlement agreement. To the extent that the underwriter defendants settle for less than $1 billion, the
issuers are required to make up the difference. We anticipate that any potential financial obligation of
drugstore.com to the plaintiffs pursuant to the terms of the settlement agreement and related agreements will be
covered by existing insurance, and we have already satisfied our deductible. We are currently not aware of any
material limitations from our insurance carriers on the expected recovery of any potential firiancial obligation to
the plaintiffs. Qur carriers are solvent and we are not aware of any uncertainties as to the legal ‘sufficiency of an
insurance claim with respect to any recovery by the plaintiffs. Therefore, we do not eéxpect that the settlement
will involve any payment by us. If material limitations on the expected recovery of any potenti‘al financial
obligation to the plaintiffs from drugstore.com’s insurance carriers should arise, drugstore.coni’s maximum
financial obligation to plaintiffs pursuant to the settlement agreement would be less than $3.4 million.

On February 15, 2005, the Court granted preliminary approval of the settlement agreement, subject to
certain modifications consistent with its opinion. These modifications have been made. There is no assurance that
the Court will grant final approval to the settlement. We are unable to estimate the potential damages that might
be awarded if the settlement were not approved, we were.found-liable, there arose a material limitation with
respect to our insurance coverage, or the amount awarded were to exceed our insuraice coverdge. Because our
liability, if any,cannot be reasonably estimated, no amounts have been accrued for this matter. An adverse
outcome in this matter could have a material adverse affect on our financial position; and results of operations.

vl ! . . B B .

State Sales Tax Claims. *In early 2002, we received an arbitrary assessment notice from the state of New’
Jersey for past sales tax due from fiscal years 2000 and 2001, based upon its best estimate of sales revenue
numbers during those periods.-In' December 2002, we received a revised-assessment from the state of New Jersey
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for 2000 and 2001 in the amount of $221,626 in tax, plus penalties in the amount of $11,081 and interest that
continues to accrue. We do not currently collect and do not believe that we are required to collect New Jersey
sales tax. In March 2003, we filed an appeal of the revised assessment with the Tax Court of New Jersey, based
on the fact that the state of New Jersey is pursuing its claim specifically against one of our consolidated
subsidiaries that is not a retailing entity in that state. The appeal is pending and trial is scheduled for May 2006.
Due to the uncertainty of the appeal, no amounts have been recorded in the accompanying financial statements
with respect to the sales tax alleged to be due. If we are unsuccessful in our appeal, the state of New Jersey may
expand its assessment to include other years for which we did not collect sales tax. No amounts have been
accrued for this matter as our liability, if any, cannot be reasonably estimated. However, the ultimate outcome of
this matter could result in substantial tax liabilities for our past sales and have a material adverse affect on our
financial position and results of operations.

Federal Securities Action. On and after June 25, 2004, several putative class actions were filed in the
United States District Court for the Western District of Washington against drugstore.com and certain of its
present and former officers for alleged violations of the federal securities laws. The suits purport to have been
filed on behalf of purchasers of our common stock between January 14, 2004 and June 10, 2004. The complaints
generally allege that the defendants made false and misleading statements about our prospects for fiscal year
2004 and failed to disclose, among other things, (i) a negative impact on our gross margins from the integration
of our acquisition of Vision Direct and from our free 3-day shipping promotion, and (ii) a negative impact on our
sales growth arising from cancellations of certain expired prescriptions. On October 8, 2004, the Court issued an
order consolidating the individual actions. On November 1, 2004, the Court appointed lead plaintiffs and lead
plaintiffs’ counsel. On January 11, 2005, the Consolidated Amended Complaint was filed by the lead plaintiffs.
On March 13, 2005, the defendants moved to dismiss the complaint, and October 19, 2005, the Court granted the
motion and dismissed all of the plaintiffs’ claims. Applying the heightened pleading standards of the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, or PSLRA, the Court found that all of the allegedly false statements
were “forward-looking statements” and were accompanied by sufficient cautionary language to fall under the
safe harbor for forward-looking statements provided by the PSLRA. On November 18, 2005, the court signed the
final order dismissing this case.

Stockholder Derivative Action. On August 13, 2004, two stockholder derivative actions were filed by
plaintiffs Gerald Rusk and George Zimmer in the Superior Court of the state of Washington, King County,
against certain of our present and former officers and directors. The derivative plaintiffs allege breach of
fiduciary duty based on the failure to prevent the disclosure violations alleged in the securities complaints.
Plaintiffs also allege abuse of control, gross mismanagement, waste of corporate assets, and unjust enrichment.
These actions seek damages from the defendants on behalf of drugstore.com, which is a nominal defendant in the
actions. Plaintiffs allege that certain of the defendants breached their fiduciary duties by selling drugstore.com
stock while in possession of material non-public information. On January 21, 2005, the defendants moved to stay
proceedings pending further developments in the federal securities action. On June 13, 2005, the Court denied the
motion to stay. Plaintiffs filed a consolidated amended complaint on July 29, 2005 and, by stipulation of the
parties, the defendants must respond by March 31, 2006.

Although the stockholder derivative complaints do not seek financial relief directly from drugstore.com, the
litigation could have financial consequences for us through, for example, the attorneys’ fees we incur and
advances to the defendants and, if appropriate under the circumstances, indemnification of the defendants. No
amounts have been accrued for this matter, as our liability, if any, cannot be reasonably estimated. An adverse
outcome in this matter could have a material adverse effect on our financial position and results of operations.

Other. From time to time, we are subject to other legal proceedings and claims in the ordinary course of
business. We are not currently aware of any such legal proceedings or claims that we believe will have,
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1nd1v1dually or in the aggregate a matenal adverse effect on our busmess prospects fmanmal condltlon or '
operating results. b . ‘

1

9, Income Taxes ,

- No tax benefit or expense was recorded in 2005 due to our'ongoing operatmg losses. In 2004 we recorded a
deferred tax.benefit of $980,000, which resulted from the impairment of certain indéfinite-lived intangible asséts'
and the related reduction in-deferred tax liabilities that were recorded in connection with our acquisition of .-
Vision Direct. Our deferred tax asset consists primarily of net operating loss carry-forwards and amortization and
impairment of intangible assets. We have provided a valuation allowance for our deferred tax asset to an amount
expected to be realized. The increase in the valuation allowance on the deferred tax asset was $7 3 million for
2005 and $12 2 million for 2004. ‘

: i M l

At January 1, 2006 and January -2, 2005, we had approxtmately $519.0 million and $483 9 rmlhon
respectively, of net operating loss carry-forwards that will expire beginning in 2018: Internal Revenue Code .
Section 382 imposes limitations on our ability to utilize net operating‘losses if we experience an ownership
change. An ownership change may result'from transactions increasing the ownership of certain stockholders in
the stock of a corporation by more than 50 percentage' points over a three-year period. The value of the stock at
the time of an ownership change is multiplied by the applicable long-term tax exempt interest rate to calculate the
annual limitation. Any unused annual limitation may be carried over to later years. -

Approximately $8.6 million of our net operating loss carry-forwards are acquired operating loss carry-
forwards. To the extent that we realize these acquired operating loss carry-forwards, the resulting tax benefits would
reduce any remaining goodwill related to-the acquisition. Approximately $7.8 million of our net loss carry-forwards
are related to tax-deductible stock-based compensation in excess of amounts recognized for financial reporting
purposes. To the extent that net operating loss carry-forwards, if realized, relate to stock-based compensatlon the
resulting tax benefits will be recorded to stockholders’ equity, rather than to results of operations.

Deferred income tax balances reflect the effects of temporary differences between the carrying amount of
assets and liabilities and their tax bases and are stated at the enacted tax rates expected to be in effect when taxes
are actually paid or recovered: Significant components of our deferred tax assets and liabilities- are as follows:

January 1, January 2,
2006 2005

‘ (in thousands)

Deferred tax assets: ‘ v
Net operating loss carry- -forward (federal) ........... ... $ 176,455 $ 164,513

Net operating Joss carry-forward (state) . . . R R © 7,458 6,112
Depreciation, amortization and impairment of 1ntang1b1e assets ' . P B j’47',709 52,710
Research and development credit carry-forward .. ... ... L 0 .. ;’ 126 126
Stock cOMPensation .. ........vitiiii P SR 1,498 1,805

~ Other temporary dlfferences ..... P PR ce 1,829 2,506
Total gross deferred tax assets ................ e el e e 235,075 227,772
Less valuation allowance .. .............. ..., N e (235,075) . (227,772)

Net deferred tax assets, net of valuation allowance . . ............. e Lo P -—
Deferred tax liabilities: ' S S :
Indefinite-lived intangible asset .......... B R - (945) (945)

Net deferred tax liability . .................. O AP S (945) S (945)
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A reconciliation of income taxes computed at the statutory rate to the income tax amount recorded is as
follows:

January 1, January2, December 28,

2006 2005 2003
(in thousands)
Income tax benefit at StAtUtOry rate ... ... ..o\t $7,106 $16,563 $ 6,341
State taxes, net of federal impact .. ........ ... .. ... . i 309 731 280
Amortization and impairment of other intangible assets ................ — (6,772) 7
Other permanent differences ........... ... i (112) (229) (85)
Acquisition of Vision Direct ..:.......... .. . i — 2,906 —
Increase in valuation allowance ................. ... viiiinninnnn. (7,303) (12,219) (6,543)
Total income tax benefit .. ...t $ — $ 980 $ —

10. Stockholders’ Equity
QOutstanding Warrants

In June 2000, in connection with a five-year strategic agreement with CIGNA HealthCare Companies
(CIGNA), we issued Tel-Drug, Inc., a subsidiary of CIGNA, a warrant to purchase 500,000 shares of our
common stock at $7.76 per share. In December 2003, Tel-Drug transferred ownership of this warrant, which
expires in December 2008.

On February 14, 2005, in connection with the performance of executive recruiting services, we issued to
Heidrick & Struggles, Inc. a warrant to purchase 115,000 shares of our common stock at $2.36 per share, which
expires in February 2008. The fair value of the warrant totaled $159,000 and is included in the statement of
operations for the year ended January 1, 2006.

Common Stock

In March 2003, we signed a five-year contract with NCR Corporation (NCR) pursuant to which we obtained
the right to use certain of NCR’s patents related fo methods and apparatus for providing online sales. Total
consideration payable was $500,000, which included $200,000 in cash and the issuance in April 2003 of 77,439
shares of our common stock having an aggregate fair value of $301,000.

In April 2003, in connection with the acquisition of CNS, we issued 635,593 shares of our common stock
having an aggregate fair value of $2.5 million. Pursuant to the sale agreement with CNS, 45,000 shares of
common stock originally held in escrow were returned to us in December 2003, which reduced the total
acquisition costs by $223,000.

In August 2003, we entered into a stock purchase agreement with Acumins, whereby we acquired all of the
issued and outstanding shares of Acumins in exchange for 100,000 shares of our common stock having an

aggregate fair value of $496,000.

In December 2003, in connection with the acquisition of Vision Direct, we issued 6,830,601 shares of
common stock having an aggregate fair market value of $45.7 million.

In October and November 2004, in connection with a settlement agreement, we issued 135,930 shares of our
common stock having an aggregate fair value of $492,000.
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In March 2005, we issued 10.0 million shares of our common stock to Ziff Asset Management, L.P. (Ziff) in
a private placement, for cash consideration of $26.0 million. On December 2, 2005, pursuant to the terms of the
stock purchase agreement, we filed a registration statement with the SEC to register the resale of all the common
shares. Proceeds received, net of issuance costs of $48,000, were used for general corporate purposes, including,
but not limited to, ihvestments in marketing initiatives and technology infrastructure enhancements.

In October 2003, in connection with a license agreement, we issued 10,000 shares -of our common stock
having an aggregate fair value of $34,000. , L _ !

Common Stock Reserved for Future Issuance ;
The following table represents the number of shares of common stock reserved for future issuance as of
January 1, 2006:..

SEOCK OPHON PIAN .+« + + oo e e e e e e 22,663,496
Employee stock purchase plan ........... ... .. ... i i 2,396,068
Warrants to purchase common stock . ......... ... ... .. ... 1 615,000

25,674,564

11. Embloyee Benefit Plans v
Defined Contribution Plan

We have adopted a deﬁned contribution retirement plan under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code,
which covers substantially all of our employees (401(k) Plan). Eligible employees may contribute amounts to the
401(k) Plan, via payroll withholding, subject to certain limitations. Under the 401(k) Plan, employees may elect
to reduce their current compensation by up to the statutorily prescribed annual limit and to have the amount of
such reduction contributed to the 401(k) Plan. The 401(k) Plan permits, but does not require, additional matching
contributions to the 401(k) Plan by us on behalf of all participants in the 401(k) Plan. To date, we have not made
any matching contributions to the 401(k) Plan. ; »

1998 Stock Plan ; |

Under the terms of our 1998 Stock Plan, as amended (1998 Stock Plan), our board of directors may grant
incentive and nonqualified stock options to employees, officers, directors, agents, consultants and independent
contractors of drugstore.com. Under the 1998 Stock Plan, an aggregate of 33,918, 770 shares of common stock
have been reserved for future issuance. Shares for future issuances are determined by means of an automatic
annual increase, beginning on the first day of fiscal year 2001, equal to (i) the lesser of (a) 5% of the outstanding
shares of common stock as of the end of the immediately preceding fiscal year or (b) 6,000,000 shares or (ii) a
lesser amount determined by the plan administrator; provided that any shares from any such increase in previous
years that are not actually issued will be added to'the aggregate number of shares available for:iissuance under the
1998 Stock Plan. Pursuant to this provision, 3,419,516 additional shares were reserved for futdre issuance on
December 30, 2002 (first day of fiscal year 2003), 3,870,501 additional shares were reserved for future issuance
on December 29, 2003 (first day of fiscal year 2004) and 2,000,000 additional shares were reserved for future
issuance on January 2, 2006 (first day of fiscal 2006). No additional shares were reserved for. future issuance on
January 3, 2005 (first day of fiscal year 2005).
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Generally, we grant stock options, as approved by the board of directors, with exercise prices equal to the
fair market value of the common stock on the date of grant. Options generally vest over a four-year period and
expire ten years from the date of grant.

In May 2000, our board of directors approved the grant of options to purchase an aggregate of
approximately 3.3 million shares of our common stock to certain of our existing employees at an exercise price
of $7.00 per share, which was below the fair market value on the date of grant. The options were granted under
our 1998 Stock Plan and vest over a four-year period, with one-fourth of the total number of shares vesting six
months after the grant date and the remaining shares vesting in equal installments at the end of each six-month
period thereafter. Accordingly, during 2000 we recorded deferred stock-based compensation of approximately
$5.3 million, which was amortized over the vesting period of the options using the multiple-option approach.

In January 2002, the compensation committee of our board of directors approved the grant of options to
purchase an aggregate of approximately 2.4 million shares of our common stock to certain of our existing
employees at an exercise price of $1.93 per share, which was below the fair market value on the date of the grant.
The options were granted under our 1998 Stock Plan and vest over a four-year period, with 20% of the total
number of shares vesting on June 30, 2002 and the remaining shares vesting in equal installments at the end of
each quarter thereafter. Accordingly, during 2002 we recorded deferred stock-based compensation of
approximately $1.1 million, which is being amortized over the vesting period of the options using the multiple-
option approach.

In April 2003, our board of directors approved the grant of options to certain employees to purchase an
aggregate of approximately 395,000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $2.50 per share, which
was below the fair market value on the date of grant. The options were granted under our 1998 Stock Plan and
vest over a four-year period, with 20% of the total number of shares vesting six months after the grant date and
the remaining shares vesting in equal installments at the end of each quarter thereafter. Accordingly, during 2003
we recorded deferred stock-based compensation of approximately $545,000, which was amortized over the
vesting period of the options using the multiple-option approach.

In 2003, two separate grants of options were provided to certain non-employees in connection with project
work performed for us. The options were issued at the market price on the date of grant but had accelerated
vesting of less than one year. We recorded these options at an adjusted fair market value, resulting in deferred
stock-based compensation of $236,000, which was amortized over the vesting period of the options the multiple-
option approach.

Effective October 2004, our board of directors approved the grant of options to purchase 4,000,000 shares of
our common stock to Dawn Lepore, our president, chief executive officer and chairman of the board, at an
exercise price of $2.97 per share, which was below the fair market value on the date of grant. The options were
granted under our 1998 Stock Plan and vest and become exercisable as follows: (a) 2,000,000 option shares vest
and become exercisable over a four-year period commencing on the date of grant, with 400,000 option shares
vesting six months after the date of grant and the remaining 1,600,000 option shares vesting in equal quarterly
installments over the subsequent 42-month period; (b) 1,000,000 option shares will vest and become exercisable
when our common stock trades for 30 consecutive trading days at a price of $5.00 or more per share; (c) 750,000
option shares will vest and become exercisable when our common stock trades for 30 consecutive trading days at
a price of $10.00 or more per share; and (d) 250,000 option shares will vest and become exercisable when our
common stock trades for 30 consecutive trading days at a price of $20.00 or more per share. The 2,000,000
option shares for which vesting is based upon the price of our common stock will vest in full upon continuous
employment by Ms. Lepore for a period of four years from the date of grant. Accordingly, during 2004 we

83



‘ DRUGSTORE.COM, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

recorded deferred stock-based compensation of approximately $3.9 million, which is being recogmzed over the
vesting period using the multiple-option approach. " ]

We recorded stock compensation expense totaling $173,000 in 2005 and $43,000 in 2004 for the fair value
of options granted to non-employees for services. In 2004, we granted options to certain employees (other than
Ms. Lepore) at below fair market value, resulting in deferred stock-based compensation of $76 000, which was
amortized over the vesting penod using the multlple opuon approach ‘

In 2005, 2004 and 2003, certam stock options were modified for terminated employees, wh1ch resulted in a
stock compensation charge of $175,000 in 2005, $395,000 in 2004 and $1.3 million in 2003.

The following table summarizes activity under our 1998 Stock Plan:

Outstanding Options

Weighted- ' ‘
Average Weighted
Shares Exercise Options Average
Available Number of Priceper  Exercisable at  Exercise
‘ for Grant ‘ Shares Share End of Year Price

Outstanding at Deégmber‘ 29,2002 ........... . 8,376,856 13,500,098  $6.60 7,402,222 $5.88
Additional shares authorized ... .......... 3,419,516 — . = 3
Options granted ....................... (5,105,875) 5,105,875  $3.73 ‘

Options exercised .. ... e C—  (1,319,142) $1.52
Options forfeited . . . ... e 1,654,962  (1,654,962) $4.25 ; »

Outstanding at December 28, 2003 R - 8,345,459.- 15,631,869  $6.34 ~ 9,078,797 .. $6.06
Additional shares authorized ............. " 3,870,501 — —~ ‘ ‘

Options granted ... .... D (8,152,455) 8,152,455  $3.58
Options exercised .. ... T —  (3,858,402) $1.20
Options forfeited ...................... 4,507,701 (4,507,860) $9.68 ‘

Outstanding at January 2, 2005  ......... e 8,571,206 15,418,062  $5.19 6,637,775; $7.52
Additional shares authorized ............. — — — | ‘
Options granted ....... e © (6,365,606) 6,365,606 - $2.93
Options exercised ..... AT . . —  (1,325,773) $1.35
Options forfeited ................. .. ... 4,693,368 (4,693,367) $7.74

Outstanding at January 1, 2006 ............... 6,898,968 15,764,528 $3j‘84 6,764,730 $4.80
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The following table summarizes information regarding stock options outstanding and exercisable as of
January 1, 2006:

Outstanding Options Exercisable Options
Weighted
Weighted Average Vested and Weighted
Average Remaining Exercisable Average
Number Exercise Contractual Number Exercisable
Exercise Prices Outstanding Price Life of Shares Price
$001t0$233 ............... 2,711,281 $ 1.69 6.2 years 2,357,989 $ 1.60
$234108261 ............... 2,794,561 2.58 9.2 years 726,214 2.58
$263t0%$2.96 ............... 1,152,283 2.76 8.8 years 434326 275
$297 ... 4,000,000 297 8.8 years 628,571 2.97
$3.00t084.19 ............... 2,678,253 3.49 9.1 years 615,745 3.37
$436t0%53.88 .............. 2,428,150 10.03 6.0 years 2,001,885 10.85
Total ................... 15,764,528 $ 3.84 8.0 years 6,764,730 $ 4.80

1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Under the terms of our 1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as amended (1999 Employee Stock Purchase
Plan), a total of 500,000 shares of common stock were initially reserved for issuance, and there is an annual
increase on the first day of each fiscal year equal to the lesser of (1) 500,000 shares, (2) three percent (3%) of our
shares outstanding on the last day of the immediately preceding fiscal year, or (3) such lesser number of shares as
may be determined by the board of directors. Pursuant to this provision, 500,000 additional shares were reserved
for future issuance on each of January 1, 2002, December 30, 2002, and December 29, 2003. Eligible employees
may purchase common stock under the 1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan for a purchase price equal to 85% of
the fair market value of our common stock on the first or last day, whichever is less, of the applicable six-month
purchase period. For the years ended January 1, 2006, January 2, 2005 and December 28, 2003, employees
purchased 127,952, 85,569 and 55,924 shares, respectively, of our common stock under the 1999 Employee
Stock Purchase Plan in exchange for $294,000, $297,000 and $110,000, respectively. As of January 1, 2006,
there were 2,396,068 shares reserved for future issuance under the 1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

12. Related Parties

We recognized marketing and sales expense in connection with our June 2001 marketing agreement with
Amazon.com, which was terminated in September 2003 (see Note 2), totaling $1.1 million for the year ended
December 28, 2003. Also, for the years ended January 1, 2006 and January 2, 2005, we generated revenues of
$6.3 million and $14.1 million, respectively, by acting as a nonexclusive wholesaler and fulfillment provider for
certain OTC products sold through the Health & Personal Care store on the Amazon.com website. Effective
November 9, 2005, we terminated this agreement with Amazon.com. Amounts due from Amazon.com totaled
$21,000 and $1.4 million, respectively, as of January 1, 2006 and January 2, 2005. Sales to, and accounts
receivable from, Amazon.com were not significant for the year ended December 28, 2003.

13. Segment Information

We have four reporting segments: over-the-counter (OTC), mail-order pharmacy, local pick-up pharmacy,
and vision. The OTC segment is comprised of the sales and related costs of selling all non-prescription products
through our websites and customized nutritional supplement programs through CNS. Until November 9, 2005,
the OTC segment also included wholesale OTC net sales and fulfillment fees generated through our agreement
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with Amazon.com, Inc., which we terminated effective November 9, 20035, and net'sales of consignment
products. The mail-order pharmacy segment is comprised of sales and the related costs of selling pharmaceuticals
through the drugstore.com website for mail-order delivery. The local pick-up pharmacy segment is comprised of
sales and the related costs of selling pharmaceuticals through the drugstore.com website and the RiteAid.com
website for pick-up at a local Rite Aid store. Our vision segment reflects sales and related costs of selling contact
lenses through Vision Direct. We manage our business segments based on contribution margin results. We define
contribution margin as net sales attributable to a segment, less the direct cost of these sales and the incremental
(variable) costs of fulfilling, processing and delivering the order (labor packagmg supplies, credit card fees, and
royalty costs that are variable based on sales volume).

The informatiorn presented below for these segments is information used by our chief operating decision
maker in evaluating operating performance. '

Fiscal Year 2005  Fiscal Year 2004  Fiscal Year 2003
(in thousands)

Over-the-Counter (OTC):

‘Netsales ......... ... e e $180,566 $155.316 $109,154
Costofsales .... ... ..o 130,346 113,354 76,173
Variable order costs @ . . . ... [ e __l_m _ 15,923 M
Contribution margin ® . . ... I IR $31L,151  $26039 S 22341
Local Pick-Up Pharmacy ' ‘ ‘ ‘

Netsales @ .. .. S o P S $:96,126 - $ 92,440 $ 85,131
Costof sales ....... e L Ll R DI 84,660 i 82,268 77,312
Variable order costs @ . e 4030 & 3,963 o 3,799
Contribution margin ® ... .. P S $ 7436 $ 6,209 $ 4,020
Mail-Order Pharmacy: ; o

Netsales ................ [ e S C$ 75612 . $ 63936 $ 49,155
Costofsales «............ N 65,352 54,450 40,479
Variable order costs @ . . ............... S 6,959, 6,381 5,054
Contribution margin ® .............. P $ 3,301 $ 3,105 $ 3622
Vision:

NetSales ..........oooueeeeeenn... P s $47,026. . $ 48,407 $ 2,293
Costofsales .................. SR e .. . 37,008 . 36,786 ‘ 1,537
Variable order costs @ .. . . .. e e e P 2,858 . 3,383 . 203
Contribution margin ® ... .. . O R $ 7,260 v $ 8,238 $ 553
Consolidated: oo R o
Netsales@ . ............. R N Ceneeaes $399,430 $360,099 $245,733
Costofsales ............. e . . 317,366 . 286,858 195,501
Variable ordercosts @ . . ... ................ e 32,916 , 29,650 19,696
Contribution margin ® . ............... ... ............. $ 49,148  $ 43591 $ 30,536

@  These amounts include all variable costs of fulfillment and order processing, including labor packaging
supplies, and credit card fees, and royalty costs that are vanable based on sales volume. These amounts
exclude depreciation and ﬁxed overhead costs. ‘ ‘
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®  Contribution margin represents a measure of how well each segment is contributing to our operating goals.
It is calculated as net sales less the direct cost of these sales and the incremental (variable) fulfillment and

order processing costs of delivering orders to our customers and royalty costs.

©  Net sales in our local pick-up pharmacy include co-payments totaling $21.1 million for 2005, $19.7 million

for 2004, and $18.3 million for 2003.

@  Net sales in 2005 and 2004 were comprised of 99% of sales in the United States of America and 1% of sales
internationally, and international net sales represented less than 1% of net sales in 2003.

Consolidated contribution margin for reportable segments . ................ $49,148 $43591 $ 30,536
Less:

Fixed fulfillment and order processing © ........... ... ... ... ..coiia.. 9,389 11,951 10,623
Marketing and sales ® ... L 30,140 22,382 16,051
Technologyandcontent ........... ... . i, 12,768 9,483 8,283
General and administrative ... ... ..ottt e 14,048 16,200 11,111
Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets ...................... — 27,460 —
Amortization of intangible assets ... .......... ... . . . . i 3,004 3,952 1,725
Stock-based compensation . ....... ... 1,968 1,238 2,014
Operating 1o8S « . ..ot e $(22,169) $(49,075) $(19,271)

) These amounts include all fixed costs of fulfillment and order processing that are not discernable by

business segment.
@  These amounts exclude royalty expenses that are included in variable costs.

The following table presents assets by segment and geographic asset information:

Fiscal Year 2004

(in thousands)

Fiscal Year 2005

Total Assets:
Over- the-Counter (OTC) ..........cvviiiiinonn. $ 37,964
Local Pick-Up Pharmacy .......................... 32,158
Mail-Order Pharmacy ............cocvvieinnnnnnn, 8,226
A/ 3T} + 30,620
COTPOTALE .« v\ ottt e e e e 61,595
Consolidated . ...... .ot e $170,563
Property and Equipment, Net:
United States of AMETica . .. ..o v vt i, $ 15,691
Canada ........ ... . 148

$ 15,839
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14. Quarterly Results of Operatlons (unaudited)

The following tables contain selected unaudited consohdated statement of operatxons information for each
quarter of fiscal years 2005 and 2004. We believe that the following information reflects all normal recurring
adjustments necessary for a fair presentation of the information for the periods presented The operatmg results
for any quarter are not necessamly indicative of results for any future period.

Fiscal Year Ended January 1, 2006 ' Fiscal Year Ended January 2, 2005
Fourth Third Second . First Fourth Third 1Second First
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
($ in thousands, except per share data)
Netsales .............. $ 106,‘369 $ 96,596 $ 96,892 $ 99,573 $ 103,606 $ 84,287 § 87,844 § 84,362
Costofsales ..... P 83,575 77,419 77,036 . 79,336 82,628 © 67,702 | 70,283 66,245
Netloss@ ............. (4,492) (7,108) (4,305) (4,994) (5363) $§ (328438 (4,960) $ (4,569)
Basic and diluted net loss ‘ ‘ :
pershare ® ... .. ..... $ (0.05) $ 0.08) $ 0.05) % ©0o6e)$ . (007)$ . (043) %' 0073 (0.06)
Shares used in
computation of basic
and diluted net loss per : '
share’ ............ ... 92,877,328 92,641,952 92,228,222 85,487,764 79,895,117 76,493,041 75 470,099 74,515,424

(1 The fourth quarter of the ﬁscal year ended January 2, 2005 was a 14-week quaner All other quarters are
13-week quarters.

@ Net loss for the third quarter of the year ended January 2, 2005 includes an impairment charge of $26.5
million on our goodwill and other intangible assets. In the fourth quarter of the year ended January 2, 2005,
we recorded an additional impairment charge of $1.0 million on our goodwill and a $1.0 million tax benefit
for the reduction of deferred tax liabilities related to the impairment of certain indefinite-lived intangible
assets. ‘

®  Net loss per share is computed independently for each of the quarters presented. Therefore the sum of the
quarterly net loss per share may not equal the annual net loss per share.




DRUGSTORE.COM, INC.

SCHEDULE II—VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

(in thousands)

Charges
Balance at to
beginning  revenue,
of costs
fiscal and Balance at end
Description period expenses Deductions  of fiscal period
Year Ended January 1, 2006
Allowance for doubtful accounts ..................... $ 98 $ 294 $ 291@ $101
Allowance for salesreturns ..............c.coviuinn.. 171 3,049 2,851® 369
Reserve for inventory valuation ...................... 378 949 735@ 592
Year Ended January 2, 2005
Allowance for doubtful accounts ..................... $ 45 $ 450 § 397@ $ 98
Allowance forsalesreturns ............ ... vt 324 2,069 2,222M) 171
Reserve for inventory valuation . ..................... 471 392 485@ 378
Year Ended December 28, 2003
Allowance for doubtful accounts ..................... $ 61 $ 8 § 100@® $ 45
Allowance forsalesreturns ............ ... ovin.n, 252 1,305 1,233® 324
Reserve for inventory valuation . ..................... 417 275 221@ 471

@  Deductions consist of write-offs of uncollectible accounts, net of recoveries.

®  Deductions consist of sales credits to customers for product returns.

©  Deductions consist of write-off of obsolete inventory and inventory shrinkage.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on March 17,
2006.

DRUGSTORE.COM, INC.

By: /s/ DAWN G. LEPORE

Dawn G. Lepore
President, Chief Executive Officer
and Chairman of the Board

POWER OF ATTORNEY

Each person whose individual signature appears below hereby authorizes and appoints Dawn G. Lepore and
Robert A. Barton, and each of them, with full power of substitution and resubstitution and full power to act
without the other, as his or her true and lawful attorney-in-fact and agent to act in his or her name, place and
stead and to execute in the name and on behalf of each person, individually and in each capac1ty stated below, -
and to file, any and all a.mendments to this report, and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto, and other
documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commissiorn, granting unto such
attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and
thing, ratifying and confirming all that said attorneys-in-fact and agents or any of them or the1r or his or her

substitute or substitutes may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue thereof [

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated as of March 17, 2006.

Signatl;re ’_I‘it_ls
/s/ DaAawN G. LEPORE ‘ President, Chief Executive Officer and

Dawn G. Lepore Chairman of the Board
1 (Principal Executive Officer)
/S/_ ROBERT A. BARTON Vice President of Finance and
Robert A. Barton Chief Financial Officer
‘ (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

/s/  MELINDA F. GATES Director
Melinda Frepch Gates
/s/ DAN LEVITAN ‘ Director
Dan Levitan
/s/ WiLLIamM D. Savoy Director

William D. Savoy

/s/  GREGORY S. STANGER Director

Gregory S. Stanger

/s/ G.CHARLES ROY, 3RD Director
G. Charles Roy, 3rd




Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, Dawn Lepore, certify that:

1.
2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of drugstore.com, inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state
a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control
over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and
have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end
of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and [ have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board
of directors:

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ Dawn G. Lepore

Dawn G. Lepore
Chief Executive Officer

March 17, 2006



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Robert A. Barton, certify that: ‘ ‘ S : !

1.
2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K-of drugstore.com, inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a-material fact-or omit to state
a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the.circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the. period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial.condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this:report; o ‘

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and-15d-15(e)) and internal control
over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the reglstrant and
have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclesure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in Wthh this report is.being prepared; : : !

b) Designed such mtemal control over financial;reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; = . - B

c) .Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure. controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the-effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end
of the period covered by this report based on'such evaluation; and-

d) Disclosed in this report any-change in the registrant’s;internal control over:financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and-

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal

+ . control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s:auditors and the audit committee of the' reg1strant s board

‘March 17, 2006

of directors:

a). Allsignificant deficiencies and-material: weaknesses in the design or operation of intemal control over
+ financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the reglstrant s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and . o

b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees Who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting:’

/s/ Robert A. Barton

Robert A. Barton
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of drugstore.com, inc. (the “Company”) for the period
ending January 1, 2006, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report™),
I, Dawn Lepore, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted
pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition
and result of operations of the Company.

/s/ Dawn G. Lepore

Dawn Lepore
Chief Executive Officer

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to drugstore.com, inc.

and will be retained by drugstore.com, inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff
upon request.

March 17, 2006



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS-ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Ini connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of drugstofe.com, inc. (the “Company”) for the period
ending January 1, 2006, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”),
I, Robert A. Barton, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 u.s. C § 1350, as adopted
pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that: :

(1) The Report fully comphes with the reqmrements of section 13(a) or I'5(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934; and .

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all matenal respects, the fmancxal condition
and result of operations of the Company.

e _ /s/ Robert A. Barton

Robert A. Barton
Chief Financial Officer

A signed original of this written'statément required by Section 906 has been provided to drugstore.com, inc.
and will be retained by drugstore.com, inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff
upon request.

March 17, 2006




drugstore:-s

the uncommon drugstore

411108th Ave. NE | Ste. 1400 | Bellevue, WA 98004 | Telephone 425 372 3200 | Facsimile 425 372 3800




